. ‘ ! S ‘
STATE OF MINNESOTA A) N
IN THE | Q\ "

- S
OCTOBER TERM, A. D. 1909, RN _k*
: o

R. C. VINCENT and
LILLIAN M. KELLY,
Plaintiffs & Respondents,
V.
LAKE ERIE TRANSPORTATION COMPANY, .
:  Defendant and Appellant. . ‘ w :

PAPER BOOK. >/

H. R. SPENCER,
Attorney fcr Appellant. )
Dmluth, Minn. AN

ALFORD & HUNT N
Attorneys for Respo,ndents. Z\\
Duluth, Minn \\;
HALLOCK’'S “NDGEWATER PRESS"—DULUTH QJ R
f ‘ ,s,
D/

"
N,



INDEX.

Complaint B U
Answer S 3
Motion to Strike Out e 7
Order to Strike Qut . -9
Reply I [ 11)
Stipulation to use Depositicn 11
Testimony e 1122278

Plaintiff's Rest . oo e 12
Defendant Rests .. oo e e e e 25
Plaintiff’s Exhibit C. .. .o
Plaintiff’s Exhibit Do
Plaintiff’s Rest in Rebuttal __ .. ...

Plaintiff’s Request to Charge 280
Defendants Request to Charge . 281
Charge .. e e e e 285
Certificate Settled Case.. o 297
Verdict oo o e 297
Motion for Judgment, etc.. 298

Order Denying Motion .. o
Notice of Appeal
Stipulation as to Bond B ..300
Defendants Exhibit 1. o o .2302

PLAINTIFE’'S WITNESSES.
F. H. Bidwell—

Direct oo - 12
CTOSS e e e e e 18
Re-Direct N e 29
Re-Cr088 e e e e 30
W. H. Brewer—
Direct 30
Cross ... —— 34
Re-Direct —— 40

Re-Cross




R. C. Vincent—
Direct e e e 44
Direct Continued e B3
Cross . e e e 70
0. 8. Olson--Deposition—

Direct . . 50
George Vincent--Deposition—

Interogatories . e 58

DEFENDANT'S WITNESSES.
T. C. Herrick-—
Direct . __. R |
Cross e e e e —eereenrmssme. 100
Re-Direct .. | . 111
Re-Cross ... ...114
Recalled Pirect .. 249
Recalled Cross — . 251
John A, McMillan—
Direct _ . .. e 114
Cross 122
Re-Direct ... . ..123
Re-Cross . o 124
D. A, Christie—
Direct ... 126
Cross .. 130
Fle-Direct _ 131
Charles P. Berkelmain— '
Direct o, 132
Cross . e 136
Peter Grignon—
Direct 137
Cross T SR, C 3 |
Fe-Direct . 142
Charles M. Van Gorder—Deposition—
Direct . et e - 143
Cross -153
Re-Direct 157
Recalled-Direct . 158
Recalled-Cross _159




George H, Vroman—

Direct oo e 161

Cross I e e LTO

Re-Direct ... .. - 173

Re-Cross e e e e et 174
Fred Benson

Direct o e L1758

CTOSS oo e e eeeeen oo rares e e e 181

Re-Direct e e 182

) S 00 s 11 J 186
Frank Rhoda—

Direct - 187

Cross S o192

Recalledi e e e 1958
George Coleman—

B 030 o ox U 197

100 e 1< Y- O 2199

Re-Direct e 200

Recalled oot e e e 205
John Dunn—

Direct _. e e b e e e 200

Cross — — .
W. E. Hoy—

D05 € = ok OO 207

CTroOSS _oecerecemcaee — 214
C. C. Balfour—

Direct ... 217

[0 e == OO OO 221

Re-Direct v - - 224

Re-Cross . cenees 225
Edward F. England

Direct o 226

Cross. o eemeem 2230
George W. Johnson—

Direct . 231

Cross . 234



Frank Leframboise—
Direct ..
Cross

236

239

Duncan Buil—
Direct _

... 240

Cross ___

245

George Z. Zanger—
Direct .o

. 245

John K., McKenzie—

Direct _. ...

Herbert W. Richardson—
JEE 1 =Y

Alexancler McDougal—

Direct _ . e

Cross
R. C. Vincent—
Direct _

e 248

254

............................. 261

1

... 376



STATE OF MINNESOTA

IN THE [

SUPREME COURT.

OCTOBER TERM, A. D. 1909,

STATE OF JMINNESOTA, COUNTY OF BST.
Louis, ss. District Court, Eleventh Judicial
District. 2

. C. VINCENT and

LILLIAN M. KELLY,

Plaintiffs.
V8.
LAKE ERIE TRANSPORTATION COMPANY,
Defendant.

PAPER BOOK.

COMPLAINT.

Plaintiffs complain of defendant and allege:

1. That at all times herein mentioned de-
fendant was and still is a corporation duly or-



—

ganized and existing under the laws of the state
of Ohio.

2. That throughout the year 1905 the plain-
tiffs were the owners of all that certain real estate
Iying and being in the county of St. Louis, de-
scribed as follows, to-wit: Lots numbered omne,
three, five, seven and the south half of lot num-
bered nine, Bay Front division of Duluth, accord-
ing to the recorded plat thereof, together with cer-
tain warehouses and docks and other improve-
ments situate thereon; that said property lies in
the harbor in said city of Duluth and is valuable
chiefly by reason of riparian rights, dock, wharf
and wharehouse facilities incident thereto; that
prior to the time hereinbefore mentioned said prop-
erty was improved by the erection of a dock and
warehouse thereon for the purpose of receiving
freight from boats and vessels engaged in traps.
portation on the Great Lakes and also of receiving
freight to be laden upon such boats and vessels at
such dock and warehouse; that on or about the
27th day of November, 19035, defendant, by its ser-
vants and employees, negligently and carelessly
kept a certain steam vessel tied te said wharf on
said day and for several days thereafter to and
‘neluding the 29th day of November, 1905, that
during said time said vessel was so negligently
tied and kept tied to said whart by said defendant,
said vessel violently struck against and heat upon
and hammered against said wharf and injured and
destroyed a large part of said wharf to the damage
of these plaintiffs in the sum of $1200.00; that said
property of these plaintiffs by reason of said nep-
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ligent acts of said defendant was damaged and in-
jured to the extent of the sum of $1200.00.

3. That said sum has not been paid nor any
part thereof.

Wherefore, plaintiffs demand judgment
against the defendant in the sum of $1200.00 with
interest thereon from the 27th day of November,
1905, together with the costs and disbursements of
this action.

Dated May 25th, 1908,

ALFORD & HUNT,
Attorneys for Plaintiff,
904 Torrey Bldg., Duluth, Minn.

{Duly verified.)

ANSWER.

Title amnitted.

Now comes the defendant and for its answer
in the above entitled action alleges:

1st. That it admits that it is a corporation
duly organized and existing under the laws of the
State of Ohio,

2nd. That it admits that at the time stated
in the complaint plaintiffs were the owners of the
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real estate set forth in the complaint and alleges
that at the time stated in the complaint the plain-
tiffs or their lessees were operating said real es-
tate as a general merchandise and storage dock, at
which freight was received for storage and ship-
ment, and that the lessees of said dock operated
said dock known as the City Dock, for the purpoese
of receiving freight from lake steamers and storing
the same on which said lessees collected a dockage
charge from the owners and consignees of freight
so discharged on to said City Dock.

3rd. Defendant savs that at the time stated
in the complaint it was the sole owner of the
Steamer 8. . Reynolds. That on or about the 27th
day of November, 1905, defendant’s said steamer
arrived from lower lake ports with a cargo of gen-
eral merchandise, a portion of which was consigned
to said City Dock, owned and operated by plain-
tiffs or their lessees,

That on the arrival of satd vessel at Duluth,
plaintiffs or their lessees operating said dock, di-
rected the master, officers and agents of said ves-
sel to come alongside plaintiffs’ said dock and
there to have discharged the cargo comsigned to
said dock. That thereupon said vessel was placed
alongstde plaintiffs’ dock at the place and in the
manner designated by plaintiffs or their lessees,
and having heen securely moored thereto in the
usual and proper manner, the discharge of cargo
from said vessel on to plaintiff’s dock began, at
about one o’clock p. m. of that date, which cargo
plaintiffs or their lessees received and stored in
their warehouse located on said dock. That the
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discharge of cargo continued and plaintiifs or their
lessees continued to receive the same until about
ten o’clock p. m. of that date.

That while said vessel was so Iying at libel-
lants’ dock, discharging cargo as aforesaid, a vio-
lent gale of wind arose from the northeast with
blinding snow, so thick as wholly to obscure vigion.
That the wind continued to increase in velocity
until it attained the proportions of a hurricane.

That by the time the discharge of cargo on to
snid dock was completed, the wind had attained
such veloeity aud unexpected proportions, the mas-
tor and crew of said vessel were powerless and
wholly unable to remove said vesse. from said dock.
That they made every effort known to safe and
pricdent seamanship to remove said vessel from
cuid dock amd secure the same in a less exposed
sitnation but were unable to do so.

That the master and otficers of said vessel en-
Jdeavored fo secure the assistance of tugs to aid
<aid vessel in seeking a safe place to remain during
the gale, hut the violence of the wind was such and
the snow was falling so thick as to vender it wholly
unsafe for tups to navigate the harbor, and the
masters and managers of all tugs refused to render
assistance to said vessel, and the officers and crew
of suid vessel were unable to obtain aid from any
cource and said vessel was obliged to remain
moorad to said dock at the place where plaintiffs
or their agents and lessees had placed it, exposed
{0 all the fury of a storm of such vielence as had
bever heen known on Fake Superior before.

That during the night of November 27th, 1905,
wndd vessel was fpigned ;1g;1iu‘st said dock and the

14
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officers and erew of said vessel were wholly unable
to meve it from the position where plaintiffs and
their agents or lessees had placed it. That during
the night of November 27th, 1905, and the follow-
ing day said hurricane continued with unabated
violence and at the port of Duluth and vicinity
eight or ten of the largest vessels navigating the
lakes were wrecked and stranded, with great loss
¢ "..re and property.

That during all this time the master and crew
of the steamer Reynolds made every effort possible
to get away from said dock and made every effort
possible to avoid deing said dock damage, but that
it was a physical impossibility to move said vessel
or with safety to alter its position at said doek, and
it was forced by the unexpected weather conditions
to remain alongside said dock until the gale sub-
sided when as speedily as possible it was removed
from =aid dock.

4th. Defendant is informed and believes that
the daraage sustained by plaintiff’s dock, if any
was sustained, was of much less extent than stated
In the complaint and was due wholly to the rotten
and poor condition of said dock, and was due to
tiie sea snd current caused by said vielent storm
and was not due to any want of care on the part of
the defendant or those in charge of said steamer.

dth.  That every allegation, matter and thing
in s2id complaint contained is hereby denied, ex-
cept as herein explicitly admitted,

Wherefore defendant asks that plaintiffs take
nothing in this action and that defendant has judg-
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ment against plaintiffs for their costs and disburse-
mwents,

June 3rd, 1908.
H. R. SPENCER,
Defendant’s Attorney.

(Duly verified.)

MOTION TO STRIKE OUT.

Title .mitted.

To H. R. Spencer, Esquire,

Attorney for Defendants above named.

Please take potice, that at the Court House,
in the City of Duluth, in said County and State, at
nine-thirty o’clock a. m., on the 20th day of June
1908, at a special term of said Court then and
there to be holden the plaintiffs will apply to said
court at zaiid time, or ag soon thereafter as counsel
can be heard, for an order directing that the several
portions of defendants answer, herein specified
in the following paragraphs, be stricken out:

1. Beginning with the sixth line from the
end of page two strike out that portion embraced
in the following words:

“That the master and officers of said vessel
endeavored to secure the assistance of tugs to aid
spid vessel in seeking a safe place to remain dur-

19
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ing the gale, but the vielence of the wind was snch
and the sno~. was falling so thick as to render it
wholly uns.fe .or tugs to navigate the harbor and
the masters and mamagers of all tugs refused to
render assistance to said vessel, and the officers
and crew of said vessel were unable to obtaln aid
from any source and said vessel was obliged to re-
main moored to said dock at the place where plain-
tiffs or their agents and lessees had placed it ex-
posed to all the fury of a storm of such violence as
had never been known on Lake Superior hefore.”

2. Btrike out that portion next following the
matter included in paragraph 1, hereof and em-
braced in the following words: “That during the
night of November 27th, 1905, said vessel was im-
pinged against said dock and the officers and crew
of said vessel were wholly unable to move it from
the position where plaintiffs and their agents or
lessees had placed it.”

3. Strike out that portion next following the
matter included in paragraph 2, hereof and em-
braced in the following words: “That during the
night of November 27th, 1805, and the following

day said hurricane continued with unabated vio-

lence and at the port of Duluth and vicinity eight
or ten of the largest vessels navigating the lakes
were wrecked and stranded with great loss of life
and property.”

4. Strike out that portion next following the
matter included in paragraph 3, hereof and em-
braced in the following words: “That during all
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this time, the master and crew of the steamer
Reynolds made every effort possible to get away
from said dock and made every effort possible to
avoid doing said dock damage but that it was
a physical impossibility to move said vessel,
or with safety to alter its position at said dock,
and it was forced by the unexpected weather con-
ditions to remain alongside saidl dock until the
gale subsided, when as speedily as possible it was
removed from said dock.”

That said application will be made as to each
of said parts of said answer specified in said re-
spective paragraphs numbered from one to four
inclusive and upon the ground that said parts of
said answer so specified are and each of them re-
dundent and also irrelevant.

Dated June 12th, 1908

ALFORD & HUNT,
'Attorneys for Plaintiffs.

ORDER TO STRIKE OUT.

Title omitied.

The application for an order directing that
portions of the answer of the defendant herein he
stricken out on the ground that said respective
portions specified in said application are and each
of them is redundent, and algo irrelevant, came on

28
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for hearing at a specified term of said court at the
Court Houge in the City of Duluth on the 20th day
of June, 1908. Messrs, Alford and Hunt appeared
in support of said application, and H. R. Spencer
opposed. Now having heard and considered said
application in all respects, it is ordered that that
portion of said answer found upon the third page
thereof immediately following the word “violence”
where the same occurs in the eleventh line, count-
ing from the top of said page and continuing to the
end of the 13th line be stricken out. That as to
the remaining portions of said answer so asked to
be stricken out said motion be and the same is
hereby denied.
Dated June 23, 1908,
(Signed) HOMER B. DIBELL,
Judge of said Court.

REPLY.

(Title omiuted, )

The plaintiffs, for their reply to the answer
of defendant herein, deny each and every allega-
tion of new matter in said answer contained.

Dated July 2nd, 1908.

ALFORD & HUNT,
Attorneys for Plaintiffs,
904 Torrey Bldg., Duluth, Minn.

Duly verified.
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STIPULATION TO USE DEPOSITION.

(Title omitted.)

It is hereby stipulated by and between counsel
for plaintiff and counsel for defendant that the
depositions heretofore taken in a case pending in
the United States District Court for the District
of Minnesota, Fifth Division, wherein R. C. Vin-
cent and Lillian M. Kelly were libellants and the
steamer 8. C. Reynolds was respondent, may be
used at the trial of the foregoing entitled cause

as if regularly taken in the same, subject to all
' objections as to materiality and relevancy; that
the same may bhe used by either party to said cause.

August 5th, 1908,

ALFORD & HUNT,

Attorney for Plaintiffs.

H. R. RPENCER,
Attorrey for Defendant.

TRIAL,.

{Title omitted.)

This cause came on to be heard at a regular
ierm of the above named court held in and for the
County of 8t. Lonis, at the cdurt house, in the City

81
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of Duluth, Minnesota, on the 14th day of Septem-
ber, A. D. 1908, before the Honorable J. D. En-
sign, Judge, arnd a Jury of Twelve, whereupon
the following evidence was taken and proceedings
were had, to-wit:

34
APPEARANCER .

Tor the Plaintiffs: Messrs. Alford & Hunt.
For the Defendant: H. R. Spencer, Esq.

F. H. BIDWELL, being duly sworn as a witness
on hehalf of plaintiffs, testifies as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION,

33 By Mr. Alford:
Q. Your name is F. H. Bidwell?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Where do you live, Mr. Bidwell?
A. Virginia, Minnesota, at present.
Q. How long have you lived there?
A. About one year.
Q. Where did you live before?
A. Duluth.
. Q. How long have you lived in Duluth?
‘A. I came here in the fall of °86.
36 Q. And lived here continuously from that

time until the time you went to Virginia?

A. Yes, sir,

. Jalling your attention to the vear 1905
what was ‘vour business at that time?
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A. 1 was manager for the City Dock Com-
pany.

Q. And in particular during the months of
November and December of that year, were you
s0 emploved?

A, Yes, sir

Q. Do you recall the latter part of November,
particularly the 27th?

A. I don’t remember the exact date. T re-
member the latter part of November quite well.

Q. Do youn recall the fact of the Steamer 8.
C. Reynolds being tied up at the city dock?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you were manager of the dock at that
time?

A. Manager, yes, sir; 1 was,

(). When the Reynolds came there?

A, Yes, .

Q. Mr. Bidwell, as nearly as you recollect
about what time of the day was it that the Rey-
nolds came there?

A. That she came to the cock?

Q. Yes, sir?

A. Why, it is my recollection that she came
to the dock about 5, or between 5 and 6 in the
evening and commenced unloading about 7.

(). She had some freight for the dock, did
she?

A. Yes, sir.

). You say she commenced to unlcad along
about 7?

A.  About 7 or little after, I think.

37
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Q. Wag the unloading completed that even-
ing?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. According to your best recollection ahout
what time?

A. It must have been about 11 o’clock.

Q. Anyway Dhefore midnight?

A. Before midnight, yes, sir.

Q. Now, on which side of the dock was she
tied ?

A, She was at the outer end of the dock, what,
we usually called the bay side. It would be the
south end of the dock.

Q. Along how many sides of the dock ecould
vessels tie?

A. Two. _

Q. Which side was the other one?

A. It was on what we spoke of as the slip;
that was on the west side of the dock.

Q. That side was approached through the
slip, was it?

A, Yes,

Q. Then the Reynolds was tied to that side
of the dock nearest the canal?

A, Yes.

Q. Let us see. The slip is along the west side
I believe you stated?

A, Yes, sir

Q. Did you leave the dock that night?

A. I left the dock shortly after the boat fin-
ished unloading.

(). About what time?
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A. Why, I should think perbaps half an hour
after that; perhaps longer. I don’t know exactly.

Q. And did you return the next day?

A. Yes, sir

Q. About what time, according to your best
recollection?

A. Tt was earty the next morning; I think
probably along half past 7 or 8 It was a pretty
hard job to get down there.

Q. How long did the Reynolds remsin there
hefore she left?

A. I don’t remember just when she did leave
there. She was there all the next day and I think
that night. .

Q. At any rate all the next day?

A, Yes, sir.

(). You may state the fact as to whether when
the Reynolds came there that portion of the dock
at which she tied up was in good condition?

A. It was then, yes, sir.

Q. It was in a good state of repair?

A. Yes, sir.

(). Had been used all that summer and fall
by large vessels in taking and receiving freight?

A, Tt wag used nearly every day.

(). And suitable for that purpose?

A, Yes, sir. '

(3. Upon your return that next morning in
what shape was that portion of the dock?

A. Why, it was badly broken up.

(). In particular that portion alorg where

tlie Revnolds had been tied?
A, Yes, sir. )

43
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Q. Describe, tell the jury how the Reynolds
was breaking it if it was?

A. She 'was lying at the south end of the
dock tied up there and was pounding against the
dock and had pounded the end of the dock in
there; done a good deal of damage.

Q. Loosened the piling?

A. I don’t remember as to the piling partic-
ularly. It was the timber work of the dock that
1 observed more than anything else.

. Timber work was torn up?

A. Yes sir.

Q. Did that process continue through the
course of that day?

A, Continued during all the time she was
lying there.

(). Continued her pounding?

A, Yes g

Q. Abhout how much space along the dock
front was stove in by thig action? ,

A.  Why, I should say that there was 40 to 50
feet to my best recollection.

(). And about how far into the dock had the
Reynolds broken her way?

A. ' T had reference to the depth in, when I
say 40 or 50 feet; and along the face of the dock 1
should say it was, oh, T should say 50 or 60 feet
there too.

(). You are now making an estimate, I take
it?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. Mr. Bidwell, in which direction was the
bow of the vessel lying?



i —17—

A. She was heading east.

Q. That is, toward the canal? '

A. No, she was headed toward the lake.

Q. Toward the lake?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. What other property, dock property, if
any, was next to the city dock and toward the
lake?

A. In an easterly direction?

Q. Yes?

A. The Omaha dock.

Q. Now, state the fact as 10 whether the bow
of the vessel extended to or along side the Omaha
as well?

A. Bhe lapped over on to the Omaha dock.

Q. Had her forward lines on the Omaha?

A. I presume so.

Q. Did she break into the Omaha as well?

Mr, Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial
as to what damage she did to any other dock, that
question not being in litigation.

Obhjection sustained.

Mr. Alford:

Q. ‘Where was the stern of the Reynolds?

A. Stern, I should judge, roust have been out
into the slip a little; very nearly so I should think,
I didn’t notice that.

(). You didn’t notice that to see?

A. No, sir.

49
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(. Mr. Bidwell, were you out there where
she was unloading that night?

A T was. )

(2. And were you out there after she got
through unloading?

A. Yes, sir; I was.

CROSS EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Spencer:

Q. Major Bidwell, you say this dock at the
time in question was being operated by the City
Dock Company?

A, Yes, sir,

(). Was the City Dock Company the lessee
of the dock?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination,
not sarving the trial of any issue involved in this
case.

Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer:
Q). How did the City Dock Company happen
to be operating this dock at that time?

Plaintiffs make same objection as last above,

Mr. Spencer: He said ‘the City Dock Com-
pany was operating this dock. T simply desire to
show that it was by permission of the plaintiff in
this case.
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The Clourt: I don’t remember any such evi-
dence. He said he was the manager of the City
Dock, as 1 understand,

Mr. Snencer: I understood him to say that he
was operating it.

Mr. Spencer:
.Q State, if you know, who was operating
this City Dock at this time?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is incompetent, irrelevant, imma-
terial and not proper cross examination.

Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer;
). What was the nature of the business of
the City Deck Company?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it iz not proper cross examination
2nd also as immaterial.

{No ruling.)

Mr. Spencer:
Q. Where is the City Dock situated?
A, City of Duluth, foot of 8th Avenue West.
Q. You say you were the manager of this
dock at the time in question?
A. 1 was.

(2. What was this dock used for at that

time?

5%

56

57



58

59

60

—_90 —

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination.

Objection sustained,

Mr. Spencer:

Q. Wasg this a merchandise dock?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And steamboats discharged cargo at that
dock, merchandise dock?

A. They did.

Q. How many times that summer had the
Steamer 8. C. Reynolds discharged cargo at that
dock?

Mr. Alford: Plaintifts object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination
and is immaterial.

Objection sustained.

Mr, Spencer:

Q. You say that the Steamer Reynolds
came to your dock at about 5 o’clock in the after-
poon?

A. That is my recollection, yes, sir.

Q. Came to the City Dock? Who directed it
where to go?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination.

Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer:
Q. You say that it came to the dock at about
5 o’clock. Were you there when it came there?
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A, Yes, sir.,

Q. Did you see where it made fast to your
dock?

A. T don’t remember that I saw her tie up
I saw her lying there.

Q. And what was done after the Reynolds
came to the City Dock? Whal was done by the
steamboat Reynolds after she came to your dock?

A. Why, nothing at all as I remember until
after supper.

Q. Oh, until after supper?

A, Yes,

. Then after supper at about 7 o’clock you
say work began in discharging eargo on to your
dock?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Who discharged the cargo, do you remem-
her?

A. Why, there was a—

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination.

Question withdrawn,

Mr. Spencer:

(). Did the City Dock receive the cargo that
was being unloaded at that time?

A, Did we receive it?

Q. Yes?

A. Yes, gir,

3. Did von see the captain of the Reynolds
there at that time?

A, Idon’t remember, T den’t think T did,

Q. At what time in the evening did the

61
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freight that was consigned to your dock—was it
unloaded?

A. What time did they get through?

Q. Yes?

A.  As T remember about 11 o’clock.

Q. You say the Steamboat Reynolds came to
your dock and made fast at the outer end; the out-
er end of your dock, the City Dock, comes out to
the east dock line, does it not, to the navigable wa-
ter?

A, Yes, sir, it does.

Q. Comes out to the navigable channel of
the Duluth Harbor?

A, Well, T supose it does. 1 don’t know just
how the dock line is drawn there but I suppose it
does.

(). And on the west side of your dock there is
a slip known as the lime kiln slip, is there?

A, Yes, sir,

(}. And the Reynolds was made fast to your
dock with her port side next to the dock; that is,
the left hand side of the ship was next to your
dock?

A, Yes, sir, port side to.

Q. And she was heading out towards the
lake?

A. Yes, sir,

Q). Or towards the eastward?

A, Yes, sir,

Q. During the evening?

A, Yes, sir,

(). You remained there until the cargo was
all discharged.

A, Yes, sir
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Q. Did you have any conversation with the
captain of the steamboat or any of the officers that
evening?

67
Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question.

Mr. Spencer: 1 withdraw the question.
A. I don’t remember anything at all.

Mr. Spencer:
Q. Did you go on board the vessel at any
time during the evening?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination,

68
Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer:

(. Where were you during the evening?

A. I was in the warehouse,

Q. In the warehouse all of the {ime?

A. On the dock; yes, and in the office.

Q. Amnd what time did you go down to the
dock the next day?

A. Tt was quite early in the morning. It was
probably half past 7 or 3, some time along there.

Q. You say you had a hard time to get down 69
there”

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination.

Ohjection overruled.

A YES. *
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Mr. Spencer:
. What wag it cansed you to have a hard
time to get down there?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination.

Objection overruled, to which ruling plaintiffs
duly except.

A. (No answer).

Mr. Spencer:

Q. You say you had a hard time to get down
there?

A. Or rather hard to get over to the dock
itself.

Q. Why was it hard to get over to the dock
itself? .

A. There was water over the track there and
in the road between the ©®maha deck and the City
dock.

. Was it snowing any at the time?

A. It was snowing during the night. I don’t
think it was in the morning. I don’t remember as
to thet.

(). Which way was the wind?

A.  Northeast.

(.. And do you know anything as to the ve-
locity of the wind?

A. What? _

(). What was the velocity of the wind at that
time?

A. 1 don’t know the exact velocity. Tt was
blowing pretty hard.
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Q. You found your dock somewhat ripped up,
didn’t you?

A. T did where the boat was lying.

Q. At any other place on that dock?

A. No.

Q. You said something about damage having
been done 60 feet in the dock. Do you mean in
under the dock?

A. That was right where the boat was lying.

Q. That is, on the face of the dock next to
the bay?

A, Yes, sir,

Q. You did not mean 60 feet of damage was
done under the dock from the outer end?

A. Yes, I mean that the titnbers were pushed
in from the face of the dock, pushed back, I should
think, I would not say definitely, 60 feet. Perhaps
ir was not more than 50. They were pushed back
in and then a space along the front of the dock I
should think of about the same length.

Q. You don’t know of your own knowledge
that the steamboat pushed tha: dock in 60 feet
there, do you?

A, Well, T saw her doing it part of the time.

Q. Was it 60 feet in under the dock?

A Sir?

Q. How could you observe that under the
dock itself?

A, Well, T could sce the boat lying there and
pounding up against the dock.

. That was against piling, wasn’t it, spiles?

A. No. It was right against the timbers of
the dock.

Q). Against the timbers of the dock?
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A. Of course if she had broken away the face
of the dock there she probably got against the pil-
ing.

Q. There is a warehouse situated on this
dock, is there not?

A. Yes, gir.

(. How near the outer edge of the dock does
this warehouse extend?

A. With reference to the bay front, you
mean?

(). With reference to the bay front.

A. Why, T should think probably a space of
8 or 10 feet, something like that; about 10 feet I
should judge.

(. And that is planked over and constitutes
a sort of platform, does it?

A, Yes, sir,

(). And that extends around on the west side
of the dock, doesn’t it, along the slip?

A. If T remember right it was not quite so
wide on the west side.

(). Your doeck is provided with clusters of
piles for vessels to hiteh to, was it?

A, Yes, sir,

(). Did the vessel make fast to these posts
that vou had provided for them to hitch to?

A, T presume s0.

(). Well, you know that for a fact, don’t you?

A. No. I did not observe how she tied up.
She tied up in the customary manner,

(. How wide 1s this slipi you speak of, this
lime kiln slip, right immediately west of the City
dock?

A. How is that question?
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Q. How wide is that slip?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination.

Objection sustained,

Mr. Spencer:

Q. When you came down the next morning
and had this difficulty in getting to the dock how
about the sea, was there any waves breaking over
vour dock at that time?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination,

Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. Well, what else besides a broken condition
of your dock aided, or, rather, retarded your ef-
forts to get out to the dock the next morning; you
say you had a hard time?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination.

Objection overruled.

A, (N0 answer.)

Mr. Spencer:

Q. You said it was a pretty hard time to get
down there. What did you mean. What did you
mean?

A. What I mean ig, when I got down to the
Omala dock there was waterin the road and over
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the railroad tracks between the Omaha dock and
the City dock.

(). Was that a usual condition of things at
that place?

A. No, sir; it was not a usual condition of
things. _
(). Was the water so high in the bay that it
came over the City dock and the Omaha dock ad-
joining?

A. It did not come over the Omaha dock. It
came over the roadway and the railroad track be-
tween the two docks.

(). And that was what made it diffienlt for
you to get down there?

A. Yes. That made it difficult for me to

~ get down there.

(). And were there large drifts of snow there
as you came down?

A. I don’t remember about the snow. May
have been.

Q. And it was snowing and blowing hard
from the northeast at that time, wasn’t it?

A. It was blowing. I dopn’t think it was
snowing at that time when I went down in the
morning.

(). Did the weather increase in severity that
morning?

Mr. Alford: Plaintitfs object to the question
on tke ground it is not proper cross examination.

Objection sustained.
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RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION,

By Mr. Alford:

Q. If T understood you correctly, Mr. Bid-
well, you were in and out of the dock where the
unloading was going on, off and on during the
process?

A. I was about the dock, in the warehouse
and in the office.

(. This is the dock at the foot of 8th avenue
West in the city?

A. Yes.

Q. And it ig the same dock near which or
adjacent to which the lime kiln is situated?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is the lime kiln approached by the same
slip?

A, Yes, sir,

Q. To the west. That is, that lays to the
west of the dock?

A. Yes. The boats going to the lime kiln
went into the slip west of the City dock.

Q. Where does the Omaha Iie with reference
to the City dock?

A.  Just east of it,

Q2. Right up along?

A.  Adjeining it.

Q. Adjolning it?

A. Yes, sir. The fronts of the two docks ad-
join.  Of course there is a street and two railroad
tracks between the two warehouses,

Q. Now, the forward end of the boat, that is,
the how, was attached to the <maha?
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A. To the Omaha?

Q. Yes,

A. I cannot say as to that.

Q. It was lying in that direction?

A. Lying in that direction; yes, sir.

Q. And the vessel was lying parallel with the
end of the dock, was it not?

A. Yes, sir.

RE-CROSS EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Spencer:
Q. Did you at any time ask the vessel to get
away from your dock?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination.

Objection sustained, to which ruling defend-
ant cluly execepts.

W. H. BREWER, being duly sworn as a witness
on behalf of plaintiffs, testifies as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Alford:

You live in Duluth, Mr. Brewer?
Yes, sir.

How long have you lived here?
Little over 7 years.

What is your business?

ePrepo
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I am manager of the City dock just now.
How long have you been at that?

Three years.

Calling your attention to the latter part
of the year 19035, months of November and Decem-
ber, what was your business then?

A. T was helping Mr. Bidwell at the City
dock at that time.

Q. Do you recall the time that the 8. C.
Reynolds tied up there in the latter part of Novem-
ber?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. And about what date was it, if you re-
member?

A. About the 26th or seventh.

Q. State about what time of day it was that
she came there, if you remember?

A. T cannot say exactly when it was; some
time between 5 and 7.

Q. She had cargo for the dock?

A Yes, sir

Q. Was that cargo unloaded that evening?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. About what time was the unloading com-
pleted?

A. T think between half past 10 and 11.

Q. Were you there during the process of un-
lcading?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. At what time did you leave the dock that
night?

A, About 11 o’clock.

(2. Then the unloading was completed before
you left? ’
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A, Yes, sir

Q. Omn which side of the dock was the Rey-
nolds tied?

A. On the south side; bay side.

Q. That is the part commonly designated as

the end?

A, Yes, sir

(. The outer end toward the bay?

A. Yes, sir

(. TIn which direction was the bow of the ves.
gel?

A. To the east,

. That is, toward the lake?

A. Yes, sir,

(). And she laid along parallel with the end
of the dock, did she? '

A, Yes, sir

. I will ask you whether you were out there
at any time during the progress of the unloading?

A.  Out where?

Q. Outside along where the unloading was
going on?

A. T was within 50 feet of the boat.

Q). Did you come back to the dock the next
day?

A, Yes, sir

(. About what time?

A. T did not get there until about half past
10.

). Mr, Brewer, what was the nature of the
cargo that the Reynolds was unleading there?

A. General merchandise,

(). How long did the Reynolds remain there
at the City dock altogether?
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A. Bhe wag there all of the next day and,
I believe, all of the next night.

Q. In what shape was the dock after the
Reynolds left?

A. The part we called th: open dock was
very badly battered up; timbers broken and plank-
ing all torn up.

Q. That was along side where the Reynolds
had been tied?

A.  Yes, sir

Q. Was it so broken up hefore she tied up
there?

A. No, sir,

(2. Did the boat pound the dock?

A. To the best of my knowledge, yes, sir.

(). Ixhd you see its action the next day?

A. Both that night and the next day.

Q. DBoth that night and the next day. Can
vou tell the jury about what her action was so they
can get an idea?

A, Well, as each big wave would come
through the canal it would practically pick the
boat up and just hurl her right against the dock
that way; drove the timbers, and crowded over the
piling, and drive the timbers right back inm, you
know ; break them right up. That is the best de-
seription I could give of it.

). How was the forward end of the boat, the
bow, situated? Where was it?

A. Well, the very peak, 1 think, was over-
lapping the Omaha dock.
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CROSS EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Spencer:

Q. You are at present the manager of the
City dock, are you?

A. Yes, sir

Q. And what was your relation to that dock
at the time in question, on the 27th and 28th days
of November, 19057

A. Simply as an employe of Jesse Norton.

Q. This vessel you say was made fast to the
outer end of the City dock?
Yes, sir.
Who made it fast?
The boat ecrew, I presume.
You don’t know, do you?
I did not see them.
Was that the usual place for unloading
freighs at your dock?

A. Yes, sir

Lropop

Mr, Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination.

Objection overruled.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. The vessel was made fast to the posts that
were provided for that purpose, was it?

A. 1 believe so.

Q.  And how was it made fast? How was it
fasten=d?

A. Lipes run out from the side of the boat
and fastened to the piles,
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Q. Were the forward lines run out to posts
that were provided for that purpose?

A. I cannot answer positively on the forward
lines.

(J. And what about the stern lines?

A. The stern lines were on her clumps, piles.

Q. Drid you observe whether the forward end
had lines out or not?

A. They were out,

Q. And it had cargo that was consigned to
vour dock that afternoon and evening that it came
up there, did it?

A. Yes, sin
(). And @id you receive it?

A, Yes, sir.
Q. And store it away in your warehouse?
A. Yes, sir

). Tle vessel had been doing that all sum-

mer, had it, that year?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination.

Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer:

(). You say you got down there about 10 or
10:30 o’clock, after the cargo was discharged?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. And why were you so late in getting down
there that morning?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the guestion
on the ground it is not proper cross examination.

Objection overruled. .
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A. Very heavy storm.

Mr. Spencer:
Q). A very hard storm; something out of the
usual order of things?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination.

Objection sustained.

Mr. Epencer:

Q. You say it was a very heavy storm. In
what way did that prevent you from getting down
to your dock earlier?

. Stopped the street cars from Lakeside.

Q. You resided at Lakeside at that time, did
you?

A, Yes, sir.

(). Aud was there anything of the condition
of the dock that prevented you from getting down

28

there after vou reached the bayside?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination.

(hjection overruled.

A. Nothing to prevent my eventually getting
there, although after some trouble.

Mr. Bpencer:

(). You said something about the condition of
the dock or the condition of the dock prevented
your getting on to it? :

A. Tt caused me a good deal of trouble get-
ting on to it.
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Q. In what respect?

A, Well, the usual way is to go down the road
between the Omaha and the City dock. That was
covered with water; could not go that way. The
only other way was to go around the Omaha dock
and cross the open dock. The open dock, as I
stated, was all knocked to pieces and I had to climb
over anything I could to get there. :

Q. The whole dock for its entire length was
pretty well wrecked, was it?

A. No, sir. Just as I said before, practically
the open dock.

Q. The outer end?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. And how far ashore wouald that extend?

A.  Oh, between 40 and 60 feet, anyway.

Q. There is a railroad extending between the
City dock and the Omaha dock, is there? Was
there at that time?

Down to within 80 feet of the water.
Found that pretty well torn up, did you?
Yes, sir.

And you spoke about the waves rolling
in from the canal beating up against the dock and
vessel. Did they wash over the dock?

S oy

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper eross examination.

Objection overruled,

A. I dnn’t think the waves themselves came
over the dock.
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Mr. Spencer:

Q. Go on, and can you give any illustration
as to how high the waves were that came rolling
through the canal?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination.

Objection overruled.

A, T cannot answer that because I could not
see the waves from the canal. I can answer it in
another way.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. Well, answer it in any way you can?

A. About 9:30 of that evening Mr. Bidwell
called my attention—

Mr. Alford: That is objected to.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. Never mind that. Coming up to the morn-
ing when you came down there at half past ten
what was the wave action at that time?

A. It was throwing the boat very strong.

Q. Give an illustration to the jury showing
how high the waves were, if you can?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination.

Objection overruled,

A. Well, I don’t know as I could say how
high the waves would throw the boat. I know it
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was harder than I had ever seen a boat at that
point before,

Mr. Spencer:

Q. And how long an experience had you had
there before that time?

A. I had been there off and on four years.

Q. Had you ever known such a sea as that
beating up against your dock?

A, No, sir.

2. It was an unusual ocurrence, was it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How high did these se:us raise the side of
the vessel up in front of the dock?

A. That is what T say. That would be pretty
hard to tell.

Q. Cau you give any idea of how much of a
rise and how much of a depression there was in the
action on the vessel?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper zross examination.

Objection overruled.

A. 1 don't know as I can tell you how high,
in height, only that it was an extraordinary play
for a vessel to make at a dock.

Mr. Speficer:

). And at that time did the waves and water
flood your dock, your warehouse?

A, In what way, coming over the front of the
dock, do you niean?

Q. Coming over the front of the dock and
over the floor of your warehouse?
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A. It eame through the floor underneath.
). Ordinarily how high does that dock stand
ahove the water?

A. Oh, the floor of that dock I think is over
6 feet.

). And it is built on piling driven down into
the earth, is it?

A. Yes, sir.,

Q. And is the warehouse sitnated on the pil-
ing or on a solid foundation?

A. Onm piling.

Q. And the water underneath had risen up to
such an extent that it flooded the floor of your
warehouse; is that true?

A. Onmly in spots.

(. Had that situation ever occurred before
during your experience?

A. XNot to my knowledge. I don’t remember
of it.

Q. And to the warehouse itself, was any dain-
age done to that by the action of the waves?

A. T don’t think so; no.

Q. Was any damage done to the piling un-
derneath the warehouse?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is notr proper cross examination,

Objection sustained.

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Alford:
Q. Mr. Brewer, this water action was by rea-
son of a swell, was it not; or am 1 wrong?
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The water action on the boat, you mean?

By which the boat was moved, lifted?

Yes, heavy waves.

That swell or big wave lifted the boat, did 2!

oo

it?

A, Yes, sir,

. And then would let it fall so that it fell
against the dock?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is what you mean by throwing it
against the dock?

A, Yes, sir.

The Court:
2. The Reynolds was a steamboat, was it?
A, Yes, sir. 122

Mr. Alford:

Q. If I understood you correctly you say that
your delay the next morning was in part on ac-
count of this breaking up of the dock?

A Yes, sir.

RE-CROSE EXAMINATION.

LBy Mr. Spencer:

Q. When you came down the next morning
and saw these waves dashing the ship against the 123
outer end of this dock, how did the seas strike this
vessel, broadside or how?

A, Well) T should— As I remewber it would
be rather quartering.

(}. Quartering?

A Yes

(). That ts, they would strike—
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A. Strike on the outer side of the bow.

). That would be the starboard bow of the
vessel, wag it?

A. T believe that is what they call it.

Q. On the right hand forward end of it}

A. Yes, sir.

{}. Waves did not break exactly at right
angles to the ship?

A. No.

Q. But came in at an angle we will say
striking the forward cornmer of the vessel?
That is my remembrance,
The forward bow?
Yes, gir.
Forward right hand bow?
{No answer). _
And how much off of a line directly
ahead would you say these seas came in?

cropopr

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs objec-t to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination.

Objection overruled.

The Court: You are referring, now, Mr. Speun-
cer, to the waves that lifted the boat?

Mr. Spencer: Yes, sir.

A. I can only tell you in one way. Here is
your dock line-; your canal is off there; your waves
are coming in about like that (illustrating).

Q. At an angle of about half way then be-
tween the bow of the ship and the side of the ship
at right angles; an angle of about 45 degrees?

A. Not any over that,
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Q. And that had the effect of throwing the
vessel against the outer end of “he dock, didn't it?
A. Yes, sir, her bow.

Q. And at that time how was her bow fas- 127
tened, if you know?
A. By ropes to the piling.
Q. Did oot break away?
A. No, sir.
RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 128

By Mr. Alford:

Q. Mr. Brewer, had any of the spiles been
ioosened to which the boat had been attached, or
do you remember?

A. T don’t remember positively.

Q. I will ask you this: Will you state the
fact as to whether the Reynolds was held up flush
with the side of the dock or was her attachment a
loose one?

A. Oh, she was held as tight as she could be.

(). Then is it a fact that the forward action
of a wave was that of lifting the boat?

A. Certainly.

().  And then as the force of the wave subgided
it simply let the boat fall?

A. Yes, sir 129

(3. Tt fell agninst the dock?

A.  (No answer).

The Court:

(). Lifting and pushing? :

A. Lifting and pushing; pushed it right in;
ves, sir, ‘
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Mr. Alford:

Q. And then as the boat fell it sagged back
and tightened the lines?

A. Well, you undersiand, if a boat on a level
sea is tied, tied here, when it lifts it those lines are
bound to crowd it in. When it goes below that
point also, When it gets down to that point it will
he flush and when the waves push it still further
it crowds it in, underneath here.

R. C. VINCENT, being duly sworn as a witness
on behalf of plaintiffs, testifies as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION.,

By Mr. Alford:

Your pame is R. C. Vincent?

Yes, sir,

Where do you live, Mr. Vincent?

527 West Third street.

That is in the city of Duluth?

Yes, sir, city of Duluth.

How long have you lived in the city of
[

Eoropopro

Dulu
25 years,
You are one of the plaintiffs in this case?
Yes, sir.
What has been your business here?
1 have been in the lumber business here;
always have.

Q. You are the R, G. Vincent who was for
many years associated with Mr. Hubbard in the
firm of Hubbard & Vincent?

poPoPr
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A. Yes, gir.

Q. What is your business now?

A. Well, T have no particular business, par-
ticularly. I am plaintiff in this case, I might say,
against the Liability Insurance Company. That
is my business now at the presnt time,

Q. You have retired from the lumber busi-
ness?

A. Yes, gir.

Q. Calling your attention to the year 1905,
that is, the month of November and December, do
¥ou recall that time?

A. Yes, sir,

Q.  And do you recall the fact of the Reynolds,
8. C. Reynolds, having tied up fo your doek?

A, Yes, sin

Q. How soon after the Reynolds had gone
were you down there?

A. I think it was the second day. The
Reynelds when I got down there was gone, That
was the second day after the storm had subsided
when I went down,

Q. Did you then see the ragged condition of
the dock?

A, I did.

Q. Will you tell the jury in what shape you
saw it there?

A, Well, the base of the dock for about 60
feet was badly broken in. It was broken up, you
might say, into kindling wood. The vessel had
heen pounding against it there T guess for about
48 hours and what it did not break in the line of
timbers it broke off the piling below and shoved
them in.  The whole dock froht there is one mass
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of piling, pieces all tied together with timbers on
top, and when the boat struck the outside it conse
quently had to jar the whole business in under the
dock and all over for 200 feet, I presume. The
dock, I think, iz 215 feet long, or the building
proper.

Q. What about the condition of the plank-
ing?

A, Well, the planking was all torn up, or not
at all; it was mostly torn up; had been loosened
by the boat pounding against it.

Q. Some of it actually broken, the timbers?

A. Well, yes, broker and torn up. Wasn't
much of it there. It was drifted away and pound-
ed in all directions.

Q. You saw pieces of it floating?

A, 1 Jon’t know as I seen any of it float
ing, but it was not there. It had gone somewheres,
the most of it.

Q. Mr. Vincent, what was the condition of
that dock before the Reynolds came there at that
place?

A. Tt was in good shape, first-class. I had
that spring had the whole front of it rebuilt over,
new piling driven wherever they was needed and
cap pieces put on top and then a streak along the
front where vessels ran up. I think they call it
the whale streak. I think that is the proper name
to call it. It drops about a foot from the top of
the piling down.

Q. Kind of a fender?

A. Fender, yes. Proper name it is called a
whale streak.

Q. Were the timbers sound?
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A, They was used that spring. I think the
dimensions was about 8 or 9 by 14 inches, 40 feet
long. Western timber, western fir,

Q. Western fir?

A, Yes, sir,

Q. Mr. Vincent, did you have that dock re-
stored to its original condition?

A, T did.

Q. That is, after this breaking up, battering
down of the dock by the Steamer Reynolds, did
you have it restored them to its condition imme-
diately before?

A. Not at that time; until the next spring.

(). The next spring you had it restored?

A. Some time in March or April is my recol-
lection of it pow. It might have been a little later
than that.

Q. Well, this work that you then had con-
sisted in, as T understand you, simply in the restor-
ation of the dock to its previous condition?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Whom did you employ, if anybody, to do
that work of restoration?

A. Whitney Brothers of West Superior.

). And did they so restore the dock?

A. They aid.

Q. Will you kindly tell the jury the fact as

to whether any of the damage done by the Reynolds
was not entirely restored at that time?
' A, There was some of it that was not re-
stored, although I don’t think— I have no idea of
it myself. The man that done the work claimed
that e did not make a good job of it.
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Mr. Spencer: Never mind what anybody
claimed. Defendant moves the answer be stricken
out in regard to that.

Motion granted.

Mr. Alford:

Calling your attention to the roof, what did
you find, if anything, that was not—

A. I found the next rain after that storm
there that the roof leaked badly and I had to have .
it fixed.

. Had completely been racked—

A. Yes, sir, racked from end to end.

At this time court takes a recess until 2
o’clock p. m. same day, Monday, September 14th,
A. . 1908, at which time proceedings were re-
sumed as follows:

Q). Mr. Vincent, I show you a paper marked
plaiutiffs’ Exhibit A, ask you if you recognize that
paper?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And say what it is?

A. That is a bill of Whitney Brothers for re-
pairing the doek, for labor and material furnished.

Q. Repairing it in connection with this illus-
tration that you have referred to heretofore?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That paper also is a receipt for the pay-
ment; of the money?
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A. Yes, sir. That is Whitney Brothers’ re-
ceipt, too.

Q. I also show you paper marked plaintiffs’
Exhibit B. You may look at that paper and state
if you recognize it?

I do.

Is that your signature?

That is my signature, yes, sir.

What ig that?

That is the check in payment of that bill,
Same bill as Exhibit A?

Yes, sir.

Was that check paid?

It was.

FPOPOPOPOR

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs offer in evidence plain-
tiffs’ Exhibits A and B.

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the evi-
dence for the reason that there is no evidence to
show that the payment mentioned ip Exhibits A
and B were confined exclusively to the repairs of
damages occasioned by the steamboat Reynolds; it
includes a large amount of other stuff as it ap-
pears there.

Mr. Spencer: You offer that in proof of dam-
ages?

Mr. Alford: Yes, if the Court please. Our
theory is, if the Court please, this is an injury to
a building, structure on the real estate and in that
case the cost of restoration is the measure of the
damages,
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Mr. Alford: :

Q. Mr. Vincent, I will ask you to tell this
Jury the fact as to whether the payment of money
referred to these Exhibits- A and B related wholly
to the restoration of the dock from the damage to
it by the Steamer Reynolds, which has been re-
ferred to?

Mr. Spencer: Defendant makes the same ob-
jection as last before and that that is not evidence
of the measure of damages, That is no evidence
of reasonable value of making repairs to the dock.
It may bave been altogether too much or may have
bene altogether too little. T make the same objec-
tion as I did before.

Mr. Alford: TIf the Court will allow me to ex-
cuse this witness I will offer another deposition in
evidence and will recall this witness.

The Court: You may do so.

Mr. Alford: I offer in evidence the deposition
of 0. 8. Olson.

Mr. Alford (reading) :

0. 8. OLSON, a witness on behalf of libelants,
called and being first duly sworn, on oath de-
poses and says:

DIRECT EXAMINATION.

Mr. Alford:
Q. Your name is O. 8. Olson?
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0. 8. Olson.

Where do you live?

West Superior.

What is your business?

Foreman for Whitney Brothers.

And your work consists of what?
Carpenter work.

Who are Whitney Brothers?

Contractors and builders, Superior.

State the fact as to whether it is part of
their business to build and repair docks about the
harbor here? '

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long have you been in their employ?

A. Since 1906, the last part of March or first
of April, 1906; it was early in the spring when I
started there.

(). Calling your attention to the early part of
the summer last, did you have anything to do with
a certain dock at Duluth known as the City dock?

A, Yes, sir.

(). That was in the nature of repairs?

A, Yes, sir,

(3. State in a general way the extent to which
you were to make those repairs?

CPOPOPOPrLP

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion for the reason that the evidence of repairs—
he asked to what extent the repairs were made
there; that extent may have included g consider-
alite more damage than this steamboat inflicted, if
it inflicted any; and the inquiry it seems to me
should be kept entirely within the examination of
the question as to the repair of the damages oc-
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casioned by this vessel. That question is so broad
that it would include repairs to the entire length
of the dock.

The Court: The guestion is: What was the
damage done to the dock. That inquires for the ex-
pense that was put upon the dock. It is subject
to the same objection that the bill would be.

Mr. Alford: T take it, if the Court please, that
if it should appear that there was other damage
done and other work done, anyway any other work
done, and we should fail to distinguish what work
was given simply to the restoration from this dam-
age and from the other work, then we would be
certainly at faunlt.

The Court: What was the damage done to the
dock, The witness, Mr. Vincent, has describad
what the damage appeared to be. I suppose you
show that this foreman repaired all the damage
was made on the dock?

Mr. Alford: 1 think so, That is the purpose
of the testimony.

The Court: All of the injury to the dock?
Mr. Alford: That is correct,

The Cwrt: I think I will hear this testimony
and then determine.

To which ruling defendant duly excepts.

The Court: I do not feel myself bound by the
permission that T now give. You may go on. I will
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hear the testimony and then determine whether it
is admissible upon that question of damages.

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion further on the ground he is not asked the ques-
tion as to what repairs he did make but the ques-
tion is to what extent were you to make the repairs,
not the extent that he did make them.

The Court: You may go on.

Mr. Alford (reading):

(). Statein a general way the extent to which
you were to make those repairs as regards the res-
toration of the dock?

A. 'We repaired the top and put it all in
shape the way it was.

Q. You found the dock in a damaged condi-
tion?

A, Ves, sir.

Q. Now state which side, if it was the side,
upon which those repairs were made?

A. If this building is facing that way, it was
on the south side.

(. That is, the side out towards the bay?

A. Towards the bay—or---yes, towards the
bay.

(). Not adjacent to either of the slips or upon
cither of the slips?

A. As far as I know the bay runs that way
and the slips run this way (indicating), slips run
east and west and the bay north and south, as near
as T can place it.

().  As I understand you the work you did was
on the bay side? .
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A, On the bay side.

Q. Isit a fact—you can state whether it is a
fact as to whether you did replace any timbers that
were broken with new timbers?

Fenders and caps.

If I understand you, your work consisted
then in a restoration of the dock?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. From the damaged condition in which you
found it—is that a fact?

A. That is a fact.

161 Q. State, If you can, Mr. Olson, when this
work was done with reference to the date as near
ag you can?

A. Some time in June, T think.

Q. 190627

AL 1906,

3. State the fact as to whether in your judg-
ment some further work than was actually done
should have been done in order to complete the res-
toration? ’

A. We did, with new timbers,
160 Q. And that included some piling?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And planking?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Fenders?

A,

Q.

Mr. Alford: That question was withdrawa,
162

Mr. Alford (reading):
Q. You say you are a carpenter?
A, Yes.
€. How long have you heen in that business?



A. Tn that business off and on for ten years.

Q. Part of your business to engage in the
congtruction and repair of docks in that time?

A. Yes, sir.

(). Now,.calling your attention to the City
dock, state the fact as to whether you found one
of the bents in a damaged condition that was not
repaired entirely?

A. We found one bent there, the last bent
ahout the middle of the dock, there should have
heen a rew timber in to put it in good shape.

Q. That was not replaced?

A. That was not replaced.

Q. Now state, if you can, what, approximate-
ly, that would have cost, to replace that timber?

Mr. Spencer: Defendant ohjects to the ques-
tion on the ground there is no evidence in this
man’s testimony or anybody else’s that that was
a part of the damage complained of.

Objection sustained, to which ruling plaintiffs
duly excepts.

Mr. Alford (reading) :

Q. Are you able to form a judgment as to
what it would cost to replace that timber, Mr. Ol-
=on?

Defendant makes same objection as last above.

Objection sustained, to which ruling plaintiffs
duly except.

Mr. Alford: T offer to shéw by this testimony
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that it would have cost in the neighborhood of §75
to replace that timber,

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the offer
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial; it
is not shown that this was part of the damage com-
plained of.

Objection sustained, to which ruling plaintiffs
duly except.

Mr. Alford (reading):

Q. The question as I asked it, Mr. Olson, is
whether you are able to form a judgment as to
what it would cost; that would call for an answer
“Yes” or “No”?

Mr. Spencer: Defendants make same objec
tion as before. And I renew my objection as to
that inguiry.

Objection sustained, to which ruling plaintiffs
duly except.

Mr. Alford (reading):

Q. You are able to form that judgment?

A. Yes; that is what I would put it at if [
was going to put a bid on it myself.

Q. As I understand you, your work consisted
in simply restoring the dock?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion.

Objection overruled.
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Mr. Spencer: Defendant moves to strike out
all of the evidence of this witness for the reason
that it is not shown that he is a competent and
qualified witness to testify as to what the reason-
able value of the repairs made was; and also for
the further reason that these repairs that were
made were made some 6 months or may be a year
afterwards and the time of the repairs is 80 remote
from the actual time that any damages that were
mflictod were infiicted that a thousand ships may
run against it in the meantime; and for the further
reason that the repairs that this man said he made
are not tied up or connected in any way by his
testimony, at least with the fact of the actual
damages that were inflicted by this ship, if any
were; oT, in other words, it is not shown that the
work that this man did was directed to the repairs
inflicted by this steamboat. And I move to strike
out the whole of his evidence for that reason.

The Court: I don’t think I have admitted any
evidence that T ought te have excluded. I will
let the evidence stand. Tt don’t seem to me as of
very much value as it stands there.

To which ruling defendant duly excepts.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs offer in evidence the
deposition of Mr. George Vincent.
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Mr, Alford (reading):

INTERROGATORIES TO BE PROPOUNDED
BY LIBELLANTS.

First Interrogatory: State your full name,
To the first interrogatory the witness deposes
and says: George E. Vincent.

Second Interrogatory: Where did you reside
during the year 1905 and until the fall of 19067

To the second interrogatory the witness de-
poses and says: Duluth, Minnesota,

Third Interrogatory: Were you at the time
familiar with the property known as the City
dock?

To the third interrogatory the witness deposes
and says: Yes.

Fourth Interrogatory: What, if anything, did
you have to do with it?

To the fourth interrogatory the witness de-
poses and says: I was agent for the owners In
looking after the property generally. If repairs
were needed I looked after that, It was part of my
work to see that the dock was kept in good shape.

Fifth Interrogatory: Did you, at the time it
was done, know of the Steamer 8. C. Reynolds hav-
ing tied up there in the latter part of November,
19057

To the fifth interrogatory the witness deposes
and says: Yes,
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Sixth Interrogatory: Describe, if you can,
the condition of the dock at the place the Reynolds
tied up before she went there,

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the in-
terrogatory. He does not state there that he knows
of his own knowledge where the Reynolds lay or
that he saw her there.

Mr. Alford: IIe certainly does, Mr. Spencer.

Mr. Spencer: I don’t understand it that way.
At least he does not say that he saw it or anything
more than heard of it,

Mr. Alford: e said he is familiar with the
property known as the City dock at the time.

Mr. Spencer: Just read what he says.

Mr. Alford: This is the beginning of the
third interrogatory. “Were you at that time fa-
miliar with the property known as the City dock?
Yes.”

The Court: Is that the one your motion is in
relation to?

Mr. Spencer: No, later on,

Mr. Alford (reading):
“What, it anything, did you have to do with

Mr. Spencer: To do with what?

Mr. Altord:  City dock is what was referred to
in the preceding question. Answer: I was agent
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for the owners in looking after the property gen-
erally. If repairs were needed I looked after that.
It was part of my work to see that the dock was
kept in good shape. Did you at the time it was
done know of the Steamer 8. C. Reynolds having
tied up there in the latter part of November. 1905.”

Mr. Spencer: T object to that for the reasom
the question is indefinite. “At the time you did
it.” At the time you did what? That is not suffi-
ciently intelligible at least to me to know what
counsel means nor does it appear 1o me to convey
sufficient information for a witness to answer. The
question is: At the time you did it did you know
of the Reynolds having been tied up there? Now,
what does he mean by that?

" The Court: If there is any uncertainty in re-
lation to it that would have been developed on
cross examination. When he asked the witness if
he knows that at the time that he does know, if he
answers that he does.

Objection overruled.

Mr. Spencer: I would like to have you read
that question once more.

Mr. Alford (reading): “Did you at the time
it was done know of the Steamer 8. C. Reynolds
having tied up there in the latter part of Novem-
ber, 1905?”

Mr, Spencer: Now, what is meant there, at
the time it was done, the time the repairs were
made or at the time the damage was done?
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The Court: The time the steamer was tied up
there is the question.

Mr, Spencer: Possibly tha’ is what it means.

Mr. Alford: The answer is “Yes.”

Mr. Alford (reading}:

“Describe, if you can, the condition of the
dock at the place the Reynolds tied up before she
went there?” To the sixth interrogatory the wit-
ness deposes and says: It was in good shape.
All that part at and anywhere near where the
Reynolds was tied had been thoroughly overhauled
the spring before. All bad or defective piles and
other timbers had been replaced with new., That
was done across the entire face of the dock.

Seventh Interrogatory: Did you go to the
dock at the time the Reynolds was there?

To the seventh interrogatory the witness de-
poses and says: Yes,

Eighth Interrogatory: If you have answered
the seventh interrogatory in the affirmative, de-
geribe what you saw.

To the eighth interrogatory the witness de-
poses and says: I saw her pounding the dock. A
swell would come up, 1ift her ap and throw her
over against the dack, and as she would come down
her weight wounld fall upon the edge of the dock.
Lvery timne this happencd she would smash the
dock and break it up more or less. She had her
lines on all the snubbing posts, oth along the face
and over on the slip side of tlie dock. They were
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ahout all either loosened or pulled out. Some
were broken.

Ninth Interrogatory: Did you examine the
dock after the Reynolds left?

To the ninth interrogator the witness deposes
and says: Yes.

Tenth Tnterrogatory: If your answer to the
ninth interrogator is “Yes,” describe the condition
of the dock at the point where the Reynolds was
tied, stating the time you made such examination.

To the tenth interrogatory the witness deposes
and says: I examined the wreck part within a day
or two after it happened. Besides the damage to
the snubbing posts, she broke up the dock where
she lay long side for about twenty feet in. The pil-
ing was loosened. A good many were broken. The
capping and other timbers were broken comsider-
ahly. The platform was torn up. The roof was
sprung out of shape. The building itself was
sprung there, so that a door opposite would not
open.

Fleventh Interrogatory: State whether you
acted for the libellants in procuring the repair of
the dock,

To the cleventh interrogatory, the witness de-
poses and says: None except the snubbing posts
I have mentioned. But the Reynolds had her lines
on them, and where the building and roof were
sprung. That was near where some piling, partly
supporting the building, were torn out.

(There is no Twelfth Interrogatory.)
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To the twelfth interrogatory the witness de
poses and says: Yes, '

Thirteenth Interrogatory: If to the interrog-
atory last above, you testify that you did so act
for libellants, tell what person or concern you en-
deavored to get to do the work.

To the thirteenth interrogatory the witness de-
poses and ays: I saw every concern I knew of
engaged in that sort of work. There was MacLeod
& Smith, Napoleon Grignon, Whitney Bros. of Su-
perior and also a party MacLeod & Smith referred
me to, I don’t recall his name.

R. C. VINCENT, direct examination of, resumed:

By Mr. Alford:

Q. Mr, Vincent, do you recall the exact
amount you paid for the work,of having this dock
restored from the damage that has been referred to

here?
A. My recollection of it is 900—

Mr. Spencer: Defendant moves to strike out
the answer of the witness on the ground it is not
responsive.

Motion granted.

Mr. Alford:

Q. Do you remember the exact amount, Mr.
Vincent?

A, Well, within a few dollars.
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The Court:

2. Do you remember? Amnswer the question
Yes or No.

A, Yes

Mr. Alford:
Q. You may state what it was.

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion for the reason that what he paid for it is not
a measure of damages, It may have been three or
four times what it was worth.

Objection sustained, to which ruling plaintiffs
duly except.

Mr. Alford:

Q. You may state the fact, Mr. Vincent, as
to whether this work that Whitney Brothers did-
relatad exclusively to the restoration of the dock
from the damage done by the Reynolds?

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion for the reason that it is not shown that this
witness knows exactly what the damage done by
the Steamer Reynolds was. It is not shown that
he saw the Reynolds when it was there, that he
knows what damage the Reynolds did.

. The Court: He saw it two days after.

Mr. Spencer: I am not sure that the witness
says that he saw the Reynolds there at all.

The Court: He says he did not see the
Reynolds there but he says that he was there two
days afier and examined the condition of the dock.
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Mr. Spencer: So far as he knows there may
have been other vessels collided with that and so
far as he knows or his evidence has up to this time
shown, he does not know what damage the Rey-
nolds did. e was not there. He did not see it.

The Court: It has been shown what the
Reynolds Aid. He was there two days after in the
morning. Whether it was two days after the
Reynolds left or not I am not sure.

The Witness: The same day the Reynolds left
I was there. They told me at the dock she left that
day. T did not see her, though.

Q. (Question repeated by reporter): “You
may state the fact, Mr. Vincent, as to whether this
work that Whitney Brothers did related exclusive-
ly to the restoration of the dock from the damage
done by the Reynolds?”

A, Tt did.

Mr. Alford:
(). Now, Mr. Vincent, can you state the
amount that was paid for this work of restoration?

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion for the reason before stated several times.

Objection sustained.

Alr. Alford:
(). What was the damage to the dock, Mr.
Vincent?

Mr, Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion for the reason that it is not shown that this
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witness has any competency to testify as to that
question as to what damage was dome. It is not
shown he did any repair to that or knew what was
necessary to be done or anything of that sort. e
gimply is the owner.

The Court: An owner has a right to testify to
valte whether he has any experience or mnot.
Whether that would apply to this i problemati-
cal but it is possible that this witness, who has
Leen a lumberman nearly all his life, may quality
a8 an expert.

Mr. Spencer: My objection is that up to the
present time that it does not appear that he is
qualified.

The Court: I am not sure that it is necessary
that he should. But I assume for the present that
it is,

Mr. Alford: The Court sustains that objec-
tion”

The Court: I have not, no, but I snggest te
counsel that he show the competency of this wit
ness. I don’t know as he is competent.

Mr. Alford:

Q. Do you know the amount of damage done
to this dock by the Steamer Reynolds?

A, 1 do.

Q. You may state what it was?

Mr, Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion for the same reason stated before,
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The Court: The objectior. is to his compe-
tency. I have not held yet whether the rule in re-
lation to value will be applicable here. I have not
held in relation to that. I suggest that you ex-
amine him as to his competency to estimate the
damage.

Mr. Alford:

(). What has been your business, Mr. Vin-
cent, since you have been in Duluth?

A. Well, principally lumber business and
sawmill business.

(). Are you familiar with the values of lum-
her, timher?

A T am.

(). And have you been?

A, Yes, sin

(). Have you also been familiar with the
process of determining the valie of such work as
this; that is, such as the restoration of the City
dock would require?

A. Yes, sir. I was active 40 years ago. With
10 years’ experience I could make an estimate of
that and tell within a few dollars of what it would
cost as well as today. A man with my experience,
with 40 vears in the lumber business—

Q. You have answered the question, Mr. Vin-
cent. And did von determine zhe amount of dam-
age which was done to the City dock?

A, T did.

(). Now, you may state the amount of dam
age done to the City dock by the Reynolds?

A %1,000.
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Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the geus-
tion for the reason that it seems to me doubtful
whether the witness has shown his competency to
testify to this. It is not shown that he knew the
reasonable value of the labor entering into it nor
the scientific skill required to make the repairs, et
cetera.

The Court:
Q. You examined the dock after it was in-
jured, Mr. Vincent?
Yes, sir.
Thoroughly?
Yes, sir,
Above and below?
All over it, where it was—
You stated you knew the price of timber,
Fou knew the price of labor?
A.  Yes, sir, price of driving piles.
Q. And the price of piles?
A, Yes, sir.

croper

The Court: He may answer. He did answer,
I think, $1,000.

Mr. Alford:

Q. XNow, Mr. Vincent, state, if you can, the
amount you paid Whitney Brothers for their work
in restoring the dock in so far as they did it?

Mr, Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion for the reason it ig irrelevant and immaterial.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs offer to show by this
witness that he paid Whitney Brothers for the
worz they did the sum of $£932.09.
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Mr, Spencer: Defendant objects to the offer.

Objection sustained, to which ruling plaintiffs
duly except.

Mr. Alford:

Q. Now, Mr. Vincent, do you know the value
of the property, City dock property, before the in-
jury was done?

A. Yes, sir,

(). State what it was, if you can?

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion for the reason that it is irrelevant and im-
material as to what that dock property was worth.
The only legitimate subject of inquiry is, what
damage is done and what it would cost to make
the repairs.

The Court: I don’t know -what counsel’s idea
is in asking the question. There is no question here
as to the value of the property.

Mr. Alford: The purpose is to show the value
before and after,

The Court: Well, that is another means of ar-
riving at the same result that you have now ar-
rived at. Mr. Vincent swears the damages were
a thousand dollars. If it was worth $50,000 before
and it was worth $149,000 afterwards you have the
same damages, a thousand dollars.

Gbjection sustained.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs offer to show by this
witness that prior to this injury to the dock by the
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Steamer Reynolds the property was worth $23,-
000. '

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the offer.
Objection sustained.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs offer to show by this
witness that prior to the injury to the dock by the
S. C. Reynolds the property was worth $23,000 and
that afterwards it was worth $22,000.

The Court: That would arrive at just what
the Court has allowed you to ask and the witness
to answer, the damage of a thousand dollars. And
the objection is sustained. It is mere repetition.

To which ruling plaintiffs duly excepts.

LOROSS EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Spencer:

Q. You say, Mr. Vincent, you did not see the
Reynolds lying at the dock?

A, T did not.

Q. Not any of the time while she was there?

A. No, sir.

Q. You did not see the Reynolds inflict any
damages to the dock, did you?

A. No, sir.

Q. Who was operating the dock at the time?

A. Jesse Norton, or the City Dock company,

Q. IFor what purposes was it being used?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross examination.
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Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. You say the vessel pcunded against the
dock for 48 hours. You don’t know that of your—

Mr. Alford: That is objected to.
A. T think my statement was that I—
Mr. Alford: Just a moment, Mr, Vincent.

The Court: I was not aware the witness so
testified.

Mr. Spencer: He said the vessel pounded
against the dock for about 48 hours.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. You don’t know that of your own knowl-
edge, do you? .

A. No. I did not testify to that, either.

Q. YYhat did you say?

A. I said T was there about 48 hours after
the vessel had pounded the dock. That was about
48 hours.

(). After the vessgel had pounded the dock?

A, Yes, sir, but I did not see her.

(3. 1 understood you to say the vessel pound-
ed the dock 48 hours. You dor’t know whether the
vessel pounded it for one hour, do you?

A. T did not testify to anything of the kind.

Q. Of your own knowledge you don’t know
whether the vessel pounded against the dock one
hour, do you?

A. No, sir ‘
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Mr. Alford:. 1 chject to that,
(No ruling.)

Mr. Spencer:

Q. You don’t know of your own knowledge
that the vessel ever touched that dock, do you?

A. Not of my own knowledge, no.

Q. You had the damage that you found there
after the Reynolds had left, you found that dam-

“age to this dock, estimated— you had that property

examined by Mr. Grignon, did you?

A. Not myself. I think my son did.

3. He was acting as your agent, was he?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know what Mr. Grignon’s esti-
mate was for making the repairs to your dock?

A. No, I do not.

). Never was told?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the guestion
on the ground it is not proper cross examination

Ohbjection sustained.

Plaintiffs rest.

Mr. Spencer: Defendant moves to dismiss
this case at this time for the reason that the plain-
tiffs have not made out a case and have not shown
what the reasonable value of the damages—what
the reasonable value of making these repairs was
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and for the further reason he has not shown any
neglect or want of care or any default in doing
what ought to have been done on the part of this
steamboat. The evidence shows that this dock was
there heing operated as a merchandise dock; that
this vessel had freight to deliver to it, which it
received, and that while it was there this great
storm arose. Now, there is nothing up to the pres-
ent time to show that this steamer was in default
of anything. The mere happening of events is not
sufficient to fix liability on this steamboat. It
was rightfully where it was. There is no evidence
to show that they were ever asked to go away or
that their attention was ever called to any
jnjuries that it might inflict or that it was in
any way guilty of the sins of omission or commis-
sion in any way., All of whick, it appears to me,
must be done; some showing at least must be made
hefore the case can be maintained and particularly
as to the matter of damages. No proper share of
damages has been shown here up to the present
time and there is no evidence shown of what the
actual damages done were.

Motion denied, to which ruling defendant duly
excepts.
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T. C. HERRICK, being duly sworn as a witness on
behalf of defendant, testifies as follows: -

DIRECT EXAMINATION,

By Mr. Spencer:

Q. What is your name, Captain?

A. T. C. Herrick.

Q. What is your occupation?

A. T have been a marine man.

Q. You are a sailor by occupation?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. How long, Captain, have you led a sea-
faring life?

A, All my lifetime.

Q. And how old are you at the present time?

A. 60 years old.

Q. What character and class of vessels have
you sailed heretofore?

A. Al classes.

Q. In what capacities have you sailed the
ships?

A. From cabin boy up to master.

Q. On what waters has your experience as a
seagoing man heen confined?

A. The Great Lakes principally.

Q. 1In the year 1905, November, 1903, were
you a regularly licensed officer?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Licensed by the United States govern-
Iment,

A. Yes, sir.
Q. To what class of ships was your license
confined?
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A. My license was unlimited.

Q. Extending over all the waters of the
Great Lakes?

A. Yes, sir

Q. What do you mean by your license being
unlimited?

A. There is no limit on them. I could take
any ship on the lakes.

(. No matter how large or how small?

A. No.

Q. And in November of 1305 what ship were
you master of?

A. 8. C. Reynolds.

Q. The steamer 8. C. Reynolds. How long
had you been sailing the steamer 8. (. Reynolds 294
prior to the 27th and 28th of November, 19057

A. I went in the Reynolds about 5 years,

(. You have been in the Reynolds for five
years?

A. Prior to that time. Five or six years.

(). What class of steamships had you been
sailing prior to the time you went into the
Reynolds?

A. Same class,

(). Same class of steamboats?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And how many years have you been a li- 925
censed master of steam vessels?

A. T have got my 25th iszue,

(). That would continue over a period of how
many years?

A. Well, the last three has been for five
years,

Q. Well, for how many‘ Fears?

223
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A. 30, 35 or 40 years I have had a license.
2. And how long have you been freighting to
Duluth?
A. Off and on 10 or 15 years,
Q. What size ship is the steamer 8. C.
226 Reynolds?
A.  She is—her tonnage is 1,104.
Q. 1,104 tons?
A, Yes, sir,
Q. And how long is the ship?
A. She is bigger than that. She is 1,604.
Q. What is the length of the Steamer Rey-
nolds?
A.  She is 255 feet keel.
). 1,604 gross tons?
A, Net tons. She is 1,800 gross, little over.
(). Now, what is the length of the Reynolds
227  over all?
A, About 268.
Q. 268 feet long?
A. Yes, sir,
Q. And what is her beam, her width?
A, 40 feet.
Q. 40 feet wide?
A. Yes, sir,
Q. Of what material is the ship constructed?
A, Bteel.
Q. Steel vessel?
A, Yes, gir.
228 ). Provided with water hottom?
A, Yes, sir.
Q. Do you remember the occasion of the big
storm. that occurred in Duluth on the 27th and 28th
. of November, 19052
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. When did the Reynolds reach port on that
occasion, port of Duluth?

A. Why, I think it was the morning of the
27th.

Q. The morning of the 27th?

A, Yes, sir,

(). In what line of steamships was the Rey-
nolds being operated that season?

A. She was chartered by the Anchor Line.

Q. She was operated by the Anchor Line peo-
ple?

A. Yes, sir; under charter.

Q. You carried freight to Duluth all of the
season of 19057

A, Yes, sir,

Q. Tor that company?

A. Yes, sir.

(). And at their dock in the city of Duluth
was freight delivered by your vessel during the
season of 19057

A. Well, we delivered fraight to almost all
the railroad docks and the City dock.

Q. And on the occasion in question did the
Reynolds go to the City dock at any time on the
27th of November?

A, Yes, gir.

(). Where did you go to that dock?

A. T had freight to put off there. I was or-
dered there.

(). You had freight consigned to that deck?

A.  Yes, sir,

(). And having freight consigned to that dock
you went to deliver it, did you?
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Yes, sir.
Where was the vessel placed at the dock?
We landed on the face of the dock.
Who placed it there?
The freightmen told me where they want-
ed the freight and I put the boat there,

Q. Did you make fast your vessel to any por-
tion of the dock? Whereabouts on the dock did
you tie up, along side the side of the dock or at

oo

the outer end?

A. On the face of the dock, on the bay side.

Q. Where would the face of the dock be with
respect to the harbor?

A. It would be on the west side—mnot the
west side; south side.

). The harbor end of the dock?

A. 1 was heading about east, pretty near
cast and west.

(). That would be across the outer end of the
dock?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. 'Which side of your vessel was placed next
to the dock?

A. Port side.

(). When you speak of the port side of the
ship what do you mean, the right hand side or the
left hand side as you are facing the bows?

A. This is the port side,

(). The left hand side of your ship then is
the port side?

A. Yes, sir,

(). And the right hand side is called what?

A. Starboard side.
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Q. And the head end of your ship is called

A. Bow or forward end.

Q. The hind end i called what?

A. After end.

Q. Your vessel wag placed, you say, by the
freightmen at the outer end of the dock, the port
side next to the dock?

A, Yas, sir.

(). Vhat was then done?

A. Putiing off freight.

(). What time did your vessel reach the City
Dock on that ccasion?

A, Well, T think it is about 5 ¢’clock.

Q. At 5 o'clock?

A We worked a little while before supper.

Q. And how was your vessel made fast?

A. Made fast to spiles on the dock.

Q. And in the way that you usually do?

A. Yes, sir

(). Was this outer end of the dock the usual
place at that City Dock where cargoes were re-
ceived by the dock?

A. VWell, sometimes we put them in the slip.
I have heen in the slip on the west side.

Q. Yes, but have you also delivered it at
other times, cargo, to this same location?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial.

Obiection sustained.

Mr. Spencer:
Q. ‘What were the weather conditions at the
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time you went to the dock about 5 o’clock, cap-
tain?

A. Conditiong were all right. I went there
alone without any assistance and—

Q. T hand you defendant’s exhibit 1 which
is a chart of the harbor of Duluth made by the
United States engineers. 1 would like to have you
designate, captain, whereabouts the City Dock is
located, Here i the Duluth canal?

A. The dock is right in here some place.

{The point indicated by the witness is marked
“X" by the reporter.)

Mr. Spencer: Defendant offers in evidence
defendant’s exhibit 1 at this time.

Defendant’s exhibit 1 is received in evidence
witaout objection.

" Mr. Alford: Do you intend to follow this
up, Mr. 8pencer, with some testimony from which
the jury can understand just where the City Dock
was?

Mr. Spencer: Yes,

Mr. Alford: The jury cannot understand any-
thing from this. With that understanding I have
no objection.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. You say your cargo was hegun to be dis-
charged from the vessel about 5 o’clock p. m.
Was there anything at that time, captain, to in-
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dicate any danger or any unususl conditions as to
the weather?

A. Nothing unusual.

Q. And how long did the discharging of
cargo continue?

A. Why, T think it was abcut 10:30 or 10:45,
somewheres along there.

Q. How much freight did you have to de
liver at that place?

A. I could not tell you exactly the amount.

(). Oh, approximately. I do not care within
g pound or two. Had enough to keep the dock
people busy. did you, from the time you went there
until you left?

A. Yes, gir; very busy. About an hour be-
fore supper and then after supper until 10:30,
10 :45.

(). Tlow many men constituted your crew
at that time,

A, My crew?

Q. Yes. How many did you have on board
the vessel?

A. 22, my crew; that ig, all told.

(). 'What was the regular number of crew
required by you to be carried?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is incompetent ; also as irrelevant
and immaterial,

Mr. Spencer: 1 want to show this ship was
well officered, well manned and well kept.

Ubjection overruled.
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Mr. Spencer:

Q. That was the regular crew that your ship
was required to carry?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How many licensed officers did you have
aboard?

A. There was two pilots besides myself and
two engineers, licensed men.

Q. And your first and second mates were
licensed officers?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Aud the engineers were licensed officers?

A, Yes.

Q. Now, what were the weather conditions at
half past ten after your freight had been dis-
charged at this dock?

A. Conditions were very bad at half past 10.

Q. You say they were very bad. In what
way were the weather conditions bad?

A. The wind freshened up. I think it began
to freshen up about 8 o’clock in the evening.

Q. How, very much?

A. Very strong, yes, sir.

). And which way was that from?

A, Why, about east-northeast,

Q. And how did that strike your vessel?

A. Struck me on the bluff of the bow.

. Omn which bow?

A, Btarboard bow.

Q. Was it gnowing any?

A. Snowing very hard.

Q. 1 mean at half past 10 that night?

A. Yes.
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Q. Anpd what efforts did you make to leave
the dock after your freight was consigned?

A. I sent the mate to the telephone for tugs.
Got a reply back that they would not send any.

\r. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the answer on
the ground it is not responsive and move it be
gtricken out,

Motion granted.

Mr. Spencer:

. What efforts did you make to get away
from the dock after your cargo was discharged
there?

A. I could not make any efforts. I could not
get mo assistance.

(). Was it necessary for you to have assist-
ance to get away from the dock?

A, Yes, sir

Q. Why could you not get away from the
dock alone; you went there alone?

A. It was blowing too hard, blowing right on
to the dock.

(). hat rate of speed in your judgment was
the wind blowing at half past 10 o’clock that night?

A, On, it must have been blowing 50 or 60
niile an hour then.

Q. And what ahout the darkness of the night,
was it a dark or a light night?

A. A very, very blustery and snow.

(). How thick did the spow fall?

A, Very thick.

(). Did it obstruct the atmosphere?

-
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A. Very much, yes, sir; could not see any-
thing.

Q. What about the sea?

A. The sea began to make and undertow com-
ing into the piers. That was coming in there along
before they got the freight off.

Q. Did you give any signals for tugs?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are there regular signals recognized in
the harbor of Duluth when vessels require assist-
ance?

A, Yes, sgir,

Q. Are there a set of signals which are rec-
ognized by tugmen for such purposes?

A. Yes, qir.

Q. What signals, if any, did you give for a

A. Four whistles.

Q. Did you sound any signals for assistance
that night?

A. Two or three different times.

Q. 7Two or three different times?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And at what time in the night?

A, Well, from 11 o’clock—from 10:45 until
1 o’clock in the morning. 1 tried to get a tug and
I could not do it.

Q. How far were you from the tug office at
that time?

A. Just across the slip. You could see the
light in the tug office.

Q. Within about how many feet—How many
feet distant were you from the tug office?

A. Oh, it could not have been—
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Q. Oh, approximately?

A. May be three or 400 feet.

Q. Were there tugs in the harbor at that time
whose business it was to tow vessels and render
them assistance?

A. Yes, sir.

(). What concern operated that line of tugs?

Mr. Alford: Dlaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial.

Objection overruled.

A. Union Tow and Wrecking Company.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. Did they have steam tugs employed for the
exclusive purpose of towing vessels?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Go on and state all the efforts you made
to get assistance to enable you to get away from
that dock at half past 10 or thereafter?

A. I sent the mate to the telephone in the
first place. Then T kept blowing the whistle.

(. Did you—

A. Tug signals,

(). Did any tug make its appearance to ren-
der vou assistance?

A. They come down to the corner of the dock
opposite me and hollered they would not come up
te us.

AL Alford: TPlaintiffs object to the answer
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial and
hearsay and ask that it be stticken out.
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Motion granted.

Q. (Question repeated by reporter): “Did
any tug make its appearance to render you assist-
anee?”’

A, No.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. What other effort did you make to obtain
assistance other than by telephoning for a tug and
alzo blowing signals for it?

A. I had no other way; could not get there
myself and it was the only way I could call a tug
was by signals,

Q. In your judgment would it have been a
prudent thing for you to have attempted to move
vour ship without assistance on that occasion dur-
ing the night of November 27th?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial.

Objection overruled, to which ruling plaintiffs
duly except.

A. No, it would not have been a prudent
thing.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. How long did this gale of wind continue,
Captain?

A. T think I was there on the 28th until
about 2 o’clock on the 29th before I got assistance
and got away from the dock.

Q. You were there all of the 28th, were you?

A, Yes, sir.
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Q. And until the afternoon of the 29th. Did
you make any effort on the 28th to obtain tugs?

A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did this wind continue?
A.  Yes, sir.

Q. During the 28th what was the violence of
the wind?

A. Tt was very, very strong; in the neighbor-
hood of 70 miles an hour.

). And from what direction?

A. From the northeast, east-northeast.

Q. And was it accompanied with heavy
snow?

A. Yes, sir; occasional snow squalls, jurries.

(). State, Captain, if you had made any at-
{empt to move your ship on the evening of the 27th
of November what, in your judgment, would have
been the probable result?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial.

Mr. Bpencer:
(). Taking into consideration the wind and
weather and blackness of the night?

(No ruling.)

A. In the first place I could not get away
from the dock. If I let go my lines and she had
oot away from the dock, why, she would have been
all off ag quick as that (illustrating by a snap of
the fingers).

(). Wbhat do you mean by “would have been
all off as quick as that?”
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A. The wind was blowing strong so we could
not do anything with her. She would be like a
feather. My bow was light and I would have to
run on my quarter.

Q. Would it have been a prudent thing so
far as the safety of your ship is concerned and the
Lives of your crew to have allowed your ship to get
away from the dock without assistance during the
night of the 27th?

A. No.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the guestion
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial and
move the answer be stricken out.

Objection overruled and motion denied.

Mr. Spencer:

3. What efforts had you made to get away
from the dock during this following day, Novemher
28th? ,

A.. It was about as severe the next day as it
was the night before.

Q. And what efforts did you make to get
away from the dock at that time? ‘

A. 1 could pot get away. I could not make
any effort until I got assistance,

Q. Did you make any effort to get assistance
on the 28th?

A.  All the time.

Q. 'What did those efforts consist of?

A. Blowing my signals for tugs.

Q. Anpd did the storm continue all of the
28th?
A. Yes, sir.
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Q. With heavy snow?

A. Well, yes; occasionally let up a little.

(). And did it continue through the night of
the 28th?

A. Yes, sir

Q. And what time did you finally succeed in
vetting away from the dock?

A. I think it was about between 1 and 3
o’clock.

Q. Of what day?

A, 29th, I guess.

Q. How did you finally succeed in getting
away from the dock?

A. Tug come and pulled me away; the wind
moderated.

Q. What can you say as to the height of the
seas that came acrosg the bay at that time where
you were lying after half past 10 o’clock of No-
vember 27th?

A. Well, that is pretty hard thing to esti-
mate, the height of them seas.

Q. Well, was it an unusual sea?

A. No, not ap unusual sea with the wind
northeast, no.

(). What was it that prevented you then from
leaving the dock, the wind or the sea?

A. The wind and sea both.

(). Was the wind an unusual wind?

A. Very unusual, yes, sir.

Q. And how long did that storm continue
with the violence that you have already stated?

A. Continued all night of the 27th.

(. What about the following day?

A, Tollowing day was just the same.

265

266

267



268

269

270

— 90—

Q. And when did it begin to abate?

A. About noon of the 29th, a little before
noon it began to abate, '

Q. What is that?

A. Tt began to abate just a little before noon,
so I got away there just after dinner, 2 or 3
o’clock,

Q. Tllustrate to the jury, if you can, the vio-
lence of this storm. Did you ever know anything
equzl to that in all your experience, Captain$

Mr. Alford: Plaintiff ohject to the question on
the ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and imma-
terial.

The Court: Well, was it unusual, uncommon?
Whether he had experienced such a storm as that,
I don’t know as that would make any difference,
but speaking from his experience he can state the
extent of the storm.

Mr. Spencer: That is the idea I wish to bring
out,

Mr, Spencer:

Q. Speaking from your experience go on and
state something as to the—

A. It was the most severe storm 1 ever saw
or ever experienced.

@. Go on and state something of the visible
effects that this storm produced.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Mr. Spencer: It is quite material for this rea-
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son: The defense in this case is that it was an in-
evitable accident; that this ship was placed at this
dock by the owner of the dock, placed at a place
where it had a right to be and that a gale from the
northieast arose; that the whole north shore of
Lake Superior and Duluth harbor was strewn with
wrecks—

The Court: We won’t go into that. That was
heard by one of the members of this court and
stricken from your answer, an allegation of that
kind.

Mr. Spencer: That allegation was stricken
but that would not prevent evidence being intro-
duced to show what the severity of the gale was.

The Court: You can show that. You have
shown it

(). (Question repeated by reporter): “Go
on and state something of the visible effects that
this storm produced?

The Court: That is proper if confined to that
dock and boat. If you are reaching outside of that
the objection is sustained.

Mr. Spencer:

(). State what the visible effects in that im-
mediate locality were?

A. One thing it was impossible to look to the
northward. I could not see 10 feet, could not look
to northward; just glance occasionally.

(3. Why not?

A.  On account of the snow and the hail and
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storm, severity of the wind and elements and snow.

Q. 'Well, after the snow had subsided so that
the surrounding situation became visible what did
you see as to the effects of the storm in that imme-
diate locality?

Mr, Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and im-
material.

The Court: So far as the dock and his boat
are concerned. -

Mr. Spencer: I have not limited it to that.
The Court: I think I will limit it to that.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. T will ask you, Captain, what the effect
of that storm was in the Duluth harbor at that
iime in the immediate vicinity of Duluth?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial,

Objection sustained, to which ruling defend-
ant duly excepts.

Mr. Spencer: 1 desire to show by this wit-
ness-— .

Mr. Alford: I object to the counsel stating.

The Court: Submit your offer in writing, if
there is objection to it.

Mr. Spencer: I desire to show by this witness
that the gale in. question was the most severe
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known in the history of Lake Superior navigation.
That the effect of the storm in the Duluth harbor
in the immediate vicinity of Duluth was extremely
disastrous. That at least a dozen of the larger
ships were wrecked in the immediate vicinity of
Thluth and a large number of lives were lost. That
the storm amounted in its proportion to a hurri-
cane and that this situation prevailed all of the
time that this vessel lay at this dock.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs make same objection
as before.

Ohbjection sustained.

The Court: You may show everything about
the storm. We won’t go into the effects of it out-
side.

Mr. Bpencer:

(). What was the visible effects of the storm,
Captain, so far as your ship and this dock were
concerned?

A. It was a very severe storm,

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to that on the
ground it is not responsive to the question and
move the answer be stricken out.

Motion granted.

(). (Question repeated by reporter): “What
was the visible effects of the storm, Captain, so far
as your ship and this dock were concerned?”

A, What was the effects of the storm?

-
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Mr. Spencer:

Q. Yes,

A. The effects was— I was there and could
not get away. That is about all T can say.

Q. Did you notice any effect that the sea had
on this City dock?

A, Yes, sir,

Q. What effect did it have on the City dock?

A. Why, rolled up under the dock and
washed plank, washed the top of the dock off.

Q. What efforts did you make to avoid doing
any damage to the dock or to your ship?

A.  All efforts that T could possibly at the
time,

Q. Go on and state to the jury what you did?

A. I could not get away and T had to hang on.

Q. Could not get away and you had to hang
on. How did you hang on?

A. With my lines. Used up my lines hanging
ou there.

Q. D1id you put out any more lines than you
usually put out?

A. Oh, yes.

(). What sort of lines did you put out? What
kind of lines did you have cut, Captain?

A. T had all the way from 2-inch up to 7-inch
lines,

(). You used lines T inches in diameter?

A, Yes, sie. Not generally for working lines.
{ have them, though.

Q. Well, but on this occasion you had—3What
kind of lines were they, hawsers or steel lines, ma-
nilla lines or what?

A, Manilla lines,
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Q. And the largest one you had out was how
large in diameter?

A. 7 inches,

(). Seven inches through it. And where did
you have that out, forward or aft or amidships?

A. T had that out amidships, leading both
ways, both forward and aft.

Q. Your ship was attached to this City dock
then?

A, Yes, sir.

(). By some lines that were 7 inches in di-
ameter?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And what effect did it have on your lines?

A. Chafed them up and broke them. I kept
my crew busy all night long replacing them as fast
as they would part.

Q. Could you get out on to the dock after
vour freight was discharged?

A, Yes. My watchman got out there. He
liad to get out there and get lines. My watchman
a0t out there with their rubber boots on.

).  And how was your ship fastened forward?
How was the forward part of your ship fastened?

A. With manilla lines,

(). And what wag it fastened to?

A. Spiles on the dock.

). And was that the usual place?  Was
those placed there for the purpose of attaching
ships to them?

A. That is what they were put there for.

(). And how wasg it attached to the dock?
How was the bow part of your ship attached to the
dock? ‘
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A. Same way, with lines and spiles on the
doek.

Q. And were any of those lines broken dur-
ing the night?

A, Yes, sir

Q. What caused them to break?

A. The surge and reaction of the undertow.

Q. What effect did this 70-mile gale have up-
on your ship as to its lying quiet or not at its
mooring place?

A. It would not lie quiet. It was blowing us
right on to the dock with the undertow coming inj
she could not get away. ’

Q. At the time you went to that dock to dis-
charge cargo consigned to it was there anything
in the weather condition or the situation of the
dock or the weather conditions which gave you an
indication of any danger arising to your ship or to
the dock?

A. Not at all.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial.

Objection overruled.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. And when did it first become apparent to
you, Captain, that the wind was reaching such a
stage as to make it difficult or dangerous to move?

A, About 10 o’clock, quarter to 10, some-
wheres around that.

Q. And what effort did you make to obtain
assistance?

A. Nent the mate to the 'phone.
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Mr., Spencer: That answer may be stricken

289

(). Had you made any other arrangements

earlier in the evening for assistance, for tug to

come to you?

A. No, I had not made any arrangements.
(). What is the custom as to tugs responding

to signals for assistance when ships in the harbor

sound signals for them?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question

ont the ground it is immaterial.

The Court: He has stated that the signal was o9gq

four whistles.

Mr. Spencer: I wish to show that it is custo-

mary for tugs ordinarily to respond and come to
vessels when they whistle for them.

Objection overruled.

A. They answer with the same signal.

Mr. Spencer:

(. And when you blow for assistance do tugs

ordinarily come to your aid? 291

A. Yes, sir,

(). In the harber of Duluth?

" A, Yes, sir.

Q. How was the Reynolds at that time, load-

ed or light?

A, She was commparatively light.
Q. Did you have any carge in it?
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About 200 tons.
And where was that situated?
On deck.

- You say your ship was provided with wa-
ter bottom?

A, Yes, sir,

Q. Go on and state what efforts you took to
continue to ride out the storm there?

A. 1 filled my water bottoms,

Q. What effect did that have?

A. Not very much. My water bottoms are
small. They are only about 5 feet deep, carry may-
be 200 tons of water.

Q. Did the fact that your ship was light, that
it had a very small amount of cargo in it, add any-
thing to the difficulties of handling it?

A.  Yes, most decidedly so.

Q. Which is handled more easily in a wind,
a vessel flying light, having her sides high out of
the water, or one that is loaded down?

A. One that is loaded down.

Q. Aund did the fact that your vessel was
light with little or no cargo in it have any influ-
ence on your determination to remain there and
not attempt to get away?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Did that fact make it— Would it have
made it any more difficult to have handled your
ship had you attempted to leave the dock before
vou did?

A, Yes, sir,

Q.  And what additional effect would that
have ,the effect that it wasg light and not loaded?

A, The wind would have more pressure, more

Srep
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leverage on your hoat and blow her around when
she iz up above water than it would when she is
below. If my boat had gone 14 or 16 feet, some-
thing like that, it is a whode lot of difference with
the wind blowing whether she is down 14 feet or
only 6,

Q. It was your judgment, then, Captain, was
"it, as a navigator, that it would have been impru-
dent at any time during the night of the 27th
after your cargo wasg discharged to have attempted
to move your ship?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the guestion
on the ground it is immaterial.

The Court: The objection is sustained because
it 1s a repetition,

Mr., Spencer:

Q. What time in the day of the 29th did this
gale begin to subside?

A. Along about noon, somewheres around
there. The wind moderated along about 11 ¢o’clock,
something like that. It takes a little while for the
sea to run down after the wind moderates.

Q. Did you leave the dock as soon as you
could obtain assistance?

A. Just as soon as I got assistance, yes, sir.

(). Was there and possible means, Captain,
known to navigators that would have enabled you
to get away from that dock any sooper than you
did?

A. No, sir, T don’t think there is.
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CROSS EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Alford:
Q. Captain, were you on duty throughout

" that night?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. On what part of the ship were you sta-
tioned?

A, What do you mean, all night? 1 was in
all parts.

Q. And did you get off and on?

A. No, gir. Off and on the dock, you mean?
Q. Yes.

A. No, sir.

Q. You remained on hboard throughout the

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was that true as to the next day and un-
til you left?

A. Unptil T left there and got over in Supe-
rior I never left the ship, never got off of her deck.

(. Captain, are there two doorways for the
receipt of freight at the outer end of the dock?

A. The City dock?

(). Yes.

A. Two? Yes There is two, anyhow. I
don’t know but there is three. T am not sure about
that. But there is two.

Q. How many were working during the un-
loading process?

A. T could not tell you that. That is a little
out of my line, freight business. 1 was not looking
after the freight. I was looking after the ship.
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(). Can you tell the jury how the stern of the
Reynolds was situated with reference to the west-
erly side of the dock; that is, as to whether it
passed it to the west?

A. If it did it was a very little. We had our
lines on the— got good leads on our lines at the
stern end. I oversee that myself.

Q. If your stern passed the end it was very
little?

A. I think perhaps may be a little,

Q. Did you have your lines than attached to
all of the hitching posts along the end of the dock?
A. Every post we could see, get a hold of.

(). And is that true as to some of the hitch-
ing posts along the slip as well?

A. DPerhaps so; get a lead by the slip; might
have went by a couple of spiles, perhaps.

(). After the unloading process was com-
pleted did you shift the vessel forward somewhat?

A. No, sir. After unloading?

Q. Yes,

A. No, no. My dear man I would have been
¢nly too glad to have got out of there.

Q). How is that?

A. 1 shifted at supper time.

(). Oh, at supper time?

A, Yes.

(). Then the position in which you placed
the bhoat during the supper interval was the one
at which vou kept it throughour the time it was
tied to the City dock?

A. Yes, sir
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Mr. Spencer:

(3. You mean to say you shifted the Reynolds
after it came to dock?

A. Yes, sir, We came there and worked
about an hour before supper and when they
knocked off at supper we shifted one gangway
ahead or one door, whatever they call it. That was
done by steam capstans,

Mr. Alford:

. How far forward was the vessel moved?

A.  Oh, probably 40 feet, something like that.
Just a gangway.

Q). Then in testifying that the stern of the
vessel passed the west side, west edge of the dock
very little, if any, were you referring to this last
pogition or to the first one?

A. The first one.

(. To the first position?

A, Yes.

Q. Well, now, then how was the stern then
after you had shifted the vessel?

A. Her stern was g little inside of the corner
of the dock,

Q. Little to the east of that edge?

A. To the east, yes.

The Court:
). What?
A. East, yes, sir—to the west; west.

Mr. Alford:

Q. You think it was still to the west?

A, No, east; east. 1 was right in the first
place.
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(. Is that toward the lake?
A. Toward the lake, yes, sir.

The Court: Now, are you talking about the
how or the stern?

AMr. Alford: The stern, if the Court please.

The Court:
Q. Towards the lake?
A. The stern was to the west.

Mr. Spencer: Flow was the stern as to the lime
kiln slip? That is what they are trying to get at.

Q. Now, Captain, did the bow of your boat
tap over along the front of the Omaha dock some?

A, Yes, sir,

(). You also had it attached to the spiles of
the Omaha, did you?

A, Yes, sir

(). In the conrse of that night, Captain, after
vou had completed vour unloading and the follow-
ing day, is it a fact that from time to time your
lines parted, some of them?

A, They chafed and wore off.

(). Well, did they part?

A. Yes. We did not let them part. We
changed them. They chafed and wore off, yes, sir.

(). And when you saw a line that was not
likely to continue to do its work you replaced it
with another line, did you?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. That was for the purpose of holding your
hoat there securely? ‘
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A, Yes, sir.

Q. Well, did the lines part, some of them?

A. They chafed off. Now, there is a differ-
ence between chafing off and parting. Which deo
want, chafing off or parting? Which do you want,
chafing off or parting?

(). What is the difference?

A. One chafes off and the other is parted.

(), Breaks?

A. Breaks, yes, sir. Our lineg chafed; did
not part, becauwse the wind was blowing us right
on the dock; no strain particularly on the line. Tt
was just chafed, wear and tear.

Q. When it became apparent that a common
Iine would no longer do its work you replaced with
another good line, did you?

A, Yes, sir.

(. Arnd that was for the purpose of holding
Yyour vesgel securely to the dock?

A, Yes, sir.

€. Was it a fact, too, Captain that you found
in the course of the night that you had to shift
your lines from some of the spiles to others be-
cause the spiles became loosened?

A. Not that night, no, sir.

Q. Did you the next day?

A, Yes.

Q. And was that done for the purpose of
making your vessel secure to the dock, holding it
there, ton?

A. That is what it was done for.

Q. How is that?

A, Yes, sir

Q). Captain, supposing your lines had parted
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or became detached for some purpose, isn’'t it a
fact that the wind would have driven your vessel
sternward gradually?

A, Well, T don’t know. It is hard to tell
what the wind would have done that night.

Q. The wind was striking you slightly to the
right?

A. Right obligue.

Q. Obliquely?

A, Yes, sir.

(). If your lines had parted the wind would
have eradunally forced you astern, wouldn’t it?

A. There would have been something hap-
pened if the lines had given way.

Q. Well, wouldn’t that have happened for
one thing?

A. Perhaps it would.

(. And you testified to that, didn’t you, at
the time your deposition was taken, that that is
what would have happened?

A. If the lines had parted something would
liave happened, sure.

(). One thing that would have happened, the
vessel wonld have worked sternward under the in-
tluence of that wind; that is what you testified,
didn’t vou, before?

A. I have forgotten about the other testi-
mony.

(). Well, wouldn’t that have happened for
one thing?

Perhaps it would.

saptain, was there a swell?
An undertow, yes, sir.

An undertow? ‘
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A. That is what we call it, yes, sir.

(). Are they one and the same thing?

A. Well, yes; about the same thing . It is a
swell coming in— )

Q). Now, your replacement of these lines that
wore away, what is the word you used? OChafed;
that was for the purpose of holding your vessel se-
curely to the dock wasn’t it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. So now, it is not your purpose to tell this
jury that it was physically impossible to get away
from that dock, is it?

A,  Yes, sir, physically impossible for me to
get away from that dock without assistance.

(). Without assistance?

A, Yesn

Q. Well, isn’t it a fact that your purpose in
holding the vessel to the dock was for your own
safety?

A. We generally look out for ouselves; yes,
sir,

(). It was really primarily for your own
safety, wasn’t it; isn’t that true?

A. Not for my own safety, the safety of my
ship.

(). Well, your vessel, yes?

- A Yes,
(. That was the purpose?
A, Yes.

€. Well, if the lines had parted would your
vessel have capsized?

A. No.

. Tt would have gone away from the dock,
wouldn’t it?
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A. I don’t know whether it would or not.

Q. Youn don’t know whether it would have
gone away from the dock or not?

A. It probably would have wprked away in
time after doing a lot of damage.

Q. You have answered the question . You
have answered the question. Captain, referring to
the unloading of your boat. Now, those men were
stevedores, weren't they?

A, Yes, sir,

Q. And so far as you know they had no con-
nection with the dock, had they?

A. I don’t know anything about that.

Q. You don’t know that they were in the em-
play of the City dock?

A. I don’t know whether they were employed
by the City dock or who they were employed by.

Q. Well, as a matter of fact, didn’t you make
tiie arrapgements with these stevedores to unload
vour boat?

A. No, gir.

Q. You did not make that?

A. No, sir,

(). Well, are you sure that some of your crew
did not?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Did I understand you to say that the sea
began to make before the unlcading was com-
pleted?

A. I don’t think I said tha.

Q. Well, did it?

A, Not so much, About 10 o’clock the sea
commenced to make.

().  About 10 o’clock?
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A. Yes,

Q. Well, now was that before you had com-
pleted the unloading or after?

A, Bir?

Q. Was that before or after you had com-
pleted the unloading?

A. That was before we completed. We com-
pleted about 10:30 or 10:45, somewheres in that
neighborhood.

(.. Captain, at what time did you fill the
water bottom?

A. Filled them early in the evening right
after supper; first job the watchman done that
came on after supper.

). How much water did the vessel draw with
the amount of freight that you had on, after you
completed the unloading?

A. Well, T could not say exactly but she
would not draw over 4 or 5 feet; would not draw
over 4 feet forward. When I left the dock T did
not have only a couple of hundred tons of freight
on her.

Q. Now, do you mean that that was the quan-
tity of water she drew with her water bottoms
empty or full?

A, With them full,

Q. With her water bottoms full she would
draw how much forward?

A What do you mean, without any freight?

Q. No, with the amount of freight you had
on?

A Oh, about 4 feet,

Q. Then you mean to say that after you had
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finished this unloading she was drawing about 4
feet forward?

A. T think so, somewheres around there. 1
am not sure about that. I did not look at the
marks. I did not have time lo look at any marks
that night.

Q. How much did she draw aft?

A. She never draws less than 11,

(). How iz that?

A. Never draws any less than 11.

). Well, in her condition how much was
she drawing?

A. I have just forgotten now. I don’t know
just what amount of fuel I had on. Tt is quite a
while ago. 1 cannot recall it.

Q. You have been with your boat in the slip
to the west of the City dock?

A, Yes
Q. Do vou know how wide that slip is?
A. I do not.

(). You don’t know the condition of the water
just across the slip opposite the outer end of the
City dock, do you; did not then?”

A. Why, yes; I think I do, or did at that
time.

(). Well, didn’t you know what the depth of
the water was?

A. XNo, T do not. There was a lot of spiles
there, though, an old warehouse or dock.

(). Well, up to how close to the edge of the—
the westerly edge of the slip did that condition pre-
vail?

A.  Just a narrow slip. ”

325

328

327



328

329

330

o —110—

Q. Well, up to how close to the westerly edge
of that slip were those spiles?

A. A hundred feet. That is giving you a good
wide berth. No, it was not a hundred feet.

(3. You think they were a hundred feet?

A. No, I don’t think so. Somewheres around
there. Just a narrow slip.

Q. Had you examined that locality and as-
certained the location of any spiles?

A. Yes, sir. You could see them.

(). 'What?
A. You could see them. They were visible,
(). They were visible?

A. Yes, gir.

Q. Well, do you know how far they were
from the westerly edge of the slip? Do you know?

A. T don’t know, no, how far they are. That
ig just a narrow slip there.

(). You got your boat away on the 29th if I
understood you correcily?

A. 1 think so.

(). What time was it?

A. About 2 or 8 o'clock in the afternoon;
somewheres around there,

Q. And when you did go you waited until
you got a tug, did you?

A, Yes, sir.

(). Now, Captain, didn’t you testify at the
time your deposition was taken that if those lines
had all been parted that the vessel would have
gone away from the dock?

A. I don’t know as T did.

Q. Well, do you know whether you did or
not?
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A, Idon't think I did.

Q. Well, as a matter of fact it would have
gone, wouldn’t it?

A. After a time,

Q. You had more than the usual number of
lines in use that night, hado’t you?

A. Yes, yes, sir,

Q. And you had lines of unusual strength in
use also in holding the boat, didv’t you?

A, Yes

(). Were those lines for the purpose of keep-
ing the boat from going forward or back, or either
way?

A. Keep her from going any way; to hold it
there.

Q. To keep her from going any direction; it
was to hold there, was it?

A, Yes, sir.

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION,

By Mr. Spencer:

(). Was there any means, Captain, of holding
vour vessel in position other than with these lines
that were out on the dock?

A. No, €lr.

(). Did you ever receive warning from the
dock people to leave your situartion at their dock
at any time during the time you were there?

A. No, sir.

Me. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
as inunaterial and move the the answer be stricken
out, )
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Objection overruled and motion denied.

Mr, Spencer:

Q. Could you sce the lighthouse, the light
from the lighthouse during the night of the 27th
as you lay there?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper re-direct examina-
tion and also immaterial.

The Court: Tt is uot proper re-direct. He has
a right to recall him if lie desires,

Objection overruled,
A, Could not see the lght; no, sir,

Mr. Speneer:

Q. What preveated?

AL Bnow: storm,

(2. How many feet could Jou sce any object
during the night of the 27(h after half past 10
o'clock or after 10 o'c¢loek?

Ao During the severity of the storm you
could not see 10 feet looking to the northward
could not loek to the northward at all

Q. Diad it blow steadily that way  all the
while, or d it come in gnests?

A Come in guests and squalls.

Q. What ix known as a blizzard?

A, Blizzard, ves, sir.

Q. Your attention has heen called, Captain.
OL Four cross examination to the comdition of (he
Larhor immediately astern of vou to the west of
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vou where your ship was Iying. What was the
condition of the bottom of the havbor there?

AL It s very foul, all full of spiles and old
dock timber, I guess, and everything has gone out
but a few spiles sticking up there.

Q. 1f vou had attempted to move and liad
vone on there what would have been the probable

eifect on your ship?

AMp Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper rve-direct examina-

tion atd alsa as immaterial.

Objection overruled, to which ruling plaintitis

duly exerpt.

A, Prohably carried away my rudder and my
wheel, probably sunken  my ship on them low
«piles,

(. Were there ant other vessels at ancher
out on the hay?

A Yes, sir,

(). 1f vou had thre to move without agsist-
ance that night or daring ihe prevalence of this
vale conlid vou see the location of these ships at an-
chor =0 ax fo have enabled vou to aveld fhem?

A Alford: Plaintiffs oliject to the question
on the eronml it is irvctevant and hnmaterial,

Chiection sustained.
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RE-CROSS EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Alford:
Q. Captain,nif I understood you correctly you
say the fact that your boat was light influenced

340 you in determining to stay where you did?
A. It influenced me because I could not get
away.

JOHN A. McMILLAN, being duly sworn as a wit-
ness on behalf of defendant, testifies as fol-
lows:

” DIRECT EXAMINATION,
By Mr. Spencer:
Q. How old are you, Mr. McMillan?
A. 36.
Q. And what was your occupation on the

27th and 28th days of November, 19057
A. Night dispatcher at the tug office. _
(. What tug office do you have reference to?
A. The Union Towing & Wrecking Company.
(). Where was the tug office of the Union

Towing and Wrecking Company located at that

time?

342 A. On the N. P. dock, foot of Tth Avenue

West,

Q. At which end of the N. P. dock?
A.  Outer end.

(). At the extreme outer end toward the bay?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. And where was your tug office located
with respect to the outer end of the City dock?

A. Why, it was just across the slip.

Q. Approximately how many feet was the
outer end of the City dock from your tug office?

A. Three or 400 feet, I should judge.

Q. Do you remember the occasion of the big
storm that occurred in Duluth on the 27th and
28th of November, 19057

A, Yes, gir.

Q. What time did you come on duty on the

evening of the 27th?

A. Why, T oclock I was supposed to be on
duty; around 7 ¢’clock; 6:30 or 7.

Q. And were you there about that time that
evening?

A. T was there until the next morning at 7
o’clock.

Q. You say you were the night dispatcher or
day dispatcher?

A. Night dispatcher.

Q. And on the evening of the 27th were you
on duty?

A. Yes, sir.

). Do you remember the location of the
Steamer Reynolds during the night of the 27th?
Yes, sir,

Where was it lying?

On the face of the dock, City dock.
Which way was it heading?
Heading toward the plers.

Heading toward the—

A. Tug office. ‘

Croror
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Q. Tug office, Do you remember hearing any
signals from the vessel that evening, that night?

A. Yes, gir,

(). How many times did they blow signals for
tugs?

A. T don’t remember,

(. What sort of signals were given?

A. Four whistles, the usual signal for a tug.

(. What does that mean when a ship in the
harbor blows a signal of four blasts of its whistle?

A. They want a tug.

(). And ordinarily what do the harbor towing
tugs do?

A. If there is a tug to respond they respond
with a long and short whistle.

(). And they usually go to the assistance of
the vessel, do they?

A. Yes.

). How many tngs did your company have,
how many vessel towing tugs did the company that
you were employed by have on that oceasion?

A. 1 don’t remember.

. They have a large pumber of tugs,
haven’t they, ordinarily?

A. They have enough usually to take care of
the work.

(). About how many did they have in com-
migsion at that time?

A. 1 could not say. I should judge 7 any-
way, 6 or 7.

(). What was done by you at the time Rey-
nolds blew signals for a tug, to render her assist-

ance?
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A. Why, the conditions were such that I
called up the manager of the company.

Mr. Alford: That is objected to.

(No ruling.)

Q. You need not go into the conversation you
had with the manager of the tug line. What were
your duties as night dispatcher of the tug office?

A. I kept the record of all the boats in and
out and sent tugs to the assistance of boats that
whistled or tugs that captain or master telephoned
for.

Q. Did you receive any telephone message
that night for assistance for the Reynolds?

A, Yes, sir

Q. How many times?

A. Why early in the evening I believe the
mate told me he would need tugs about 10 or half
past 10 and at that time he callad up again and I
told him I could not send him tugs.

Q. What time did he call 1p again?

A. T should judge about half past 10.

Q. Why couldrn’t you send your tugs?

A.  Why, the weather conditions did not war-
rant it. We figured we could not ship him.

). What were the weather conditions at that
time?

A. Snowing and blowing hard from the
northeast.

(. Could you give the jury any idea of the
severity of that storm?

A Why, I don’t know. "It was a bad storm.
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I know it was blowing and snowing very hard and
quite & sea running that time of night.

Q). You say it was snowing. How much did
the snow obstruct the vision?

A. Well, greatly. It piled up on the tug of-
fice windows that night.

Q. Well, for one who was outside could you
see any distance through the night or storm?

A.  No, sir,
(). And the darkness?
A. No, sir,

Q. And the sea running. Clould you give the
jury some idea as to how high the sea wag in front
of your office.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial,

Objection overruled.

A. I dorn’t know just how to describe the
height of seas. That night they did run over the
tug oTice dock.

Mr. Bpencer:

(. How high is the tug office dock from the
ordinary sea level, bay level?

A, Well, sometimes the water ig higher than
other times. I can’t just tell,

Q. Yes, but the ordinary water level, how
high is the tug office dock from the bay?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial,

Objection overruled.
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A. Why, I should judge 10 feet.

Q. And on that night the sea you say was
cver the outer end of the N. P. dock?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. What effect did it have upon the City
dock?

A. T don’t know. Could not say.

Q. Could you see the location of the Rey-
nolds from the office?

A. Not during the snow, the heavy snow.

Q. Could you give the jury some idea as to
the violence of the gale, how high the wind was?

A. Why, no, T can’t tell just what the velo-
city of the wind was. It was blowing very, very
Lard 1 know. ‘

Q. How long had you been employed in the
capacity of dispatcher at the tug office at Duluth?

A. About 6 years.

Q. During that length of time you have wit-
nessed some storms and gales here, have you?

A, Yes, gir.

(}. During the six years that you have been
employed there did you ever znow of a gale of
the severity that prevailed that night?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial.

Objection overruled, to which ruling plaintiffs
duly except.

A. No, sir.

Mr. Spencer:
Q. How long have you lived in Duluth, Mr.
MeMillan? ’
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A. Eighteen years.

Q. Did you ever know a gale of that violence
during the last 18 ‘years that you were living in
Dulath?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial,

Objection overrnled, to which ruling plainiiffs
duly except.

A. No, sir.

Mr. Spencer:

QI will ask you if it would have been pos-
sible or a prudent thing for the master of the—
for a ship situated as the Reynolds was at that
time, taking into consideration the velocity of the
wind, the night, the storm and the darkness, to
have moved without assistance?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial,

Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer:
(). When did you leave the dock office?
A, Next morning.
().  About what time?
A. Seven o’clock.
Q. And how was the storm at that time?
A. Tt was still bad, blowing hard.
Q. Did it increase during the day?
A. Yes, sir.  Well, T was off duty during the
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Q. And when it came daylight on the morn-
ing of the 28th could you see the City Dock from
the office?

A. Yes. 1 believe it hacd stopped snowing
some, a8 near a8 I can remember.

Q. And could you see what effect the sea had
on that dock as it beat against it?

A. T didn't notice particularly, I don’t be-
lieve.

Q. Did you notice the sea washing up under
the dock?

A.  The geas were running over the dock, yes.

Q. 'The sea had been washing right over the
City Dock?

A. Tt had been washing over the tug office
dock. T suppose they went over the City Dock.

Mr. Alford:

. You could not see the City Dock?

A. Yes. T believe I could. But I don’t re-
member whether I noticed particularly whether the
seas were running over the City Dock. T know
they were running over our dock. Naturally they
would run over the City Dock.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. The City Dock was cxposed to the same
force of the gale that your dock was?

A. Same position.

Q. And when did you get hack to duty again?

A. Heven o'clock that evening.

Q. Evening of the 28th?

A, Yes, sir

(2. And how was the gdle at that time?
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A. The gale was still bad.
(.. When was the tug finally sent, or tugs

~ finally sent to the assistance of the Reynolds?

A. Idont know. I was not on watch. They
went in the daytime. I was not on watch.

Q. I will ask if in your judgment it was a
prudent or safe thing to send out tugs to the as-
sistance of the Reynolds at any time after the
signals were given for it on the evening of the
27th?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the grennd it is irrelevant and immaterial and
on tha further ground the witness has not quali-
fied himself to answer.

Objection sustained.

CROSS-EXAMINATION.

By Mr, Alford:

Q. Where were you in the course of that
night, Mr. McMillan?

A. In the tug office,

Q. Your duty was inside?

A. Not altogether. If I got an order for a
tug it war my duty te go out and call the crew
and send them. .

Q. Well, did you go out and call any crews
and send them that night?

A. Noi after the storm had reached a certain
veloeiry,

Q). Well, at what time was that that you
ceased going out to see?
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A. I believe it was 9:30 or 10 o’clock; about
9:30 or 10, as near as I can remember.

Q. After that time you did not go out?

A. No, sir,

Q. You remained inside?

A. Inside the tug office?

Q. Yes.

A. Yes, gir, as near as I can remember.

Q). You say that the snow was adhering to
the windows of the tug office?

A. Yes. But we had one window that the
pane opened out 5o we could look out.

3. In which direction?

A. That was facing—about facing the east.

Q. So that your information as to after 9:30 ggg
or possibly 10 is not gathered from anything that
you observed outside, from being outside?

A. No. My duties were inside.

(). Well, the next day it was possible to see,
wasn’t it?

A, I was not on duty.

Q. You were not on duty the next day?

A. T slept the next day.

367

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION,.

) 859
By Mr. Spencer:

Q). Did the tugs under your control the night
of the 27th do any towing about the harbor shift-
ing vessels from one place to another?

A. 1 believe not, as near as I can remember;
I do not believe we moved a thing.

(). Give the jury somé idea how far you
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could see over the bay during the night of the 27th
after 10 o’clock; could you see the lighthouse?

A. No, sir,
(). Could not see the lights?
A. No, gir,

Q. You could not see the Reynolds from
where you looked? :

A, Not when it was snowing hardest and
blowing,

(). How far could you see—

A. I could not see the water from the tug
office window.

Q. And how far is the water from your tug
office windows?

A. About 12 or 15 feet.

RE-CROSS-EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Alford:

Q. The tug office is on the second floor of
that building there, is it not?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Well, were you trying to see the Reynolds
that night?

A. Not that I remember ot.

Q. As a matter of fact you were not looking
in that direction, were you?

A. Oh, yes. I looked out often. It is part
of my duty to watch.

Q. T mean, in the direction in which fthe
Reynolds lay, teward the City Dock?

A. I dor’t remember.

Q. You don’t remember whether you did or
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A. (No answer).
Q. Do you remember the fact as to whether
a vessel came in through the canal that night and

went into one of the slips? 873
A. Yes, sir,
Q. There was such a vessel?
A. Yes, sir,
Q. What vessel was that?
A. The Arizona,
Q. Did you send a tug to aid her?
A. No, sir.
Q. She came in under her own steam?
A. Yes, sir
Q. And went into the slip? Which slip did
she go into if you know? 374
A. N. P four.
RE-RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION.
By Mr. Spencer:
Q. Where is N. P. number four situated?
A. It is to the east of the tug office.
Q. And about what time did that Arizona
come in?
A. About somewhere around midnight, T be-
lieve,
Mr. Alford: 375

(. There were some vessels that came in the
next day, too, wasn’t there?
A. T don't know. I was not on duty.

At this time court is adjourned until 9 o’clock
a. m. Wednesday morning, September 16th, A, D.
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1908, at which time' court met pursuant to ad-
journment, when proceedings were resumed as
follows:

D. A. CHRISTIE, being duly sworn as a witness
on behalf of defendant, testifies as follows -

DIRECT EXAMINATION,

By Mr. Spencer:

Q. Mr. Christie, where do you reside?

A, In Duluth,

Q- What is your age”

A, My age; 62.

Q. How long have you been a resident of the
city of Duluth?

Ao Well, it is over 28 vears,

Q. And what is your occupation ?

A. I am agent of the Anchor Line,

(). Agent of the Anchor Line of steamers?

A, Yes, sir

Q. How many vessels does the Anchor Line
operate?

A. Oh, 16 or 17. I cannot say exactly.

Q. How long have you been the agent at
Duluth of the Anchor Line steameps?

A, Bince ’92.

Q. Are you acquainted with the Steamer S.
C. Reynolds? '

A, Yes, sir,

Q. Did the Reynolds in November of 1905
~nmnose a part of your fleet?



— 127 —

A. Yes, sir; under charter.

Q. During the season of 1905 where did
your line unload it freight principally?

A. Do you mean Duluth?

Q. For the city of Duluth, yes, sir?

A. At the City Dock.

Q. What was the business of the City Dock
at that time?

A. Ol they received west bound delivery of
the hoats.

Q. During the season of 1905 at what part
of the City Dock did the City Dock people receive
cargoes?

A. They have got a slip and they have got
the face of the dock. They received it at both
places.

Q. At both places?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And who determined the matter as to
which side of the dock freight should be unloaded?

A, The City Dock people.

(). Where is the City Docx situnated in the
Duluth harbor we will say with respect to the
Northern Pacific Dock?

A, Well, it is west of the Northern Pacific.

(3. Approximately ahout how far west?

A, Ob, I shouldn’t—T should judge 1500 feet
probably.

Q. And what slip is beyond to the westward
of the City Dock?

A, The lime kiln.

Q. That is known as the lime kiln slip?

A, Yes, sir.
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Q. And what slip is beyond to the eastward?

A. The Omaha.

). And then right to the eastward of the
Omaha is known as what?

A. The Northern Pacific,

Q. And where is the tug office?

A. The tug office is between the Omaha and
Northern Pacific slips. -

Q. At the extreme end of the Northern Pa-

cific slip?

A. Yes, gir.

Q. And the City Dock would he on the—
extends out to the line of navigability, does it?

A, Yes, sir.

(). East dock line?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. And would be about in line with what
avenue of the city?

A. That is, running north and south?

. Yes. What avenue if extended would
come down to the City Dock?

A, About Seventh.

Q. Seventh Avenue West?

A, Yes, sir.

(). Were you in the city of Duluth on the
27th and 28th of November, 19057

A, Yes, sir.

(). Do you remember the great storm we had
here at that time?

A, Yes, sir,

G, Go on and state to the jury if you will
something as to the character of that storm?

A. Well, it was the heaviest that I had seen
iw »= pxperience here.



—129 —

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to that on the
ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and immate-
rial and no foundation laid,

Objection over-ruled.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. Was the storm heavy enough to interfere
with the moving of vessels about the harbor any?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Go on and state to what extent shipping
was interfered with?

A, Well, there was a severe snow storm—

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and
immaterial,

The Court: You may state the extent of the
storm and the waves, et cetera; we won’t go into
ony other dizasters.

Mr. Spencer: I was not inquiring in regard
to any other disasters. My inquiry was as to
whether the violence of the wind interfered with
shipping.

The Court: He may describe that.

A. There was a very severe snow storm dur-
ing the prevalence of this storm and the seag were
so high that vessels could not move or did not
move during the prevalence of the storm until it
began to lull.

Mr, Spencer:
Q). Do you kunow who placed—who directed

385

386

387




388

389

590

— 130 —

where the Reynolds should go on the occasion
when it had freight for delivery at the City Dock
at the time in question? :

A. No, sir, I do not. I suppose it was the
City Dock people.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs move that what the
witness supposed be stricken out.

Motion granted.

CROSS-EXAMINATION. .

By Mr. Alford:

Q. Captain, what is your particular business
in eonnection with the Anchor Line?

A. Oh, I do everything connected with that
as far as an agent’s duties oceur.

Q. Your office ig in the Palladio Building on
Superior street?

A. Yes, sir.
(). It is not at the docks?
A. No, sir.

(. And in regard to the placing or handling
of vessels and handling them at the dock you have
nothing to do with that, do you, personally?

A. No, sir,

Q. And any information that you bave as to
what is done in a given case you simply get from
other parties, don’t you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you see the Reynolds on the occasion
in question?

A.  On that same day?
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Q. Yes?

A. SBame day and night?

Q. Yes?

A. No, sir. 91

Q. You were not down there?

A. I was not down there. T gaw her the day
after.

Q. The unloading of a vessel is handled by
stevedores, isn't it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You don’'t know of your own knowledge
by whom they are employed?

A. Oh, yes, T do. Generally Conklin is the
head stevedore. He is the contractor.

Q. And does that by contract?

A. We have a contract with him.

Q. 8o these stevedores were under a con-
tract with the Anchor Line?

A. Yes, sir.

392

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Spencer:
Q. You say you saw the Reynolds the day

_after. Was she still lying at that dock?
A. Oh, no,
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CHARLES P. BERKELMANN, being duly sworn
a8 a witnesg on behalf of defendant, testifies
as follows;

DIRECT EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Spencer:
3. 'Where do you reside, Mr. Berkelmann?

A. In Duluth,
Q. How old are you?
A, 34,

Q. And what is your employment at the
present time?

A. Toreman of the City Dock.

Q. How long have you lived in Duluth?

A. Oh, about 24 years,

. What was your employment on the 27th
and 28th days of November, 19087

A, Checker for the Anchor Line.

Q. Do you remember the occasion of the big
storm in Duluth on the 27th or 28th of November,
19057

A. T do.

Q. Are you acquainted with the Steamer 8.
C. Reynolds?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you remember the incident of the
Reynolds coming to the City Dock on the after-
noot. or evening of November 27Tth, 19057

A, T do

Q. TYor what purpose did the Reynolds come
to the City Dock at that time?
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A, To discharge freight.

Q. Did the City Dock people receive it?

A, Yes.

Q. Whereabouts was the vessel stationed

when freight discharging began?
A. Tace of the dock.
Q. That would be the extreme outer end?
A. Outer end, yes, sir, bay side.
Q. Who directed the vessel to make fast at
that particular point, if you know?
A. City Dock people. '

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is indefinite and not responsive
te the question and moves the answer be stricken
out.

The Court: It is very indefinite. The per-
son, If you know. Tt requires for some person, if
you kaow. Do you know?

A, T do.

Q. (Question repeated by reporter): “Whao
directed the vessel to make fast at that particular
point, if you know?”

Mr. Spencer:
Q. Who of the City Dock people?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to tne question
on the ground that it is immaterial.

Objection overruled, to which ruling plain-
titfs duly except.

A, Mr. Bidwell. .
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Mr. Bpencer:

(). Was be the manager of the dock at that
time?

A. He was.

Q. And who delivered his orders to those in
charge of the Reynolds at that titme to make fast?

A, Tdid.

(). In what way was the Reynolds made fast
to the outer end.of the Dock?

A. In the usual way, to the spiles of the
dock.

(). Did it have lines out forward and aft?

A, It did.

(). Do you remember the occasion of that big
storm?

Ao T do.

(3. Where were you on the night of Novem-
ber 27th?

A, Part of the time on the boat and part
of the time at the dock or on the dock.

Q. Do you remember of hearing any signals
by the steamboat on the evening of the 28th for
assisiance of the tug after carge was discharged?

A, Yes, sir, T did.

Q. How many times have you a recollection
of it, that the steamboat whistled for tugs to assist

her?
A. Three times that I know of.

Q. What were the weather conditions aftar
10 o'clock, after the cargo wag discharged that
night?

A. Tt was very bad.

Q. 'What direction was the wind from?

A. Northeast.
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Q. Give the jury some idea, if you ecan, as
to the severity of this storm that night?

A. Well, I went home about 10:30, quarter
to eleven. T could not hardly get home, it was
50 bad.

Q. Which way was it blowing from?

A. Northeast.

Q. 'Was there any snow accompanying it?

A. Aot of it.

Q. How much did the snow obstruct the
atmosphere?

A. Well, you could not hardly see 10 feet
ahead of you.

Q. And can you give any idea as to the velo.
city of the wind on that occasion?

A. No, T haven’t any idea. It was very
strong.

Q. You say you have lived in Duluth for
27 vears?

A. Twenty-four.

Q. During your residence in Duluth have
you ever known of a storm of the severity that
that storm was on the night of the 27th and the
day following?

A. T did not.

Q. Did the severity of the storm interfere
any with the movement of the shipping about the
harbor that night?

A, Tt did.

Q. And the following day?

A, Yes, sin

(3. To what extent was the movement of
shipping about the Duluth harhor suspended?
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Mir. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial.

Objection overruled.
A. (No answer).

Mr. Spencer:

Q. To what extent was the movement about
of shipping about Duluth harhor suspended?

A. There waspo’t any of the boats moving at
all.

CROSS-EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Alford:
Q. If T understood you you were then in
the employ of the Anchor Line?

A, T was.
Q. That is, as a checker?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. You gave your testimony in a deposition
once before in this matter, didn’t youn?

A T did.

Q. Did you testify on that occasion you did
not remember who gave you orders as to the plac-
ing of the boats? ]

A. I have been thinking it over since though.

Q. You did say then that you did not know
who gave you directions, didn’t you?

A. I don’t remember what 1 said.
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GRIGNON, being duly sworn as a wit-

nesg on behalf of defendant, testifies as
follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION,

By Mr. Spencer:

tractor?
A,

Q.

Where do you live, Mr. Grignon? '
2631 West Third street. :
What is your age?

35.

How long have you lived in Duluth?

26 years.

What is vour occupation?

Shipbuilder and contractor.

What species of work do you do as a coa-

Repair boats and docks and so forth.
What experience have you had in the re-

pair of docks?

A,
Q.

Considerable experience.
Over how many years does that experi-

ence extend?

A
Q.

About 10 years.
The repairing of doclks that you have

done has been principally aroind the harbor of

Duluth,
Al
Q.
Al
Q.

has it?
Yes, sir.
And Superior?
Yes, sir.

Do you remember the hig storm that oc-

curred here on November 27th and 28th, 19057

409

410

411



412

413

414

—138 — o

A. Yes, sir.

(. And are you familiar with the City Dock?

A. Yes, sir. |

Q. Were you familiar with the City Dock
befére that storm?

A. Yes, sir.

(). I will ask you if you made any examina-
tion of the face of that dock shortly after the big
storm of 19057

A, Yes, sir.

Q.” At whose request did you make such in
examination?

A. Request of the Anchor Line Steamboats.

. And who else?

A. Mr. Christie.

). And who else besides them?

A. Why, I did not make an examination for
nobody else besides them.

(). And has your experience in the matter of
repairing docks been such that it enabled you tu
determine the amount of money that it would cost
to repair that dock along its face?

A, Yes,

Mr, Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper rebuttal.

Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer:
(). What was the reasonable value of re-
pairing that dock?

Plaintiffs make same objection as last above.

Objection sustained.
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Q. What condition did rou find that dock
in? ‘

A. T found it in a damaged condition.

). To what extent?

A. The extent that I found the City Dock

was damaged to the extent of $400.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs okject to the answer
on the ground it is not responsive to the question:
and also object to the question.

The Court: It may be stricken out.

Mr. Spencer:
Q. To what extent did you find the City
Dock damaged?

Mr. Alford: That is objected to.
(No ruling).

Mr. Spencer:

Q. What was the physical condition of the
dock there? TIlow many piles were damaged, if
any?

A. There was about 7 or 8 spiles that were
bent over; three or four broken.

Q2. Did vou observe the dock after the repairs
had been made to it?

A. No, sir, no more than seen the repairs as
I was passing by.

Q. T asked you what the reasonable value of
making the repairs to the face of that dock that
were made, was?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant-and immaterial.
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Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer:
Q. What was the damage to the dock, Mr

Grignon?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial and
also on. the further ground that no sufficient foun-
dation has heen laid.

Tte Court: You can cross-examine him if
you desire to know whether he is an expert.

Objection overruled.

A. To the extent in value?
Q. Yes, sir.
A, $400.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. Where was you at the time of that storm,
Mr. Grignon?

A. During the storm?

Q. Yes.

A. In the evening of the storm I was at home
and the following day T was at my works.

. How long did you say you have resided
in the City of Duluth?

A. Twenty-six years.

Q. During your residence in the City of Du-
Iuth your business has been largely among ships
and shipping, has it?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. And are you a shipbuilder?

A. Yes. :
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Q. And during the time you have resided in
Duluth bave you ever known of a storm of the
severity of the one of November 27th and 28th,
19057

A. No, sir.

3. Was there anything that especially at-
tracted your attention to the severity of the storm
on that occasion?

A. T should judge that night the velocity of
the wind was about as high as we have ever had it
and the snow was severe.

Q. And on the evening of the 27th how hard
did it snow? Can you give some idea to the jury?

A. Well, my idea is that the snow was so
thick you could not hardly see ahead of you and
could not hardly walk through it.

Q. Over what period did that storm continue?

A. Period of 3 days before it let up.

Q. And did it continue during the day of the
Z8th with equal severity?

A. Yes, sir.

CROSS-EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Alford:

Q. Did the snow continue throughout the
28th?

A. No, sir; not throughout the 28th.

Q. What is that?

A.  XNo, sir; it did not continue throughout the
28th.

Q. The snow part of the storm subsided?
A, Yes, gir.
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Q. You made your examination at the re-
quest of the Anchor Line people?

A. Yes, sir

Q. Just when did you make that?

A, Well, I could not state as to the date but
it was some time after the storm.

Q. Well, how long after the storm?

A. Oh, possibly 3 weeks; two weeks.

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Spencer:

Q. Would you have been willing at that time
to have made the repairs for the amount which
you have named?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question.
Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer: Mr, Alford, when I introduced
in evidence the plat, or rather the chart, of the
harbor, you made some remark about following
that vp with some other evidence and I did not
quite clearly—

Mr. Alford: It is not intelligible.

Mr. Spencer: Defendant offers in evidence
the deposition of Charles M. Van Gorder.
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Mr. Spencer (Reading):

CHARLES M. VAN GORDER, a witness on be-
behalf of Claimants, called and being first
duly sworn, on oath deposes and says:

DIRECT EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Spencer:

How old are you?

Fifty years.

Where do you reside?

Marine City. Michigan.

What is your occupation?

Seaman.

How long have you led a seafaring life?
A, Ever since I was eighteen years old.

Q. In what class of vessels have yon sailed?
A, Well, T have sailed in schooners, as we

Lropopro

understand it, steammboats little and big.

Q. What position have you occupied on steam
vessels?

A, Second mater. first mate and master.

. On what veseel were you employed on
the 27th of November, 19057

A, 8. C. Reynolds.

(). What position did you occupy on the
Bteamer 8. €. Reynolds?

A. Second mate.

Q. Do you remember the oceasion of the
ieynolds discharging cargo at the City Dock in
Duluth on November 27th, 19059
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A, Yes, sir

Q. About what time in the day did the vessel
reach the dock?

A. 1 should judge about five o’clock in the
evening,.

Q. How long had you been sailing on the
Reynolds?

A. The whole season previous to that.

Q.. Your vessel had been operating in the
Anchor Line that fall?

A. All the fall, yes, sir, from the middle of
the season.

(). Had the vessel ever discharged cargo at
that dock hefore?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was that the customary place for the
Anchor Line to discharge?

A. Consigned to that dock, yes, sir.

Q. How many different cargoes had you dis-
charged at that dock prior to that time?

A. I couldn’t recollect that.

(. More than one?
A. Yes, sir

Q. How many, about?
A. Practically every time we bromght in a
eargo we had some for there.

Q. What was the usual place for your vessel
to be made fast?

A. Front of the dock.

Q. To what place was the Reynolds made fast
this particular time?

A. Front of the dock.

T *—w Aifomant cifnation than ordinarv?
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A. No, sir, not as T understand the question;
we have unloaded some in the alip.

Q. But on this particular occasion you un-
loaded at the outer end of the dock?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know who directed you to do that?

A. The people that have charge of the
freight; I can’t say who they were.

Q. The dock people?

A. Nao, sir; the Anchor Line, the agent I
suppose, the checker as we call him.

Q. Someone on the dock engaged in the re-
ceiving of the cargo?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You don’t know who it was?

A. We called him Louie; that is all I know.

. ‘What were the weather conditions at five
o’elock when you went to the dock?

A. They were not bad.

Q. Did you make the landing alone or did
you have a tug?

A. I think we came there alone,

. How long did they discharge freight?

A. We got through at ten thirty that night.

Q. Who received the cargo as it was belng
unloaded from the hoat, the dock people, or who?

A. Before we shifted the freight was put
inside the freight house; after we shifted it was
put on the dock alongside the freight house.

(). What were the weather conditions at the
time the cargo was all off?

A. Snowing hard and blowing fresh.

). What direction was the wind?

A, About northeast. .
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Q. How was the sea?

A. Well, there was quite a swell running in
there, enough so it made it pretty difficult to keep
a gang plank out there to work on.

Q. What effort did the steamer make to get
away from the dock that night?

A. Blowed the whistle signals for a tug;
also sent the mate to the *phone to get a tug.
Were you the man?

No, sir.

I thought you were the mate?

I was second mate.

You were second mate at that time?

Yes.

Where is the mate now?

. I couldn’t say; he is going mate on a new
boat, whatever it is,

Q. What was the mate’s name?

A George Burnham.

POPOPO PO

Q. How many times did the ship blow for
assistance—for a tug?

A, Well, they certainly blowed twice any-
how; [ thought they blew more; blowed several
times.

Q. Any tug come to her aid?

A. No, sir.

Q. How long did the ship remain at that
particular dock?

A. Till next afternoon about four o’clock we
got away.

Q. Why didn’'t you leave sooner?

A. In my judgment it would have been im-
possible to have done it
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Q. What direction did the wind come from?

A. In a general direction from the north-
cast, a little to the east of north as it struck us
on the starboard bow.

Q. Give us some idea of the storm?

A. Commenced snowing about eight o’clock
in the evening, snowed and blowed so hard it was
with considerable exercise on our part we kept
the men working there till the freight was un-
loaded.

(). How many miles an hour was the wind
blowing?

A. Fifty to sixty miles an hour.

Q. Continue all night?

A. Oh, yes, increased.

(). Next day how about the storm; did it
continue?

A, Yes, sir.

(. In your judgment was it necessary for the
vessel to have some assistance in order o get away
from the dock?

A. In my judgment, yes, sir.

Q. What is vour opinion as to whether it
would have been possible with safety to the ship
or surrounding property for the vessel to have
gotten away from the dock that night without a
tug, or have attempted to get away?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Objection overruled, to which ruling plaintiffs
duly except.
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Mr. Spencer (Reading):

A. The line of the dock as it runs there right
astern probably has been an old dock there some
day, all driven full of spiles and is shoal water
there, in fact, there was shoal water twenty-five
or thirty feet astern of our boat; in my judgment
as a seamen if we had slackened our lines the
least bit we would have been in the bank there
before we could have done anything, would have
broken our rudder or wheel probably.

Q. There were no other tugs in the harbor,
any vessel towing tugs, other than the Great Lakes’
tugs?

A. Not to my knowledge.

Q. Is there any device known to seamanship
which could have been done—anything that could
have been done—to get the ship away from the
dock after half past ten that night sooner than she
did get away?

A. Only to obtain assistance.

Mz Alford: Plaintiffs object to the answer
on the ground it is not responsive to the question.

Objection over-ruled.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

Q. ‘What effect did the wind and sea have
upoen the ship?

A. Caused her to range back and forward in
front of the dock and made it difficult to hold
her there.

Q. How much of a sea was running from
the canal?

A. Quite a swell runs in there—the worst 1
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ever seen in my experience frading to Duluth and
I traded here before there was any elevators here.
(). Did you ever know of ag severe a storm

as that one was—as disastrous a storm? 445
A. Not around Duluth here, no, sir.
(. What was the effect upon the shipping
here at the head of the lakes?
Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
). on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.
Objection sustained, to which raling defend-
ant duly excepts.
h Mr. Spencer (Reading):
). Can you state some of the effects? 446

A. There was the Elwood came in and sunk

when they got inside the harbor—they said she

' struck the pier; that is pot from my personal

knowledge; I know she sunk after she got inside a

Large inside kept blowing whistles for a tug and

qext morning her stern was up on the bank by

i the B. & 0. dock; the Mataafa next morning when

you could see;—there was a time during the night

you couldn’t see the lights of the pier at all,—

next afterncon about twe o’clock the Mataafa

Y struck the pier and swung round and went on the
beach; we also learned the England was ashore 447

betwen the two entrances and the Crescent ity

'L at Takewood and other disasters op the north

bR shore, the Corey on Gull Island, the Lafayette and

Indenborn, alse the Spencer and consort and the

Manilla in tow of the Lafayette.
(). These disasters all occurred during that

night or the following day?

A
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A. Yeg, sir.
Q. What effect did the sea have on that doeck
if you noticed?t

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Objection over-ruled, to which ruling plaintiffs
duly except.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

A. I think it had all the effect on the dock.

Q. Describe what you saw there?

A. Between the two docks, the Omaha dock
and the town dock,—Between the two docks there
is a filled dock comes down probably within thirty
feet of the face of the dock; there are railroad
tracks in there and the action of the waves under
the dock parted its connection with the shore or the
filled part of the dock and tore up the planking
that was on the dock; I think that is where the
mogt démage to the dock came, the sea running
under there.

Q. Washing it out underneath?

A, Yes, sir, enough so that quite a few pipes
that were stored there went down into the river
and they made an effort next day to remove some
of them,—washed the track, went the track all
double with the cars standing on it.

Q. Were the seas big enough so they washed
over the dock any?

A, Oh, yes, some, that is, the comb of the sea.

Q. What was the temperature?

A. Treezing, blinding snow storm the worst
feature,
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Q. Would it have been safe in the darkness
of that night and snow storm, would it have been
safe for you to go ahead on your engine and work
into the bay?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and
immaterial,

Objection over-ruled.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

A. Not in my judgment, no, sir.

(). What danger would the ship have in-
curred if it had been possible for you to get away
from the dock?

Plaintiffs make same objection as last above.
Same ruling.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):
A. Couldn’t see any place to go; I don’t
know where we would have went.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the answer
on the ground it is mot responsive.

(No ruling).

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

Q. Could you =ee from one end of your vessel
to the other?

A. Oh, yes, but you couldn’t see the light-
house flash, only once in a while you could notice
where it was and that ig about all.

-
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Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs move that all other
“Oh, yes” be stricken out.

Mction granted.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

Q. Was your vessel taken away f{rom that
dock a3 soon as it was safe to do so; could it
have moved sooner.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the guestion
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Objection over-ruled, to which ruling plaintiffs
duly except.

Mr. Spencer (Reading) :

A. Not in my judgment, no, sir.

Q. What assistance did you have when it
was moved?

A. The tug Carrington, I should judge about
four o’clock next day; we got over the Northern
dock about supper time.

Q. Could you have gotten a tug before that?

Mr Alford: Plaintitfs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Ob;ection over-ruled, to which ruling plaintiffs
duly except.

Mr. Spencer (Ileading):

A. As far as my knowledge goes I think
every effort was made to get tugs as soon as it
was possible to get them.

Q. Were your men all aboard that night—
your crew?
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A. Yes
Q. Were they ready and able to do anything
good seamanship required. 457

A. All pretty husky lads.

Q. Was any damage done to the dock by the
vessel not occasioned by the storm?

A. No, sir,

Mr. Spencer: Defendant offers in evidence
the cross-examination of Mr. Van Gorder.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

OROSS-EXAMINATION.

Mr, Alford: 458

Q. Your idea is then that the vessel itself
really had nothing to do with injuring the dock?

A. You wish my opinion on that?

(. Just answer the question?

A. 1 think if the boat had not been there
the dock would have been damaged worse than it
was.

Q. You think the vessel was a protection to
the dock?

A. 1 think so, yes, sir.

Q. Yon disagree with the captain? 459

A. T don’t disagree; my opinion was if the
vessel had not been there it would have damaged
the dock worse.

Q. The bending of those railroad irons you
spoke about was not attributable in any way to
the vessel?

A. No, sir.
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Q. How many times during that season had
the Reynolds unloaded freight at the City Dock?

A. That would be impossible for me to
answer, but we came practically to that dock every
time we came to Duluth.

Q. How nany tI‘ipS did vou make that sea-
4
80N ¢

A T couldn’t say without referring to the
log; in August we commenced I think, working
for the Anchor Line people.

Q. Did you make a trip onee a month?

A, Yes, sir, twice a month,

Q. How many trips did you make in August?

A. T couldn’t say.

Q. Any in August?

A. T couldn’t 83y,

Q. You don’t know that you began in
August?

A. I am ouly just quoting from memory.

Q. Make any trips to the dock in September?

A, Well, I caw’t gwear to that either.

Q. You don’t know then that your unloading
of freight at the City Dock began before October?

A. Well, that would be hard for me to
answer; I know we landed freight at that dock [
think practically every time we came to Duluth.

Q. You did at onpe or more times unload
freight in the slip?

A. Yes, sir, T think we went ip there once.

Q. You don’t know the relation of the people
who designated the place for you to tie up to the
City Dock?

A, No, sir.

Q. s this a fact, that you would go into the
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slip to unload when some other vessel was unload-
ing at the face of the dock?

A. Well, in my capacity aboard the boat
we go wherever they want the freight; if they
want it in the slip we go there; if they want it
on the face of the dock we go there.

Q. That is, the Anchor Line people?

A. They look after that, yes, sir.

(3. 'If I understood you correctly you called
for a tug as soon as you unloaded?

A. Yes, I remember that very distinctly be-
cause 1 generally had to do that part.

Q. At that time in your judgment it would
have been safe to leave the dock with the aid of

a tug?
A. I can’t answer that way; I had instruc-

tions from the captain to blow for a tug and I
done it.

(). What time was that?

A. Round ten thirty.

Q. You called for a tug twice?

A. I blowed two different times to my certain
knowledge and I think more; I can swear to two
times.

Q. You called for a tug about ten thirty and
none came and then you called again, is that right?

A. 1 don’t understand your question,

(. You say you called twice?

A. I blew the regular tug signals for assist-
ance two different times.

(). 'The first time none came?

A. No, sir.

Q. And then how long did you wait for
another one? ’
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A. Didn’t leave me wait very long before I
was ordered to do it gain, ten minutes, probably
fifteen.

Q- And you blew again?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know whether you blew again the
third time?

A. Well, no, I would not wish to swear to
that. T am positive about two times, two different
times.

Q- In what direction wag the ship headed as
she lay at the dock?

A. Dock runs about northeast to northerly
direction,

Q. And the wind was from the northeast?

A. Wind was about northeast by east, more
to the east a little; as we lay at the dock the wind
tame over the starboard bhow.

Q. What would be the difference in the diree-
tion from which the wind came and the direction
in which the boat pointed?

A.  About two points,

Q. Then if the lines of the vessel had parted
or loosened in any way she would have drifted
astern?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That would have taken her across the slip
you think into—so she would have grounded on the
opposite side of the dock? :

A.  8he certainly would, yes sir,

Q. Did you keep the machinery running at
any time during the time you tied up there?

A. Well, T couldn’t Bay as to that; that was
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not under my supervigion at all; I was doing other
work and I stayed by it.

Q. You succeeded in unloading all the freight
there?

A. Yes, §ir.

Q. Although you had some difficulty in keep-
ing the gang plank in place at the landing?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. At the time you completed your untoading
the sea was not such as you couldn’t unload?

A. Well, we did unload.

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. How near the tug office was the city dock
where you were then lying?

A. You want just my estimate of it?

Q. Yes?

A. Eight hundred feet.

Q. That was the place where the tugs usually

A, Yes.

Q. Were there any other vessels made fast
to the City Dock that night?

A. Not to the City Dock.

Q. What other vessel was in the vicinity of
yours? |

A. The Milwaukee lay at the Omaha dock
‘on the slip.

Q. Did you hear her blowing any signals of
distress?

A. No, sirn .
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CHARLES M. VAN GORDER, recalled for
further cross-examination, testifies as follows :

Mr. Spencer:
Q. What ig the draught of the Reynolds?
A. About eleven and a half feet aft and
about three feet forward.

Mr. Alford: _

Q. What was her draught laden?

A. Package freight business we seldom draw
over fourteen feet aft with the after compartments
full; about nine to tem feet forward.

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. You say when light the Reynolds draws
something over eleven feet?

A.  Well, without any water in ler three feet
forward and eleven and a half aft.

Q. What was the condition of the ship’s
water bottoms on the night in guestion?

A. They were full and we had ten feet of
water in the fore peak; we had to pump it in.

Q. All the water bottoms were full to their
full capacity?

A, Yes.

Q. What was that for?

A. To keep down in the water so we eould
hold her.

Q. Was there anything that could have been
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done in good seamanship to make her more secure
than you did do?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial.

Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):
(. How much undischarged cargo was there?
A. In the neighborhood of two hundred tons.
(). And the water bottoms all full to their

" full capacity?

A. Yes.

RE-CROSS-EXAMINATION.

Mr. Alford:

Q. Was that a part of your duty to attend
to filling the water bottoms?

A. Yes, sir.

Q). And you are testifying from actual know-
ledge of it?

A.  Yes, sir, personal knowledge of it.

Q. How much water does she draw forward
when the water hottom is full?

A. We can put her down to about five feet
with water in the fore peak when she iz light with-
out cargo.

(. And how much water will she draw aft?

A. She will draw about twelve and a half to
thirteen feet.

(). Also when filled?

A. Yes, siv, when filled; she has got to have
congiderable fuel on. ’
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Q. Does the fact that she is stationary or
moving cut any figure as to the amount of water
she draws?

A. No, sir.

Q. Why did you speak of fuel; is that on
account of the location of the fuel?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where is the fuel located?

A, Aft

Q. If your water bottom is full and two
hundred tons of freight on her, standing at the
dock as she was at that time, how much water did
she draw forward?

A. BShe drew about five and a half feet be-
cause the cargo was mostly aft; she was very light
forward.

Q. How much was she drawing aft?

A. She was drawing about thirteen feet mx
that is the record on the log hook.

Q. If T understand you she would draw when
light about five feet of water forward?

A. With the water bottoms full and the fore
peak full.

Q- And the amount she will draw aft will
depend on the amount of fuel?

A. Yes, to a large extent.

Q. 'The fuel being stored aft?
A, Yes.

Q. In what part of the vessel was the cargo
that still remained, that two hundred tons?

A. It was aft in her hecause we worked
number three and foup gangway at the (reat
Northern and some of it was on deck ret, some



o §

—-ﬁd\_ U
v

— 161 —

pipe iron and some in the after hold; there was
none in forward, of the cargo.

GEORGE H. VROMAN, being duly sworn as a
witness on behalf of defendant, testifies as

follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Spencer:

Q. What is your name?

A. George H. Vroman.

Q. How old are you, Captain?

A, 52

Q. Where do you reside?

A. Duluth, Minnesota.

Q. And what is your occupation?

A. Manager of the Union Towing and
Wrecking Company.

Q. How long have you resided in Duluth.

A. Five years

Q. And where did you reside prior to coming
to Duluth? l

A. Buffalo, New York,

Q. What was your business while in Buffalo,
Yew York?

A. Manager of the Hanlan-Johnson Tug
Line.

(). What is the business of the Union Towing
and Wrecking Company at Duluth?

A, General wrecking and towing business.
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Q. To what species of towing is your com-
pany especially directed?

A.  All harbor towing.

Q. Including vessel towing?

A. Vessel towing, yes, sir.

Q. How long have you led a seafaring life,
Captain?

A. 35 years.

Q. In what species of vessels have you
sailed?

A. Tug boats and steamboats.

Q. Are you now a licensed officer for steam
vessels?

A. Yes, gir.

. You were the manager of a line of tugs
at Buffalo for how many years?

A, Two years.

Q. And prior to that what species of vessel
work were you engaged in?

Sailing and steamboat,

What class of steamboats have you sailed?
3,000 ton boats.

You sailed as master?

Yes, sir.

On what waters has your experience as a
sailor heen, if you remember?

A. The Great Lakes.

Q. And in addition to the sailing of large
steamships on the Great Lakes, have you ever been
in command of vessel towing tugs?

A. Yes, sir. The principal part of my life
was that.

Q. That has been the principal part of your
business, tug ecaptain?

crorop




— 163 —

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Active and practical management of tow-
ing vessels?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Whereabouts is the office of the Union
Towing and Wrecking Company of Duluth located,
Captain?

A. Foot of Tth Avenue West.

Q. And how near the bay front?

A. How?

Q. 1low mnear the harbor?

A. Close to the edge of the dock at the foot
of the street.

Q. Your tug office is located at the extreme
outer end of what is known as the Northern Pa-
cific dock?

A. Yes, sir,

(). And that Northern Pacific dock runs
down in the continuation of what avenue of the
city?

A. Tth Avenue West.

Q. And how close to the extreme outer end
of the dock is your tug office located and was it
located on the 27th and 28th of November, 19057

A, Why, about 15 or 13 feet.

(). And how high above the level of the bay
iz the dock where your office is sitnated?

M. Alford: The level of the bay changes
from time to time, doesn’t it, fluctnates?

A.  Oh, yes.

\[r. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it 1Is irrelevant and immaterial.
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Mr. Spencer: T say the ordinary level.

Mr. Alford: I renew the objection upon the
same grounds.

Objection over-ruled.

A. I should judge between 5 and 6 feet from
the natural stage of water to the top of the dock.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. How high is the office, the office that you
occupled, above the level of the dock?

A. The lower floor is about 8 or 9 inches
above the top of the dock; the upper floor would be
about 9 feet.

Q. I will ask you, Captain, if you were
familiar with the Steamer 8. C. Reynolds?

A, Yes, sir

’ Q. Do you remember the great storm that
took place on Duluth Harbor on the 27th and 28th
of November, 1905? ‘

A, 1 do, yes, sir.

Q. Where were you at that time?

A. 1 was at the office in the afternoon of the
27th.

Q. And where were you on the 28th of No-
vember?

A. At the office.

Q. I will ask you if you know where the
Steamer 8. C. Reynolds was situated on the even-
ing of November 27th?

A. Yes, sir.  She layed to the City Dock.

Q. Whereabouts on the City Dock?

A. T think it is 9th Avenue West,

B .
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Q. At the oufer end of the dock or along
gide?

A. On the outer end of the dock.

Q. 1 will ask you, Captain, what the state of
the weather was on the evening of the 27th of
November?

A. An unusaal storm from the northeast.

. What can you say 48 to the velocity of the
wind at that time; what was it as nearly as you
are able to estimate? :

A. Why, somewhere from 50 to 70 miles an
nour. It reached 73 miles an hour at one time.

Q. And was there any snow?

A, Yes

Q. And to what extent did the snow interfere
with seeing on the night of the 27 th?

A. Oh, you could not look to northward at
all; could not see any lights or anything.

(. Did the storm interfere any with the
movements of vessels about the Duluth Harbor
on the night of the 2Tth?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. To what extent did it interfere with the
movements of shipping about the harbor at Du-

Tuth?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Objection over-ruled.
A. 1 did not move any bhoats.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the answer
op the ground it is nof respopsive to the question.
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Objection over-ruled.

Mr. Spenecer;

Q. Were vessels moved from dock to dock
80 far as you know that night?

A. No. sir; we did not do any.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs move the answer be
stricken out.

Motion granted.

Mr. Spencer:
Q. Why did your tug line not move any
vessels about the harbor that night?

Plaintitfs make same objection as last above;
and it is irrelevant and Immaterial,

Objection over-ruled.

A. We did not care to take the risk. T gave
orders not to move anything,

Q. In your judgment as g seafaring man,
Captain, could vessels like the Reynolds situated
as the Reynolds was that night have been moved
with safety to itself or safety to your tugs about
the Duluth harbor}

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant, immaterial and in-
competent,

Objection over-ruled.
A. I would not let go of a tog that night,

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the answer
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on the ground it is not responsive and moves that
it be stricken out.

Motion granted.

Mr Spencer:

(. 1 will ask you if in your judgment it would
have been a safe or prudent thing to do? You can
answer by Yes or No, if you will?

Plaintifis make same ohjection as last above.
Oljection over-ruled.

A. No, sir, I don’t think it would. 1 know
it would not.

Q. 1 will ask you, Captain, if in your judg-
ment as a seafaring man it would have been a
physical possibility with safety to the ship for the
Steamer S. C. Reypolds situated as it was at the

" outer end of the City Dock, with the storm pre-

vailing as you have described, to have moved that
evening without the aid of tugs?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial;
also as incompetent, indefinite; the question is
very much involved.

Objection over-ruled, to which ruling plaintiffs
duly except.

A. Well, the chances were a Lhundred to one
of serions damage.

Afr. Alford: By Yes or No.

*
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A, No.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. When was the Reyuolds finally removed
from that position at the outer end of the City
Dock, if you know?

A. Sowmewhere from 3:30 to 4:30 of the after-
noon of the 28th,

Q. The Captain of the vessel has testified
that to the best of hig recollection it was the 29th.
Have you anything definite to fix that date in your
mind?

A.  Why, I have our records at the office, ¥es,
but I did not bring them with me,

Q. Have you anything else besides your
records, not having them here?

A. Why, yes. I remember after the Mataafa
was wrecked and the Ellwood, it was the same
day, same afternoon,

Q. That this occurred?

A.  Yes, gir.

Q. You think it was the 28th?

A, 28th, yes, sir.

Q. I will ask you, Captain, if the Steamer
Reynolds made any efforts on that day, the 28th,
to obtain assistance from the tug line?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial,

Objection over-ruleqd.

A. He blew for tugs.
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Mr. Spencer:

Q. And why didn’t you send them to him be-
fore half past 47

A. On account of the storm. The sca was
too big.

Q. Could you give some idea as to the height
of the waves or the severity of the storm during the

28th?
‘A, The sea was rolling over the top of the

dock at our office. There was 4 or 5 inches on
the lower floor. We were staying on the upper
floor.

(). Did the waves run as high as the upper
story of your building?

A. Spray come to the upper windows.

Q. Did vou render assistance to the Reynolds
as soon as it was practically possible on that day?

A. Yes, sin

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial
and move the answer be stricken out.

Motion denied.

Mr. Spencer:

(. 1 will ask you, Captain, if ordinarily the
suter end of the City Dock is a safe place for ships
to lie in the Duluth harbor for ordinary oc-
casions?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
¢p the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Objection sustained.
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Mr. Spencer:

Q. I will ask you, Captain, if in your ex-
perience extending over 25 or 30 years, as you
have said, you have experienced either about Lake
Superior, Duluth or anywhere on the chain of
Great Lakes a storm of equal violence with the
one in question?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial,

Objection over-ruled.

A. No, T did not.

CROSS-EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Alford:

Q. Captain, were you on duty throughout the
night of November 27th and eighth that year?

A, Oh, yes. I was not on the entire night,
no. I went home about 6:30. '

Q. And you did not return to the dock that
night?

A. No.

Q. So that your testimony as fo anything
occurring at the dock or in the harbor after you
went home is simply from what you heard, isn’t
it? '

A. T was in touch with our office until the
telephone service was out.

Q. Not from your own observation?

A.  Not from my own observation during that
night.
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Q. Or from your own observation after 6
o'clock?

A. The severity of the storm was under my
own observation during the whole night.

Q. As to anything that occurred at the dock?

A. Yes, up to the time the telephone service
gave ount I was in communication.

Q. Just a moment. Now, just kindly get
the questions. 1 say, that in so far as anything at
the dock was concerned after six you got simply
from somebody else?

A. (ot it from my night dispatcher.

(. Not from your own observation at all,
personal observation?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, did I understand you to say that
at one time the velocity of the wind attained 73
miles an hour?

A. That iz what 1 believe on the morning
of the 28th.

(). Oh, that was on the morning of the 28th?

A, Yes, sir

{). And not in the course of the night preced-
ing?

A. The storm gradually increased-—

Q. Just a moment. It was not during the
course of the night preceding?

A. I could not say what the velocity of it
was, It was an extraordinary gale of wind all
night.

Q. Just what time did it attain that velocity,
Captain?

A. Couldo’t say; some time during the fore
noon. *
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Q. You were the manager of the Union Tow-
ing and Wrecking Company?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Your Company tows vessels for the Lake
Erie Transportation Company?

A. Yes, qir.

Q. And vessels of the Anchor Line?

A, Yes, gir,

Q. Now, you look after the safety of your
own tugs, don’t you? ‘

A, Yes

Q. And in determining whether in a given
case you will send them out you are governed
by the question as to whether or not it will be
safe for the tug, aren’t you?

A. Well, that is never taken into considera-
tion a great deal; it iz the amount of damage.

Q. You risk the tugs, do you?

A. It is the damage they may do to the
property that you take in tow that we consider.

Q. You do not consider then the question
of the safety of the tug at all?

A, Oh, of course we consider that.

Q. Then you say that vou do consider the
safety of the tug?

A, Why, sure.

Q. In determining whether you wil]l send it
out or not?

A. Bure,

Q). And you did so on this night of the 27th
of November, didn’t you?

A. Yes,

Q. And that was the real thing that governed
you in deciding not to gsend them out?
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A. The safety of the tug?

Q. Yes, primarily? That is, primarily?

A, It was the damage they might do in try-
ing to shift boats.

Q. Then as far as the safety of the tug is
concerned you would have been willing to send
them out, would you; you would have been willing
to risk the tug?

A, No. If the weather conditions were SO
we could, yes.

Q. At that time you—

A. Did not care to risk anything, would not
take any chances whatever at that time., We were
simply there to render assistance to whatever boat
was in distress and eoming in; that was my orders
to the night dispatcher, to render what assistance
he could to incoming boats.

Q. Have vou anything to say now in answer
to that question?

A. No. XNothing more.

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Spencer:

Q. It is in evidence in this case that the
Reynolds was lying at the outer end of the City
Dock, comparatively light, with only a small
amount of cargo, perhaps a couple of hundred of
tons. 1 will ask you if the fact that the vessel was
light would add anything to the difficulty of hand-
ling it in such a storm as prevailed during the
time in question.
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Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it ig irrelevant and immaterial,

Objection over-ruled.

A. It is harder to handle a light vessel that
it is a loaded one in a gale of wind.
Mr. Spencer:

Q. Why is it harder?

A. They catch more wind and of course in
a seaway in the harbor the lines is liable to let go.

Q. And what do you mean by the lines are
liable to let go?

A. The lines are liable to; a light boat will
jump more than a loaded one will.

Q. And that adds to the peril and difficulty
of handling them?

A. Yes, sir.

The Court:
Q. You say a light vessel would jump more?
A, Yes, sir.

Q. And a light vessel would impinge upon
the dock every jump that it made, would it?

A. Of course it is hard on a dock, a vessel
laying alongside of it, I should think.

RE-CROSS-EXAMINATION,

By Mr. Alford:

Q. Captain, did you see the Reynolds pound-
ing the dock there yourself?

A. I saw her there all day, yes, sir.

Q. And she was pounding the dock then, was
she?
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Yes, sir, she was pounding the dock.

FRED BENSON, heing duly sworn as a witness
on behalf of defendant, testifies as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Spencer:

Q. What is your name?

A. Tred Benson.

Q. How old are you, Captain?

A. 54 years old.

Q. Where do you reside?

A. 2531 Park Point.

Q. Duluth?

A. Duluth, yes.

. What is your occupation?

A. T follow the water.

Q. You are a sailor by occupation?

A. Yes, sir.

). Are you a licensed master of steam ves-
gels?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long have you led a seafaring life,
Captain?

A. About 35 years.

Q. What character of vessel have you sailed
during that time?

A. Usually tug boats.

Q. And what vessel are you now employed
on?

A. Steamer Walter Vale,
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Q. In what capacity are you employed on the
Walter Vale?

A. Mate.

Q. Are you familiar with the harbor of Du-
Iuth and SBuperior?

A. Yes, gir.

Q. Have you ever operated tugs upon these
waters?

A, Yes, gir.

Q. How long have you been as master sailing
steam tugs, towing tugs, npon the harbor of Duluth
and Superior and vicinity?

A. T commenced work here in 1888 and have
been here since practically all the time,

Q. Principally what class of towing have
¥ou been engaged in during the last 15 or 20 years
here?

A. Why, I am engaged in what is commonly
called vessel towing; all kinds of towing in fact.

Q. What, in addition to your service as
master of steam tugs, on what other classes—what
other vessels have you sailed on on the Great
Lakes?

A. All classes of vessels on the Lakes.

Q. In what various capacities?

A, All eapacities, from deck hand to—

Q. What vessel were you in command of on
the 27th and 28th days of November, 1905, at the
time of the big storm at Duluth?

A. That is the time the Mataafa was wrecked
here?

Q. Yes?

A. I was in the B. B. Inman.
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(. What kind of a tug ig the tug B. B. Inman
so far as size, power and capacity is concerned?

A. She is a big tug; she is a first class tug.

Q. Do you remember the occasion of the big
storm that occurred at Duluth?

A. I certainly do.

Q. In November of 19052

A. Yes, sir.

(). Where were you personally on the even-
ing of November 27th, 19057

A. The evening of the 27th; that is the even-
ing before the storm? It was our tug’s night off.

Q. And where were you personally?

A. 1 was on the tug. We have nights off in
rotation. Our tug was off that night.

(). What you mean by having a night off,
your fug was not in active—

A. No, she was not in active operation.

Q. Where was your tug lying?

A, She was lying in what ig called the North-
ern Pacific slip, number 4. '

(. And where is that with respect to the tug
office of the Union Towing and Wrecking Com-
pany”?

A, Tt is in the first slip to the eastward
towards the canal from the tug office, the slip
where the Patterson Boat House is, where the Boat
Club used to be.

. Where Patterson’s Boat House is?

A, Patterson’s Boat House is in the slip, yes,
gir.

(). The tugs of the Union Towing and Wreck-
ing Company at that time were engaged more
particularly in what class of towing?
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A. Vessel towing principally.

Q. About how many tugs did they have in
commission on the 27th and 28th day of No-
vember? ‘

A. I think they had six. T am not positive
about that.

Q. You say you remember the storm that oc-
curred there. Tell the jury something as to the
character and severity of that, if you will?

A. There isn’t much to tell—

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is too indefinite.

Objection over-ruled.

A. Why, it was an unusually severe storm,
In fact, it was the most severe storm I have ever
experienced either in Duluth or anywheres. There
was damage done here— )

Mr. Alford: Just a moment. The question
is answered :

Mr. Spencer:

(3. What direction was the wind from?

A. About northeast.

Q. And can you give an estimate as to its
velocity?

A. I could not from my own observation. I
understood that the wind was about—

Mr. Alford: Just a moment. Plaintiffs ask
that what the witness understood be stricken out.

(No ruling).
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A. Very high velocity.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. 1 am speaking of the evening of the 27th. 535
\What was it on the evening of the 27th?

A. When we went in the slip?

Q. Yes?

A. There was a light breeze from-the north-
east, not very strong.

Q. But later in the svening along about 10
or 11 o’clock in the evening?

A. The wind increased.

(). What was the velocity of the wind the
following day, the 27thi

A. Very high velocity; extremely high.

(. And the evening of the 27th was there any
snow?

A, Spowed hard; heavy snow storm. After
ahout 9 o’clock I think it commenced to snow 8 or
9 o'clock.

(). How thickly was the atmosphere obseured
with spow?

A. Very thick. You could not see any dist-
ance,

(. Arc you familiar with the Steamer 8. C.
Reynolds?

A. Yes, sir. 537

Q. Do yon know where the Reynolds was
lying on the evening of the 27th?

Yes, sir.

TWhereabouts?

Lying on the bay front of the City Dock.
Do vou know when the Reynolds was
finally removed from that dqek?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. When was that?

A. That was the afternoon of the next day,
the 28th,

Q. And who removed it?

A, T did

Q. It is in evidence in thig case, Captain,
that the Steamer Reynolds was lying at the outer
end of the City Dock with her port gide next to
the dock and comparatively light. 1 will ask you,
Captain, as a practical seaman whether in your
opinion it would have been possible with safety to
the Steamer for that vessel to have moved itself
during the night of the 27th without assistance,
taking into consideration all of the weather con-
ditions prevailing?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not a proper hypothetieal ques-
tion, omits some facts in evidence; and also on the
ground it is irrelevant and immaterial and in-
competent,

(No ruling).

A. Why, I think it would have been impos-
sible to remove her with any element of safety
whatever.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. To what extent did the severity of the
storm interfere with navigation in the harbor of
Duluth at that time, during the night of the 27th
and the day of the 28th?

= ey




— 181 —

: Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
L on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Objection sustained.

: Mr. Spencer:
' Q. Do you know?
A. Yes, sir, 1 know.

]
e
' A.
Q.
A.
» Q.

Q. To what extent.
Plaintiffs make same objection as last above.
Objection over-ruled.

A. Navigation was tied up entirely in the
’ harbor.
in out of the lake.

Nothing moving excepting such as came

CROSS-EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Alford:

Your tug was in the N. P. slip number 4,

I believe during the night of the 27th and 28th?

During the night of the 27th, yes, sir.
What time did you go in there?

Ye went in about 6 o’clock.

Captain, do you rememher whether any

vessel came in through the canal in the course of

that night?
Al
Q.
A
Q.
A,
Q.

Yes. There was one came in.
That was the Arizona?

Yes, sir.

She came in under her own steam ?
Yes, sir,

And into what slip did she go?
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A. T am not certain. I think she came into
number 4 glip.

Q. In the same slip in which you were lying?

A. T think so, yes,

Q. Captain, from which direction was the
wind?

A. Why, about northeast, general direction.

Q. If the lines of that beat Reynolds had
permitted she would gradually have worked stern-
ward under the force of the wind, wouldn’t she?

A. She would.

Q. So that it was the lines of the vessel that
held her in place, was it not?

A. It was,
Q. That held her to the dock?
A, Yes.

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Spencer:

Q. You say your tug was lying in the North-
ern Pacific slip. That is a little to the eastward
of where the Reynolds was Iying?

A. T did not quite understand the question.

Q. T say, the Northern Pacific slip is a little
to the eastward of the City Dock?

A, Yes,

Q. And did you go to bed during the night
of the 27th?

A. Was I abed?

Q. Yes?

A. Why, a short time in the first part of the
evening.
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Q. What were you doing during most of the

night of the 27th?
A. Trying to keep the tug from getting 547

broken up in the slip there.
Q. Why was it necessary for you to make

those efforts?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer:
Q. State to the jury something as to the

height of the waves that were coming over the bay
hat time? -
at that time . 548

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial, irrelevant and in-

competent. This witness has already testified he

cannot tell from his own knowledge.

Mr, Spencer: Oh, no, he has not.

! The Court:
Q. You was in that slip all the time?
A. No, I was not.

y Q. Where was you?
A. 1 came out of the slip about 3 o’clock in  gq9

the morning and went up into what we call number
9 slip. That is up where Napoleon’s shipyard is.
l \We could not lay in the N. P. slip any longer.

The Court: You may answer.

A. Why, the waves in the harbor were going
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over the top of the dock, something T never saw
Lefore.

Mr. Spencer:
Q. Why did you leave the slip in which your
tug was lying along about 8 o’clock in the morning?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial.

Objection sustained.

Mr, Spencer:
Q. Where did you go to?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial,

Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. It is in evidence in this case, Captain, as
I have already stated that the Steamer Reynolds
was light on that occasion, with a very small
amount of cargo aboard; she was practically light.
I will ask vou if in the actunal handling of vessels
in a heavy wind, if the fact of its being loaded or
light makes any difference as to the safety with
which they can be handled?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial.

Objection over-ruled,

A. Handle a loaded vessel with much more
safety than you ean a light vessel.
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Mr. Spencer:

Q. Just answer the question by Yes or No.
Does the fact of its being loaded or light make a
(ifference in the handling?

A. Yes.

Q. Which can be handled with greater ease
and safety, a loaded vessel in a heavy wind or one
that is light with high sides out?

\r. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial

Objection cver-ruled.

A. A loaded vessel.

The Court:

Q. A light vessel under such a wave would
he lifted higher and have a greater distance to
fall that a loaded vessel, wouldn't it, by the waves?

A. I don’t know as I could say that, Judge,
put the wind, the greater effect, I think. of
course there is much more of the boat out of water.

Q. That is, they would rise and fall with the
waves, would they?

A. They would, yes, sir.

Q. The other Captain that was here spoke of
it as jumping?

A.  Well, we refer to it in that way, asa usual
thing.

Q. And every jump would be agamst the
material to which it was fastened?

A. It would depend on the direction of the
wind largely.

Q. Well, with the wind as it was that night?
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A. Yes. Well, the wind was very nearly
ahead as she lay. T don’t know as the wind would
drive it on to the dock very much but of course
the lines would have a tendency to pull her toward
the dock.

Q. Was the wind ahead or on the quarter?

A. The wind was very nearly ahead; slightly
on her starboard bow where she lay.

RE-CROSS-EXAMINATION,

By Mr. Alford:

Q. You say the lines would tend to pull her
on to the dock?

A, I said so.

Q. Did you see her pounding the dock?

A. T could not say that I saw her pounding
the dock. I saw her laying there at the dock but
of course 1 was out in the harbor., A boat Inter-
vened hetween me and the dock always.

Q. You moved your tug you say about 4
o’clock?

A. 3 or 4 o'clock. 3 o’clock, I think it was
when I came out of the slip.

Q. That was the morning of the 28th?

A. Morning of the 28th, after 12 o’clock.

RE-RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Spencer:

Q. Would it have been possible with safety
to the Reynolds to have moved her at that time
that you moved your tug?



— 187 —
Mr. Alford: That is objected to.

The Court: You have asked the question
once. It has been answered. 559

Mr, Spencer: Defendant offers in evidence
the deposition of Frank Rheda.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

FRANK RHODA, a witness on behalf of the
Olaimants, called and heing first duly sworn,
testifies as follows:

560

DIRECT EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Spencer:
How old are you?
Thirty-four.
Where do you live?
Perrysburg, Ohio.
What is your business?
Heaman.
How long have you led a seafaring life?
Thirteen years. 561
In what positions have you sailed?
Lookout man, watchman, wheel man.
Q. What vessel were you employed on on the
27th of November, 19057
A. The & C. Reynolds.
Q. ‘What position did you occupy?
A. Wheelsman. .
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Q. How long had you been wheelsman on the
Reynolds?

A. Three seasons.

Q. Pretty fair idea how the Reynolds
handles?

A, Yes, gir

Q. You remember the occasion of the big
storm that occurred at Duluth at that time?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You remember the Reynolds coming to
the City Dock about five o’clock in the afternoon
of the 27th?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. Do you remember dizcharging freight dur-
ing the early evening there?

A, Yes, sir,

Q. What were the weather conditions that
night about ten thirty when the freight was dis-
charged ? '

A. Blowing, snowing very hard.

Q. T ask you what, if any, effect did the sea
have on that City Dock, did you notice?

A. Yes, sir; the sea was running over the
dock and you couldn’t stand out on the dock ; you
couldn’t get out without boots.

Q. What effect did that have on the con-
struction of the dock? '

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial ; and
also as indefinite,

{No ruling).
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Mr. Spencer (Reading):
A. It was tearing up the plank there.

\r. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the answer
on the ground it is not responsive and move it be
stricken out,

Objection over-ruled, and motion denied to
which ruling plaintiffs duly except.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

Q. You could see that?

A. Yes, you would have to jump across places
where the sea washed openings in the dock.

Q. Do you remember tug signals being blown
by the Reynolds?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How many were sounded during the night
of November 27th?

A. 1 thought it was three.

(). And the tug office was near by there?

A. Yes, just across—

Q. Were there any other vessels towing ships
in the harbor except the Great Lakes tugs that
you know of?

A. No, sir.

Q. What was the fact as to whether any tugs
came or not?

A. None came.

Q. Ip your judgment was there any need of
assistance in getting away from the dock that
night?

Mer. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the guestion
on the ground it is irrelevant-and immaterial..
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Objection over-l;ule(L

Mr. Spencer (Reading) :

A. Yes, sir, it was necessary.

Q. Taking into consideration the forece and
direction of the sea at that time was it possible
for the vessel to have gotten away from that dock
by her own machinery without assistance?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Objection over-ruled.

Mr. Spencer (Reading) :

A. No, sir.

Q. Why not?

A.  Because the wind was blowing hard and
helding her ex—couldn’t get away.

Q. What in your judgment would have been
the probable effect if you had attempied to get
away from the dock without a tug?

Plaintiffs make same objection as last above.

Objection over-ruled.

Mr. Spencer {Reading) :
A. It was impossible,

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs move the answer he
stricken out.

Motion granted.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):
Q. Did you ever know as serious a storm at
the head of Lake Superior as that was?
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Plaintiffs make same objection as last ahove.
Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

Q. Tow about the velocity of the wind; did
it increase any during the night?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. What about the next day; how long did it
continue?

A. All that afternoon it was blowing pretty
hard, all through the night up to noon it was blow-
ing seventy or seventy-two miles an hour.

Q. After that it moderated?

A. Some, not much; kept going down.

(). What time in the afternoon did you suc-
ceed in getting away finally?

A. T think between four and five o’clock; we
were there about twenty-four hours altogether I
think.

Q. State some of the effects of that storm
here on the dock as far as you observed? Just
state what you saw?

A. The swell coming in there and the under
tow was washing up over the dock ana washed
the piles out underneath—made it unsafe to walk
there —working on the dock and passing a line you
would not know whether you would get away.

Q. That continued all night and the next
day?

A, Yes, &ir.
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CROSS-EXAMINATION.

Mr. Alford:
Q. When was the velocity at its highest?
574 A. T think about eleven o’clock next day

along in the morning I should judge.

Q. Tt continued to grow up to that point?

A. Yes, sir, I think so and again in the after-
noon; it kind of went down gradually.

Q. You got away from that dock about four
o’'clock?

A. The 28th. Between four and five.

Q. Wag there consideralhle of a swell there?

A

Yes, sir.
Q. The vessel was light?
A. No, gir, she was not.
575 Q. She was not light?
A. XNo, sir, we had freight on us yet.
Q. You heard the captain testify a little
while ago?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Was he wrong about that?
A. She was not light—
Q. That was his testimony?
A, Nbo, sir, I don’t think it was; he said she
had a couple of hundred tons of freight.
Q. Compared with her capacity she stood
high out of the water?
576 A, Ob, yes, sir, if that is what you mean.
Q. Her motion was affected by that swell?
A, Yes, sir.
Q. Congiderable?
A,

Yes, by the wind and swell.
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Q. Isn’t it a fact that at times she would be
lifted up—raised—and then come down?

A. Yes, riding the sea a little.

Q. And would come against the dock when
ghe came down.

A. No, sir, she would not.

Q. She didn’t touch the dock?

A. Oh, yes, she would catch the dock oe-
casionally but the sea was not coming abeam of
her—ahead and a little on the starboard bow.

(). And the wind was two points further to
the northeast than the boat was?

A. I should judge she was heading out north-
northeast.

(). And the wind was—

A. Pretty close to northeast.

Q. Isn't it a fact that wind tended to crowd
her against the dock?

A, Yes, it would more or less.

Q. As I understand you then—is it your idea
to testify that the boat didn’t have anything to do
with tearing up that dock at all?

A. Oh, no, I didp’t say that.

(. 1Is it your idea she did have something
to do with it?

A. Probably had something to do with it, but
as I said, the sea—

Q. Helped a little?

A.  Yes, considerable, because when the boat
would not be touching the dock you would see the
plank flying out from the dock.

Q. You would not undertake to testify as to
what loosened the plank in the first instance?

A. No, sir ‘

577

578

579



580

581

582

—194 —

Q. You think there were three tug signals?

A. T thought there was, yes, sir.

Q. When did the vessel leave the harbor fin-
ally on that trip?

A. On the 29th of November.

Q. What time?

A. Thirtieth of November morning; I think
we worked on her all night.

Q. Taking on cargo?

A. Yes, sir.

(. Where did she go when she left the City
Dock?

A. I think she went to the Northern dock.

Q. Where, from there?

A. I think we loaded some flour and feed
over there and came down here; I don’t just know
the names of these docks—came down here and
worked all night, worked all night till the morning.

Q. Is this correct—that you got your return-
ing cargo as soon as possible and left the harbor?

A. Yes, sir, right along after that.

Q. How long have you been on the Reynolds?

A. Three years—three seasons.

Q. Were you ever on her before that time?

A. Yes, sir.

). Ounce before that?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. How long ago was that?

A. 1 was in ber in 798 and ’99—no—yes, in
the years "98 and ’99 and 1900.

Q. Ever on her before that?

A. No, sir.
Q. How long have you known of her?
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A. T have known of her ever since she was
Dew.

Q). ‘When was that? 583

A. 1880 T think she came out.

Q. Wooden vessel?

A, NO, sir.

Q. Steel?

A, Yes, sir

(. She is pot one of the biggest vessels on
the lakes?

A. No, sir.

584
FRANK RHODA, recalled for further cross-
examination, testified as follows:
Mr. Alford:

Q. During what part of the night after fin-
ishing the unloading of the Reynolds at the City
Dock were you on duty?

A. During the whole night.

2. Do you recall the fact of another vessel
coming through the canal that night and going
into one of the slips between the city dock and
the canal? 585

A. No, sir, I didn’t notice it.

(). Do vou remember the fact whether or not
a vessel came in during that night through the
canal?

A. In the afterncon?

Q. In the night?

A. Not that T know of jn the night.
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Q. You are familiar with the Reynolds; you
krow it is a steel built vessel?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. Steel structure?

A. Yes, sir

Q. Tow many waier compartments has it?
A. Two,

Q.

What is the capacity of those water com-
partments?

A. Well, T don’t know—the tonnage, you
mean?

Q. Yes?

A. T can’t tell that.

Q. Do you know how much it is possible to
lower the boat by filling the water compartments?

A.  More than the natural draft?

Q. Yes?

A. Probably put her down two feet.

Q. It would be possible to lower her two
feet; is that an estimate?

A. Yes, I have not noticed particularly; I
have nothing to do with that figuring.

Q. Where were you stationed during the
night?

A. At the City Dock.

Q. T mean where were you stationed?

A. TUp and round on the deck, handling lines,

Q. You were busy?

A. Yes, most of the time; had to be around
anyway.

Q. So that a vessel might have coms into
the canal without you noticing 1€?

A. Yes, might have.
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Mr. Spencer: Defendant offers in evidence
the deposition of George Coleman.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

GEORGE COLEMAN, a witness on behalf of
Claimants, called and, being first duly sworn,
on oath deposes and says:

DITECT EXAMINATION.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. Where do you live?

A. Hamburg, Pennsylvania.
). How old are you?

A. Thirty-five,

Q. What is your occupation?
A. Heaman.

Q. How long have you led a seafaring life?
A. Ten years

Q. On the lakes?

A, Yes, sir

Q.

What positions have you occupied during
that time?

A. Watchman, wheelsman, deck hand.

(). What vessel were you in on the 27th of
November, 19057

A. The 8. C. Reynolds.

(). What position did you occupy on the
Hteamer 8. . Reynolds?

A, Watchman. .
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Q. Do vou remember the occasior of the
great storm that occurred at Duluth at that time?

A. Yes, sir.

. Do you remember the occasion of the S.
C. Reynolds discharging cargo at the City Dock
at that time?
Yes, sir.
What position did she have at that dock?
Laying on the face of the dock.
Her port side next to the dock?
Yes, sir.
. And about what time in the evening was
the freight finally discharged that was consigned
to that dock?

A. About ten o’clock.

Q. What were the weather conditions at that
time?

A. Starting to blow at that time.

Q. How much wind was there on at that
time?

A. I don’t remember just at that time—blow-
ing pfetty hard.

Q. What direction?

A. Northeast,

Q. Do you remember any attempt having
been made to get a tug?

A. Yes, we blowed for a tug about three
times.

Q. Did any tug come?

A. No, sir.

Q. What other efforts did the vessel make
to get away from the dock?

A. Blowing for a tug.

Q. When did a tug finally come?

creoerer
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A. A tug came on the following night I

Q. Afterncon or night?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Was there any necessity for a tug to come
that night of the 27th, could the vessel have got
away safely without having a tug?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

(bjection over-ruled.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

A. I don’t know; it was blowing pretty hard
at that time too; not as hard as before, but still
some.

(3. I mean at half past ten on November 27th,
after the cargo was off, was there any need of a
tug’s assistance to get away?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. In your judgment would it have been pos-
sible for the vessel to have got away under her
own steam?

A. No, sir.

OROSS-EXAMINATION.

Mr. Alford:

Q. You remember there were three calls for
a tug?

A, Yes, sin

Q. About how much of an interval were
these calls apart?

-
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A. T don’t remember; about three or four
hours I think; I think there was two hours be-
tween the first and the second and it was along
in the afternoon when the other one was blown;
I don’t remember about that.

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION.

Mr, Spencer:

Q. Did vou notice any effect these geas com-
ing in there had upon the dock?

A. The seas rolling in on the dock kind of
moved the planks ap.

Mr. Alford:

Q. You don’t know what loosened the planks
in the firgt instance?

A. T don't know, no.

Mr. Spencer: Defendant offers in evidence
the deposition of John Dunn,

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

JOHN DUNN, a witness on behalf of Claimants,
called and, being first duly sworn, on oath
deposes and says:

DIRECT EXAMINATION.

Mr. Spencer:
Q. How old are you?
A. Thirty-nine,
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Q. Where do you reside?

A. Tolede, Ohio.

Q. What is your occupation?

A, Watchman,

Q. A sailor?

A. Yes, seaman.

Q. How long have you led a seafaring life?
A. Seventeen or eighteen years.

Q. In what various positions?

A. Lookout man and watchman on the Great

Q. In what classes of vessels have you sailed?

A. Iron vessels and wooden vessels.

Q. What vessel were you in on November
2Tth, 19057

A. B. C Reynolds.

Q. In what capacity?

A, Lookout man.

Q. Do you remember the occasion of the ves-
sel coming to the City Dock on that day?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. You remember the discharging of the
cargo that night?

A, Yes,

Q. What time was that concluded?

A. About ten o'clock.

Q. May have been after that?

A. Yes, may have been.

(3. What were the weather conditions when
she completed discharging?

A. Blowing hard, snowing, snowing very
hard, made it rather thick.

(). How dark was it; give us an illustration?

A. It was dark through,the snow storm.
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Q. Could you see the tug office from where
you were?

A. No, sir, I didn’t see it.

Q. What effect did the snow have as far as
seeing to any extent was concerned?

A. So yon couldn’t see very far; shut off the
sight of the lights at any distance.

Q. What efforts were made to obiain as-
sistance to the vessel to get away?

A. Blowing for tugs.

Q. Were there tugs in the harbor whose busi-
ness it was to render assistance?

A.  Yes, sir.
Q. Did any come that night?
A. No, sir.

Q. When did one finally reach the Reynolds?
A. Sometime next afternoomn.

. How many times did the steamer blow
for a tug?

A. Twice that I know of.

Q. Was there a sea coming through across
the harbor at that time?

A. Yes, gir, rather big seca.

Q. What effect did that have on the dock?

A. The sea struck under the dock, loosened
the boards and spiles and drove the plank of the
dock upward.

(). What was the weather like, cold or warm?

A. Rather cold.

Q. Ice formed there next day?

A. Yes, I think it did some; it was slippery
on the dock.

Q. In vour judgment could the Reynolds
have gotten away from the dock without a tug?
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Mr. Alford: DPlaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Objection over-ruled.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

A. N, sir, I don’t think the wind and sea—
tuking a chance of doing great damage to the ves-
sel and crew, striking a rocky bottom and old
stumps and piles which I poticed particularly was
close astern of the vessel

(). If the lines had been loosened at all what
would have been the effect in your judgment?

The vessel would have been blown on rocks
and these spiles on the bottom.

CROSS-EXAMINATION.

Mr. Alford:

(). You don’t know whether there were any
rocks astern of the vessel?

A. 1 understand there is,

(). You don’t know there are?

A. Yeg, seems to me I have seen them there,
not at the time this happened but last winter.

Q. You wish to testify to that now?

A. T would not swear there are, no.

(). Are you undertaking to say what you
have been told since about that?

A, Well, yes.

Q. You know nothing about that of your own
kunowledge?

A. No, sir. not of my own knowledge.

Q. And vou dido’t know at the time?
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A, No, sir,
Q. How far were the spiles from the stern of
the veszel?

A. Very close.

Q. Across the slip?

A, Yes.

Q. On the other side of the slip; there is a
slip to the west of the dock?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You say you saw the water washing under
the dock and vou noticed it lift the planking?
Yes.
When did you notice that?
When I was on watch.
What time?
Next morning, next forenoon.
You would not undertake to say the vessel
had nothing to do with loosening the dock?

A. I couldn’t hardly say as to that.

Q. As far as your testimony goes now it
may have had something to do with loosening that
dock?

CPOFoP

Well, possibly it had.

Were you on duty that night?
No, sir.

When did you go on duty?
Six o’clock in the evening.
How long were you on?

Till midnight.

Then you were off—

Till six in the morning.

pPRoFrLPlPop

Mr. Spencer: Defendant offers in evidence
the deposition of George Coleman, recalled for
further cross-examination, as follows:
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Mr. Spencer (Rleading):
GEORGE COLEMAN, recalled for further cross-

examination, testifies as follows:

Mr., Alford:

Q. During what part of the night after the
RReynolds had finished unloading at the City Dock
were you on duty?

A. All night T was on watch.

Q. Do you remember the fact of another ves
sel coming into the canal that night and going into
one of the slips hetween the City Dock and the
canal?

A. No, I might have seen it.

Q. And not remember it?

A, Yes

Q. Do you know how much it was possible to
lower the Rleynolds by filling her water bottom?

A. No, I do not; she has thirty-six inches of
a water bottom.

Q. Where did your duties engage vou that
night?

A. Round deck, watching round the deck on
the boat.

(2. It became necessary for you to get off and
on occasionally?

A. Yes, when the lines were parted or some-
thing like that, or slipped off.

Q3. You would replace them?

A, Yes, sin.

613

614

615



616

617

618

— 206 —

Q. As a matter of fact did they slip off
sometimes?

A. They parted sometimes, some of them.

Q. 8o another vessel might have come in and
you would not have notice it?

A. Yes.
Q. That would be possible?
A, Yes,

Q. How much water does the Reynolds draw
when light?

A, About four feet.

Q. Aft?

A. Forward.

Mr. Spencer:
Q. How much aft?
A. Indeed I don’t know; I can’t tell you that.

Mr. Alford:

Q. How much did she draw when loaded?

A. Geperally draws about fifteen forward
and sixteen feet aft, that is, package freight; when
she is carrying grain she draws more, as high as
seventeen feet.

(. That is, the cargo is heavier?

A. Yes; when she is light she is about four
feet forward; the water would put her down, I
suppose about a couple of feet; the water does not
put her down much because she has not much of
a water bottom.
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W. E. HOY, being duly sworn as a witness on
behalf of defendant, testifics as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION,

By Mr. Spencer:

. What is your name, Captains

A. W. E. Hoy.

3. Where do you reside?

A. In Duluth.

€. How long have you lived in Duluth?

A. 15 vears.

Q. What is your cccupation?

A. Tug Captain.

Q. How long have you led a seafaring life?

A.  Oh, about 24 years.

Q. In what various capacities have you
sailed?

A, Wheelsman, watchman, before the mast
on a vessel and as master of tugs and master of
lugs,

Q. What do you mean by being hefore the
mast?

A. That iz a sailor.

(). Omn what kind of vessels?

A. Sailing vessels,

(3. Sailing vessels?

A, Yes, sir,

Q. On what waters has your experience as a
sailor been principally confined?

A. Lake Superior.

Q. And are you a regularly licensed officer
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of the United Statse as a master of steam ves-
sels?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Ilow long have you been a licensed officer
of the government?

A. Bince ’93.

Q. And during that time you have heen in
command of vessels, towing tugs?

A. Yes, sir, most of the time,

Q. You are familiar with the Duluth and
Superior harbor?

A. Yes, gir,

Q. Have you been engaged as master of
steam tugs around the Duluth and Superior
Harbor?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Towing vessels?

A. Yes, gir,

Q. During a period of how many years haa
vour experience continued around Duluth Harbor
as master of steam tugs?

A. Ten years.

Q. And by whom are you employed at the
present time?

A. Sir?

Q. Are vou engaged in that business at the
present time?

A, Yes, sir

. By whom are you now employed?

A. Union Towing and Wrecking Company.

Q. That operates a line of towing tugs in
Duluth ITarbor?

A, Yes, gir,
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Q. Did they operate a number of tugs for
towing vessels on November, 19052

A.  Yes, sir.

Q. Are vou familiar with the Steamer 8. C.
Reyuolds?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I will ask you, Captain, if you remember
the big storm that occurred in Duluth on November
27th and 28th, 19057

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What tug were you in command of at
that time?

A. The Record.

Q. The Tug Record?

A. Yeg, sir.

Q. Where were you during the night of the
27th?

A, We were laying at different docks.

(). Were you doing any towing that night?

A. Well, we were looking for it; that is, we
come in front of the office and cou]d not get to
the dock, come in front of the office and if they had
an order for us we would take the order.

Q). Why couldn’t you get up to the dock?

Mr., Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial.

Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer:

(). What was the direction of the wind at
that time?

A. Northeast.

(). And how hard was it blowing after ten
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o’clock, we will say, on the 27th, or after half past
ten?

On the 27th?

Yes?

I should judge it was blowing a gale.

And how long did that continue?
Continued until the afternoon of the 28th,
Were vessels ghifting around from one
dock to another any during the night of the 27th
or the day of the 28th?

Croror

Mr. Alford: Ilaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial.

Objection over-ruled.

A. Not around the harbor, the face of the
harbor,

Mr. Spencer:

Q. To what extent did the gale then prevail-
ing interfere with the navigation of vessels on the
harbor during the night of the 27th and day of
the 28th, if you know?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial.

Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. Do you know where the Steamer 8. C.
Reynolds was on that occasion?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Tt is in evidence in this case that she was
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lIving at the outer end of the city dock, her port
side next to the dock.

Q. Did the snow conditions have anything
to do with the difficulty of navigating on the night
of the 27th?

A, Yes, gir,

Q. And did the wind conditions have some-
thing to do with making it dangerous?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I will ask you if you heard any signals
for a tug given by the Steamer 8. (. Reynolds
while she was tied to that dock, on the night of
the 27th?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial.

Objection over-ruled.

A. I dido’t hear any on the night of the 27th.

Mr., Bpencer:

. Did you hear some the succeeding day?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. How frequently did she blow for assist-
ance?

A.  Oh, she blowed several times.

(). Tt is in evidence that the vessel was lying
there comparatively light. I will ask you, Cap-
tain, taking into consideration the weather condi-
tions that were prevailing and after 10 o’clock on
the 27th and up to the afternoon until 4 or half
past of the 28&th, T will ask you, Captain, if in
vour judgment as a seafaring man and a practical
navigator, whether the Reynolds could without
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assistance and with safety to herself or other prop-
erty, have been moved.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Objection over-ruled.
A. No, sir.

Mr. Spencer:
Q. Why not?

Plaintiffs make same objection as last above.
Objection over-ruled.

A. The conditions of the weather was not so
that anything could move in the line of a steam-
boat, in my estimation,

Q. During your whole experience as a sea-
faring man and more particularly since you have
been a resident of this part of the world, did you
ever know of a storm of that extreme violence that
prevailed during the night of the 27th and the day
of the 28th, of 19057

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Objection over-ruled, to which ruling plain-
tiffs duly except.

A. No, sir, in all my experience I never secn
such a storm.

Mr. Spencer:
Q. What effect, if you observe, did the waves
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or sea, the water of the harbor, have upon the City
Daock?

Mr, Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial.

The Court:
Q. Do you know?

Mr. Spencer:
Q. Did you observe what the effect of the
sea on the City Dock on the 28th?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial; also
as calling for a conclusion of the witness.

Objection over-ruled.

A. Yes, sir,

Mr. Spencer:
Q. What effect did it have on the dock?
What did vou see?

Plaintiffs make same objection as last above.
Objection over-ruled.

A, 1saw the seas were washing over the dock
from 2 to 3 feet.

Q. And what appearance did the City Dock
present at that time?

A.  Well, she presented the appearance of the
seas washing over the Dock.

Q. What can you say as to the temperature
of the weather at that time?,
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It was cold.
Water was freezing?
Yes, gir.
During the night of the 27th was the
water freezing cold?

A. Tt was freezing.

Q. Was the dock covered with ice the fol-
lowing day?

A Yes, sir.

Lrop

CROSS-EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Alford:

Q. Just where were you in the course of the
night, Captain?

A. Of the night?

Q. Yes; the 27th and 28th?

A, Well, we would come to a dock where we
could lay up the river and as close to a telephone
as we could and we would call up our office—

The Court:

Q. Where was you?

A, Well, Garfield Avenue for a while; at dif-
ferent docks; down to Old Town for a while.

Mr. Alford:

Q. You moved about from dock to dock in
the course of the night?

A, Yeq, sir,

Q. Now, you noticed you say water washing
over the City Dock?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. When did you notice that?
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A. Noticed that the 28th.

Q. Well, was it constantly submerged or
would that washing occur when a wave would
rise?

A. When a wave would rise.

Q. The wave would break over the dock?

A. Yes, sir,

(). Did you see the Reynolds lying there?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Did you notfice how the Reynolds had
battered down the dock?

A. No, sir, T did not notice.

Q. Didn’t pay any attention to that?

A. No, sir

Q. Now, yvou were looking out for tows that
night, were you?

A. We never looked out for tows.

Q. Oh, you do not look out for tows?

A. No, sir.

(2. You only tow as you get orders to do so?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. But von kept yourself in position to do
towing if occaston called for it, did you?

A. 1 tried to get as close to a telephone as 1
could.

Q. And you were keeping yourself in readi-
ness to take towing if oceasion should eall for it,
did you?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. T suppose the Reynolds was tied up there
to the dock, wasn’t she?

A, Yes, sir,

(3. And held there by her lines?

A, Yes, sir.
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The Court:

}. 'Where was you when you saw the water
washing over the dock on the 28th?

A. T was trying to get orders from our office,

Q. Where was you?

A. Right in front of our office in the bay.

Q. And did you notice anything about the
condition of the dock, whether it was then broken
down or not?

A. No, sir, 1 didn’t notice.

Mr. Alford:

Q. How far is your office from the City
Dock?

A. It would he about 300 feet. That may
be a little excess but T know the slip is 120 feet
and it is probably 120 feet from the end of the
dock to our office. That would he 240 feet. That
would probably be a little closer.

Q. Northern Pacifie Dock was between yon
and the City Dock, wasn’t it?

A. No, sir. They are in line.

Q. Yes. They are in line. But which was
nearer to where your office was, the City Dock or
Northern Pacific?

A. Northern Pacific.

Q3. And then which was nearer the City Dock
or the Omaha?

A. The Omaha; well, we call it all the slip,
the Omaha slip.

Q. T may have misled you there, Captain.
The Omaha was between you and the City Dock,
wasn't it?

A. Yes, sir; it is only one dock, you know.
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Q. Wasn’t the Revnclds also attached to the
Omaha Dock at her bow?
) A. I believe she was. 649
f Q. Then do you still say that you could see
the City Dock from that office?
. A, Yes, sir.
(). The vessel and the Omaha did not
obstruct your vigion?
A. Yo, sir. You can see right clean through
L almost to the lime kiln slip when there is a steam-
V Loat Iving there; you can see the seas wash right
through between the dock and the steamboat on
top of the dock.

Mr. Spencer: Defendant offers in evidence

deposition of C. C. Balfour. 650
Mr. Spencer (Reading):
C. C. BALFOUR, a witness on behalf of Claim-
ants, called and, being first duly sworn, on
oarh deposes and says:
DIRECT EXAMINATION.
Mr. Spencer: 651

(3. What is your name?
A. C. . Balfour.
(). Where do you reside?
'l . A.  Detroit.
(). How old are you?
A, TForty-seven.
Q. What is your occupation?
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Master of a steam vessel.
How long have you led a seafaring life? .
Thirty-two years.

Q. What ship were you in command of on
the 27th of November, 19057

A. The Bransford.

Q. Do vou recollect the great storm on Lake
Superior at that time?

A, Very well, yes, sir.

Q. Whereabouts were you at the time of that
storm?

A. 1 got every hit of it; when it struck me
I was about ten miles northwest of Caribou Island
coming this way; it struck me there with a regular
snowstorm, blinding blizzard.

P O B

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs move that portion be
stricken out as not responsive: “It struck me
there with a regular snow storm, blinding bliz-
zard.”

Motion granted.

Mr. Spencer (Reading) :

What port were you coming to?

Duluth.

When did you get to Duluth?

Got here Wednesday at nine o’clock.

I ask vou, Captain, to state in your own
language as to the character and violence of that
storm; did you ever experience anything equal to
that?

Croro

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.
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Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer (Tteading):

(. What ships have you sailed in?

A. Pretty good ships,. the Tice—the Sibley,
Charles Elder, five years, Steamer Venue, Frank
Peavey, George T’eavey, one year, Bransford two
vears, the Henrv B. Smith one year.

Q. How large is the Bransford?

A. BSeven thousand tons.

Q. Is she one of the largest?

A. There are larger now.

). What steamer are vou in now?

A. The Henry B. Smith, a ten thousand ton
steamer,

Q. Omne of the largest and finest on the Great
Lakes?

A, Yes.

(). Tt is in evidence, Captain,—are you
familiar with the Steamer 8. . Reynolds?

A.  Yes, know her very well.

Q. It is in evidence in this case that some-
time during the afternoon of November 27th, 1905,
the Steamer 8. C. Reynolds was tied up to the
outer end of the City Dock, port side to, discharg-
ing package freight; that the discharge of freight
continned that afternoon and up to half past ten
that night; it is in evidence that a severe northeast
gale prevailed at that time, with blinding snow
and heavy sea running through the canal, with a
force of wind from sixty to seventy miles an hour;
it is in evidence that about half past ten o’clock
I’. M. when the eargo was discharged the master
of the Reynolds signalled for a tug, that he
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signalled a number of times but no tug responded;
it is also in evidence that a tug was telephoned
for but no assistance came; I will ask you, Cap-
tain—this was at the City Dock in the harbor of
Duluth—in that situation whether in your judg-
ment as a practical mariner it would have heen
safe or prudent or even a possibility for the master
of the Reynolds thus situated as she was to have
moved his ship from the end of that dock without
assistance?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not a proper hypothetical ques-
tion. It omits a great deal of material matter.
The witness has not been qualified in so far as
showing any knowledge of the City Dock its loca-
tion or as to the condition of the storm in the
harhor. The witness has not testified as to any
familiarity with the City Dock itself, its location
or conditions there or the condition of the storm
in the harbor, and that data is omitted from the
hypothetical question. It is only a fragmentary
portion of the situation, if anything.

Objection over-ruled, to which ruling plaintiffs
duly except,

Mr. Spencer (Reading) :

A. I consider it would have been an utter im-
possibility to move without tugs; he couldn’t have
done it if the wind was as it war with me,.

Q. With a wind sixty or seventy miles an
hour?

A. Xo, gir, T should not comsider it so; T
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should not consider it so with my ship if it was
me.

Q. Are youn familiar with the location of
the City Dock?

A, Yes

. What dangers, Captain, if any, would
there be with a ship in that sort of weather, at
that time of night, in that kind of storm and that
location, state what dangers were present?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground 1t is irrelevant and immaterial and
also as indefinite,

(No ruling).

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

A. T thionk that letting go of that dock and
trying to shift there would bhe a great danger of
getting cross ways on the dock with the sea run-
ning through these piers here; if they had been
T guess she would beat all to pieces and be a total
loss probably, simply pounded the whole side out
of her.

CROSS-EXAMINATION.

Mr. Alford:
(). Where did that storm strike you?

Mr, Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question.
Olbjection sustained.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):
Q. Amnd you arrived at Duluth on the morn-

ing of the 20th?
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A, Yes, sir.

Q. Wednesday morning?

A. Yes

Q. And your experience with the storm was

on Lake Superior entirely?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you have no personal knowledge as
to the conditions in the harbor during that time?

A. No, sir, nothing here; only judging from
the number of wrecks laying round the piers when
we came in.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs move begipning with
the word “omnly” that the answer be stricken out
on the ground it is not responsive to the question.

Motion granted.

Mr, Spencer (Reading):

Q). You don't know where these wrecks oc-
curred?

A. No, &ir.

Q. Tor all you know they might have oc-
curred in the lake and been towed in?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to all that por-
tion of the testimony relating to wrecks, as not

proper.

Objection sustained,

Mr. Spencer {Reading):

Q. You say, Captain, vou are familiar with
the Reynolds?

A. Yes, sir.

). How old a vessel is that?
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A. T couldp’t say—ten years or hetter.

Q. Know anything about the gort of mach-
inery she has?

A. No, &ir, I do not.

). Know anything about her equipment?

A. Xo, sir, I have been in company of her
ever since she was built but not on board of her,
only the outside appearance, that is all.

Q. When vou say it would have been unsafe
or impossible for the Reynolds to get away from
the dock you mean without assistance?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You think she could have got away with
the aid of a tug?

A. T think she might have with the aid of a
tug.

Q. In your judgment, Captain, would the
amount of cargo on the vessel have anything to
do with her ahility to get away?

A. Yes, a great deal to do with it.

Q. Would the power of her machinery have
anything to do with it?

A. Yes, sir, it would.

(). If she had a very powerful engine her
ahility to wet away and take care of hergelf would
be better than if she had a light engine?

A, Certainly would, ves, sir.

(3. And vou say vou don’t know what the
capacity of her machinery was?

A. No, sir, T don't.

Q). And vour answer to the question of the
Renator assumes that the wind was blowing about
seventy miles an hour?

A. Tt was more than that.with us.
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Q. Assumes it was the same right here; your
answer is based upon the assumption that the con-
ditions here were the same as where you were?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. You would not undertake to say just at
what velocity of the wind that vessel would be-
come unmanageable, not knowing her machinery
capacity?

A. T know I would not have attempted to
leave with the Bransford and she has I guess more
power than three-fourths of the boats in the lake.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs move that be stricken
out on the ground it is not responsive.

Motion granted.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

Q. And with the same conditions prevailing
out on the lake where you were?

A, Yes

Q. You would expect the conditions in the
harbor to be safer than they were on the lake®

A. MHarbor protected, but you know as well
as I do that Duluth is not much of a harbor with
the wind off the lake right here.

Q. Isg it any safer than the lake is?

A.  Oh, ves, certainly.

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. Assuming the conditions T stated in my
hypothetical question to you, I ask in your judg-
ment as a mariner would it have been safe and
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prudent for a ship situated as the Reynolds was

to move without assistance with the wind blowing
from the northeast?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial.

The Court: It is a mere repetition.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

Q. Assuming the facts in my first hypothetic-
al question to you captain, would you consider it
safe or prudent for a vessel gituated as the Rey-
nolds was to move with the wind only fifty miles an
hour without assistance?

A. No, sir

RE-CROSS-EXAMINATION.

AMr. Alford:

Q. You do not understake to say you know
exactly what the condition of the Reynolds was?

A, No, T don’t know anything at all about
ler; T was in the middle of Lake Superior.

At this time court takes a recess until 2
o’clock P. AL same day, Wednesday, September
16th, A. D. 1908, at which time proceedings were
resumed as follows:

Mr. Spencer: Defendant offers in evidence
Defendant’s Exhibit 2, being sketch of the situa-
tion involved in this case,

Defendant’s Exhibit 2 is received in evidence
witliout ohjection. .
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EDWARD F. ENGLAND, being duly sworn as a
witness on behalf of defendant, testifies as
follows

DIRECT EXAMINATION,

By Mr. Spencer:

Where do you reside, Captain?

2818 West 2nd Street.

Duluth, Minnesota?

Yes, sir.

How long have you resided in Dulutht
31 years.

How old are you?

41 years,

What is your occcupation?

Captain.

Captain of steam vesselg?

Yes, sir.

How long have you led a seafaring life,

CrororopPOoPOpPo

Captain?

A. Since '88.

Q. What character of vessels have you
sailed? Are you now a licensed master of steam
vessels, regularly licensed by the United States’
officials?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. And what character of steam vesscls have
vou commanded during the last few years?

A. Tug boats and steam barges.

Q. What vesse] are you now in command of?

A, The J. 1. Williams.
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Q. Tug J. L. Williams?

A, Yes, sir

Q. What tug were you in command of, if
any, on the 27th and 28th day of November, 1905?

A. The America.

Q. The steam tug America?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. And where was the tug America at that

A. At the Duluth, Missabe ore docks.

Q. And how far is that from the City Dock
at Duluth?

A.  Oh, about a mile, mile and a half or two
miles,

Q. And you have been the master of towing
tugs during how many years? ‘

A. Ten or twelve years.

Q. On what waters?

A. Waters of Lake Superior.

Q. And how much of your time has beep
devoted to towing vessels on the Duluth and Su-
perior harbor, if any?

A. Ten or eleven years, I should judge.

. And do you remember the occasion of the
big storm which prevailed in Duluth on November
27th and 28th of 19051%

A, Yes, sir.

- Q. And vou were rununing your tug at that
time up at the Duluth, Missabe and Northern?

A Yes, sir _

(3. Did vou ever know as violent a storm as
that one was?
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Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial.

The Court: What was the character of the
storm? Your question was leading.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. What direction was the wind blowing
from that day?

A. Northeast.

Q. Can you give an idea of the velocity of it?

A. Oh, I should judge 50 or 60 miles an hour,
anyway.

Q. And during the night of the 27th was
there any snow?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did the thickness or prevalence of the
snow add anything to the difficulties of navigat-
ing in Duluth Harbor that night?

A, It would.

(). And would a storm from the northeast
with wind 50 or 60 miles an hour, as you say, in-
terfere to any extent with navigating in Duluth
Harhbor?

A. Tt would in certain places.

Q. 1 will ask you if you are familiar with the
Steamer 8. C. Reynolds?

A. Yes, gir,

Q). It is in evidence that on the evening of
November 27th the Rteamer 8. C. Reynolds was
iying at the outer end of the Citv Dock at Duluth;
that she was practically light and that the dis.
charge of cargo was completed about half past ten
o’clock P. M. of that night and that effort was
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made to obtain a tug for her removal and that no
tug came and that she lay there during that night
and a considerable portion of the next day. I will
ask you if you are familiar with the location of
the City Dock, Duluth?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. I will ask you, Captain, as a practical
navigator, if in your judgment it would have been
prudent with safety to the Steamer Reynolds to
liave attempted to move under her own power
without assistance during the prevalence of that
gale?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial; alse as incompet-
ent and no sufficient foundation laid.

Objection over-ruled,

A, It would not.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. It is also in evidence that the Steamer
was comparatively light at that time., The fact
of the Steamer being light, would that add ma-
terially to the difficulty of navigating it in so high
a storm? '

Plaintiffs make same objection as before.
Same ruling.

A. T would add an objection to moving the
hoat.

Q. Captain, T show vou this sketch (De-
fendant’s Exhibit 2) which is.a rude one and I
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will ask you if that in a rough way substantially
represents the Duluth Harbor, the Duluth canal,
the location of the City Dock as indicated there?

A. With the exception of a little more cut
off of the pier there it does.

Q. Otherwise it is substantially correct?

A, Yes, sir,

Q. The tug office at the outer end of the
Northern Pacific Dock marked “tug office;” that
is substantially—

A. Yes, sir

Q. Did you sec the Reynolds as she was lying
there on that occasion?

A. No, sir, I did not.

CROSS-EXAMINATION,

By Mr. Alford:

Q. Your experience has run, you say, over
some 10 or 12 years?

A.  Yes, sir,

Q. And that has consisted in handling steam
tugs and bharges?

A. Yes, gir,

Q. That, is, in wsailing steam tugs and
barges?

A, Yes, sir,

Q. You never sailed a vessel like the
Reynolds, of the same tonnage?

A. Well, in that capacity, yes; not just the
same as the Reynolds, I think,

Q. Not just the same as the Reynolds?

A. Not just the same as the Reynolds, no, sir.
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Q. Is that a barge?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And it is only from that experience that
vou have had that you are able to form the judg-
ment that you have expressed here?

A. The expericnce of sailing.

Mr. Spencer: Defendant offers in evidence
the deposition of George W. Johnson.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

GEORGE W. JOHNSON, a witness on behalf of
Claimants, called and, being first duly
sworn, on oath deposes and says:

DIRECT EXAMINATION.

Mr. Spencer:

Where do you reside?

My home is here in Duluth now.
How old are you?

Thirty-one.

What is your occupation?
Dispatcher here.

At what place?

Duluth, Minnesota.

What kind?

Tug dispatcher.

What do your duties comsist of?
Take orders from vessels and send tugs

POPOPOFOFORO

to them.

*
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Q. What was your business on the 27th and
28th of November, 19057

A. Tug dispatcher here in this office.

Q. Do you remember the great storm that
prevailed over the port of Duluth at that time?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Do you remember the incident of the
Steamer Reynclds being on the bay end of the
City Dock at that time?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. 1 will ask you, Mr, Johnson, to state
what, if any, signals you heard or what, if any,
attempt was made by the Steamer that afternoon
to obtain tug assistance?

A. He blew that forenoon.

Q. What day was that? ‘

A. 'The 28th, in the forencon; came to work
seven o’clock that morning and he blew I don’t re-
member just how many times, but several times
1 should judge.

Q. What time did you go off duty the 27th?
A. Beven o'clock in the evening.

Q. Who succeeded you!?
A. John MeMillan, the night dispatcher.

Q. What can you say as to the character of
the storm that prevailed that night, the 27th and
28th?

A. There was an awful swell in the harbor;
we didn’t attempt to do any towing; the sea broke
on our dock and several came up to the windows
here— The tugs couldn’t lay anywhere near the
dock; they had to stay up at the end of the N. P.
No. 2 there to get smooth water.
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(). The tug office where you are employed
i~ where?

A, Right at the extreme end of the N. P.
doelk.

Q. About how high above the ordinary water
level is the planking of the dock?

A. I don’t know exactly, never measured it.

). Ten feet?

A, Yes, all of that.

Q. The swells coming through the canal were
< great they broke over the outer end of the dock?

A, Yes, right across the dock; broke up to
our office door way.

(. What, if any, observations did you make
as to the effect of the sea upon the City Dock?

A. I couldn’t see the dock right in front; we
can see the corner of the Omaha dock; the sea
went right up on the Omaha dock and rolled right
ACTOSS.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs move that all after
“the Omaha dock” he stricken out on the ground
it is not responsive to the question.

Motion denied.

Mr. Spencer (Reading) :
A. I seen the sea break right over the end of
the Omaha dock.

Mr. Alford: That is not responsive to the
question. I ask that it be stricken out.

Motion granted.
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Mr. Spencer (Reading):

A. To the freight house doors, right along in
by the slip there.

Q. Of the dock?

A. The Omaha dock; the shed, you can see
tt right across there.

Q. Where is the Omaha dock with respect tc
the City Dock?

A. Right next to it

Q. How high above the water level is the
Omaha dock?

Mr. Alford: DPlaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Mr. Spencer: I will withdraw that.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

Q. And the City Dock?

A. Just about the same—all about the same
height.

CROSS-EXAMINATION.

Mr, Alford:

Q. The Omaha dock is between your dock
and the City Dock, isn’t it?

A. There is a slip separates our dock from
the Omaha dock.

Q. There is a slip first, then the Omaha dock
and then another slip?

A. No.

Q. A place for a slip?

A, Yes,
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(). A space of the same width as the slip next
to your doek?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the City Dock is beyond that?

A. Yes, sir

(). You can’t see the City Dock?

A. Yes, 1 could see it, but what I mean by
that the Reynolds was tied right up to the dock,

(. She obstructed your view?

A. To a certain extent, yes; if the steamboait
was not there T could see the front of it—the front
of the City Dock and see the sea break upon it.

Q. She was pounding the dock?

A. She raised and fell just as if she was out-
<ide in a heavy sea.

Q. 8he would strike the dock?

A. She would come up against the dock every
every swell.

Q. Your observation began about seven

time

velock?
A. T got here at seven o’clock in the morning.
Q. You know nothing of the conditions that
;revailed during the night?
A. No, sir.

Mr. Spencer: Defendant offers in evidence
the deposition of Frank Laframboise.
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Mr. Spencer (Reading):

FRANK LAFRAMBOISE, a witness on behalf
of Claimants called and, being first duly

706 sworn, on oath, deposes and says:
DIRECT EXAMINATION.
Mr. Spencer:
Q. How old are you?
A, Forty-two.
Q. Where do you reside?
A. Ambherstberg, Canada.
Q. What is your occupation?
A. Sailor, mariner.
'Q. How long have you been a sailor?
707 A. Been one since I was twenty years old.
Q. In what capacity have you sailed?
A. Wheelsman, watchman, second mate and
mate; have been captain of tug boats.
Q. What position do you now occupy?
A. Mate on the Lake Shore. -
Q. What sized vesgzel is ghe?
A. Three hundred and sixty-six feet, fifry
feet beam.
Q. What position do you have on your ves-
sel?
A. DMate
708 Q. The principal part of your experience as
a mariner has been on the Great Lakes?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. You are familiar with the harbor of Du-
Iuth?




—237—

A. Pretty well.

Q. You know the location of the City Dock in
Paluth?

A. Yes, sir

Q. Are you familiar with the Steamer 8. C.
ltevnolds in a general way?

A. That little wooden boat?

Q. No, steamboat, sailed in the Anchor Line
freight business the management 1 think is in
Toledo?

A. I recall the name.

Q. Steel hoat, three hundred to three hun-
red and fifty feet long, forty-eight to fifty feet
heam—the Reynolds?

A. Ob, the Reynolds, T know her; yes, I know
the Reynolds.

Q. It is in evidence that on the afternoon of
the 27th of November, 1903, the Steamer 8. C. Rey-
nolds lay ot the outer end of the City Dock, in the
City of Duluth, Minnesota, discharging freight
and lay port side to the dock; about half past ten
on the night of the 27th of November her cargo
was finally discharged leaving the vessel pretty
light, with little or any cargo; it is in evidence at
that time the wind was northeast steadily increas-
ing and at that time had reached a velocity of fifty
to seventy miles an hour, a heavy sea rolling
through the canal, blinding snow storm prevailing;
the master of the steamer blew several times for
s tug and telephoned for a tug for assistance and
no tug responded; it is in evidence that the wind
was such that the mapager of the vessel towing
tngs had given orders to the tugs that none should

709

710

(4R



712

713

714

— 238 —

venture to do any transferring of vessels; the
evidence is that the Steamer lay at that dock dur-
ing the night of the 27th and until late in the after-
noon of the 28th; I ask you if, in your judgment as
a mariner, it would have been practicable or safe
there for the master of the Steamer lying in that
position to have attempted to move without as-
sistance by tugs; taking in consideration the posi-
tion of the steamer, the velocity of the wind, the
blackness of the night and all elements that I have
stated?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial, in-
compéetent and not a proper hypothetical question.

Objection over-ruled.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

A. TFor my opinion, if T had been sailing that
boat I would certainly never have moved her; I
think it would not have been a safe thing to do
even if he had a tug.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs move the answer be
stricken out.

The Court: The first sentence may be
stricken out,

Mr. Spencer (Reading) :

Q. Taking the facts as stated in my question,
do you think it would be a safe and pruden: thing
for the master of a steamer to shift or attempt to
shift his vessel? '
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Plaintiffs make same objection as last above,
Same ruling.

Mr. Spencer (Reading) :

A. No, sir, I would never have moved her.

Q. You say you would not have moved her;
do you think it would have been safe for anyone
fo move her?

A. No, sir,

Q. Give your reasons for saying it would not
have been safe or prudent to have moved the ves-
uel?

Plaintiffs make same objection as last before.
Same ruling.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

A, The wind would have blowed her up on
the beach; thev couldn’t have handled her; she
would have hlown clear round on the beach; she
would not have had power to hold herself up.

CROSS-EXAMINATION.

Mr. Alford:

(. At what velocity of wind would the ves-
s¢l have become unmanageable?

A. Depends on what power she had but the
Leynolds certainly has not got the power,

(. The manageability of the vessel depends
on the power?

A, Size and power I suppose.

Q. Ever been employed on the Reynolds?
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A. XNo, sir.

Q. Do you know as a matier of fact what
power her machinery has?

A. I do not.

Q. Where were you, in the harbor, at the
time of the storm?

A. No, sir, I was not; I was on Lake Mich-
igan.

Mr. Spencer: Defendant offers in evidence
deposition of Duncan Buie.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

DUNCAN BUIE, a witness on behalf of Claim-
ants, called and being first duly sworn, on
oath, deposes and says:

DIRECT EXAMINATION.

Mr. Spencer:

Where do you reside?

Buffalo.

What is your occupation?

Sailor.

What is your age?

IFifty-seven.

How long have you led a seafaring life?
Forty-two or forty-three years.

How much of that on the Great Lakes?
All the time,

What various positions have you served

CrOrOoreropo

in?
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A. From boy on board of vessels to captain
of steamboats,
Q. Bow long have you been master of steam

vessels? 721
A. Twenty-eight years.
Q. What vessel are you now in command of?
A. Steamer Lake Shore.
). How large a vessel is the Lake Shore?
A. About 6,000 tons carrying capacity.
Q. What is her length?
A. Three hundred and eighty feet.
Q. Her beam? '
A. Fifty feet,
Q. What vessel were you in command of on
the 27th day of November, 19057 722

A. Lake Bhore.

Q. Where was the Lake Shore and where
were you on the 27th of November, 18057

A. The Lake Shore was lying in elevator D
Slip at Duluth, Minnesota.

Q. You remember the great storm that pre-
vailed at the harbor of Duluth at that time?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What can you say as to the severity of
that storm?

A. My impression is it was the most severe
gale of wind I ever knew on the lakes, 723

Q. In vour own words give a little illustra-
{ion of the visible effects of that storm to enable
The Couri to know something of its severity?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the gquestion
cn the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.
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Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):
Q. What kicd of cables did you have on
your ship?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Objection sustained, to which ruling defend-
ant duly excepts.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

Q. Are you familiar with the Steamer 8. C.
Reynolds?

A. Have known her by sight for years; never
been on board her.

Q. Are you familiar with the location of
the City Dock here in Duluth?

A. Yes, I know where it is,

Q. Tt is in evidence in this case that the
Steamer 8. C. Reynolds on the afternoon of No-
vember 27th, 1905, was lying at the outer end of
the City Dock port of Duluth, port side next the
dock; that she went to this dock about five o’clock
P. M. of that day; her cargo was discharged and
it is in evidence that the cargo was discharged at
half past ten P. M. that evening; that the ship
was then practically light, with the exception per-
kaps, of a couple of hundred tons of cargo stili
remaining in the after part of the vessel; it is in
evidence that the wind at that time was blowing
from fifty to seventy miles an hour from the north-
east, with a biinding snow storm and that after
the discharge of the cargo the master or officers
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of the Reynolds signalled for a tug a number of
times and also telephoned for a tug a number of
fimes but no tug appeared; it is in evidence that
this signalling for a tug was for the purpose of
cnabling the vessel to get away from the dock if
possible; T ask you, Captain, from your experience
as o navigator, handling steam ships, whether in
vour opinion it would have been safe or a practic-
able thing or even possible for a steamer lying in
the position of the Reynolds, considering the ve-
locity of the wind, the blackness of the night, the
fact that she was practically light, with a heavy
sea, under all the conditions that were present at
that time, wheiher it would have bheen practicable
or impossible for a steamer so situated to have left
that dock without the assistance of a tug or tugs?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial, not
a proper hypothetical question. It does not show
the position of the Reynolds at the dock; very mea-
ger description of the vessel.

Objection overruled, to which plaintiffs duly
except,

Mr. Spencer (reading) :

A. 1 don't think, under the conditions that
existed at the time, the violence of the gale and the
hoat, as T understand it, to be light, personally, I
think it would have been very risky to move the
Loat without the assistance of a tug; I think that is
a1l right; 1 think it would have been risky to move
a boat flying light with her bow up in the air, to

1
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move the boat; as Captain T would not do it if I
could get out of it,

Mr. Spencer: Mr. Alford’s next statement is
to strike out the answer on the ground it is not re-
spongive.

The Gourt: That last statement may be strick-
en out. I think the other is responsive.

Mr. Alford: I will ask to have it stricken out.

Mr. Spencer {reading):

Q. Did you ever experience so severe a gale
on Lake Superior during your experience as a navi-
gator?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant,

Objection overruled.

Mr, Spencer (reading) :

A. No, I am not aware I ever experienced
such a severe gale.

Q. Where was the barge Antrim located dur-
ing that blow?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is immaterial.

Objection sustained.
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Mr. Spencer (reading):
CROSS EXAMINATION,

Mr., Alford:

Q. In what slip was vour boat?

A. FElevator D slip; between the elevators
and the Ohio Central coal dock.

Q. On the Duluth side?

A, Yes.

Q. In which direction was your boat headed?

A. Boat was headed west, headed inland.

Mr. Alford: That cross examination was in
reference to the testimony that was excluded. I
ohject to it.

The Court: Then there is no necessity of read-
ing it.

Mr. Spencer: Defendant offers in evidence
the deposition of George Z., Zanger.

Mr, Spencer (reading):

GEORGE Z. ZANGER, a witness on behalf of
claimants, called and being first duly sworn,
testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION.

AMr. Spencer:
Q. How old are you?
A. Torty-nine.

733

734

735



736

737

738

Croprporo

gineer?
Al
Q.
A,
Q.
A,
Q.
A.

Q.

A

— 246 —

Where do you residet

Sandusky, Ohio.

What is your occupation?

Chief engineer,

Marine engineer?

Yes, sir,

How long have you been a marine

Since 1880,

What class of boats?

Most all kinds.

What vessel are you now on?
Steamer Lake Shore,

How large a ship is the Lake S8hore?

en-

She carries six thousand tons—registered
tonnage thirty-eight hundred and seventy.
What vessel were you on on the 27th of
November, 19057

Lake Shore.

Q. Where was the Lake Shore during No-
vember 27th and 28th?

A.
Q.
A.

In Duluth harbor, Elevator I slip.
Was she loaded or light?
Loaded with flax.

Q. Do you remember the bi storm that pre-
vatled in Duluth at that time?

A. Yes, gir.

Q. You are familiar with the Steamer 8. .
Reynolds?

A, Yoes, sir

Q. Know where the City dock is in Duluth?

A
Q.

Yes, sir.
Just west of the tug office?
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A, Yes, sir,
Q. Go on and state some of the effects that
{lic storm had on your vessel, if any?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Objection sustained.

Mr, Spencer (reading} :

(). 1t iz in evidence in this case that on the
;ifternoon of the 27th of November, 1905, the Steam-
er Reynolds made fast at the outer end of the City
doek port side to; she remained there discharging
cargo until half past ten of that day, P. M., when
the Captain and officers attempted to obtain a tug
hut were unsuceessful; it is in evidence that they
signalled for one hut none came to their aid; it is
in evidence that the wind was from the northeast
blowing at from fifty to seventy railes an hour; that
the atmosphere was thickly obscured by snow; that
the vessel was practically light with the exception
of a couple of hundred tons; that a heavy sea was
running through the canal and across the harbor
to wlhere the Revnolds lay; 1 ask you whether, from
the experience you have had with steam vessels,
whether in vour jndgment it would have been a safe
or prudent thing for the officers of that vessel to
get away from that dock without the aid of tugs?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant, immaterial and in-
competent. e was only an engineer.

Objeetion sustained, to which ruling defendant
duly excepts. .
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Mr. Spencer: Defendant offers in evidence
the deposition of John K. McKenzie.

Mr. Spencer (reading):

JOHN K. McKENZIE, a witness on behalf of
claimant, called and, being first duly sworn, on
oath depozes and says:

DIRECT EXAMINATION.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. Where do you live?

A. 3215 West Fourth Street.

. How old are you?

A, Pifty-two.

Q. What is vour occupation?

A. Pile driving and bridging and dock work.

Q. How long have you been in the business?

A. Been in it for twenty-two years.

Q. Principally in Duluth?

A. Daluth for tweniy-two years.

Q. Do you remember making an examination
of the City dock in connection with Mr. Grignon—
Mr. Peter Grignon—some time after the big storm
of November, 19057

A. Yes, sir,

(). And were you familiar with the city dock,
Lad yvou »cen it before?

A. T had passed over it but never took much
notice of it.

Q. Did you examine it at that time to see
what was necessary to put it in good condition?
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A. Yes, I was looking after the pile driving.

Q. Had you ever made repairs on docks
around Duluth similar to what that required at
that time?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Ohjection over-ruled.

Mr. Spencer (Reading):

A, Yeos,

(). What, in your judgment, was it worth to
put that dock—to make the repairs on that dock,
recessary to put it back in its former condition, in
the condition in whihh it was before this particular
damage was done to it?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Obhjection sustained.

T. C. HERRICK, recailed as a witness on behalf
of defendant, testifies ag follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Spencer:

Q. Captaim, T hand you a sketch marked De
fendant’s Exhihit 2 and T will ask you if that sub-
stantially cepresents the harbor of Duluth we will
say from ihe csnal up to the lime kiln slip; sub-
stantially?

-
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A. About correct.

Q. And T call your attention to the figure
marked “Reynolds” lying in frout of the space
marked “City Dock” and “Omaha Dock.” 1 will
ask you if that substantially represents the posi-
tion your ship was in at the City Dock on the night
of November 27th and Novemher 28th, 19057

A. Yes, sir, it does.

Q). Captain, I hand you a small lead model
here. T was going to ask you to place that small
lead model on the chart there showing about the
position your ship was in but if that blackened
Fpace represents in—

A. That lLlackened space is about as near
correct as you can get it, It lapped a little over
the Omala,

. Captain, in your direct examination you
eaid, at least I understood you to say, that you
remained at tha City Dock until November 29th.
Now, is that true?

A. That was a mistake. November 28th.

Q. You only lay there one night and part of
the next day?

A. One night and part of the next day.

Q. I may be mistaken about it but my re-
collection 1= you said the 29th. And if you did say
that T want to have the exact truth appear. I will
#sk you, Captain, if up to the time you completed
cargo there was any reason on your part to ap-
prehend danger there to your ship or to the dock?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the guestion
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.
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Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. T will ask you, Captain, if up to the time
the cargo was removed from your vessel if any
damage had been done to that dock by your vessel?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the guestion
on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.

Objectton over-ruled, to which ruling plain-
tiffs duly exeept.

A. No damage done, no.

The Court:

(). When you said the wind was east-north-
east you meant by that it was in an easterly diree-
tion from true mnortheast?

A. About two points.

Q. About two points east of northeast?

A. That would be about straight in the piers.

(). That iz what you mean by it, that it was
cast of northeast?

A, Yes; east of northeast.

CROSS-EXAMINATION,

By Mr. Alford:

Q. How much is a point?

A. About 11 degrees.

(3. Calling your attention to Defendant’s
Iix!lubit 2, Captain, what was the length of the
Reynelds over all?

A, About 268 over all. -

751

752

753




754

735

756

— 262 —

Q. Do you know the width of the City Dock
in front?

A. 1 do not, no, sir.

Q. Did the stern of the Reynolds stand out a
tittle further than the bow did from the face of
the dock?

A. You mean past the corner of the dock?

Q. Noj; out towards the center of the harbor.

Mr, Spencer: Were both ends of the ghip
the same distance from the dock; is that the idea?

Mr. Alford: That is it exactly.

A.  Yes, supposed to be; laying right broad
side.

Mr. Alford:

Q. Well, you say it was supposed to be.
What do you mean by that. Do you know whether
‘t was?

A. As near as I can explain it, yes.

(2. How many lines were on the dock from
the Reynolds?

A. Couldn’t answer that question. I could
not tell you exactly.

Q. Well, have you any recollection as to
how many there were?

A. Beven or eight or eight or nine; I could
not tell you; might have been ten.

Q. You had a line wherever you could get
one?

A. Had a line wherever I could get one, yes,
gir, '

Q. Now, looking toward the top of that map
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(Defendant’s Exhibit 2) and calling your atten-
tion to the markings to the left of what is de-
signated as lime kiln slip, there is no dock there,
is there?

A. There was none there at that time.

Mr. Spencer: I think that is true. I simply
roughly drew that there.

(The witness continuing): There has been
an old dock. There is a lot of spiles there; that is
where the obstructions was.

Mr. Alford:

Q. That then is not intended to indicate a
dock struciure there?

A. It had been a dock structure.

Q. At that time, at the time the Reynolds
was there?

A. There is no dock there.

(. Now, that answers the question. You
don’t know anything about the depth of the water
west of that lime kiln slip, do ywa?

A, No, sir.

Q. You don’t know just how wide the lime
kiln slip is there, do you?

A. No, sir, don’t know the exact width.

Q. And you don’t know how far from the
westerly edge of that slip those spiles that you
speak of are there?

A. T could not say exactly.

Q. You don’t know just how far they are
from the westerly edge of the slip, do you?

A. I don’t know, no. I could not only guess
at it .
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Defendant rests.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs offer in evidence the
deposition of H. W. Richardson.

Mr. Alford (Reading):

HERBERT W. RICHARDSON, a witness on be-
half of Libellants, in rebuttal, called and be-
ing first duly sworn, on oath deposes and says:

DIRECT EXAMINATION.

Mr. Alford:

Q. You name is—

A. Herbert W. Richardson.

Q. You live in Duluth?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. What is your occupation?

A. In charge of the United States Weather
Bureau.,

Q. How lorg have been in charge of the
United States Weather Bureau?

A. This station, nine years.

Q. I show vou two papers, one marked Ex-
hibit C and the other marked Exhibit D; referring
to Exhibit C, will you state what that is?

A. A cnpy of our official records for Novem-
ber 27th, 1905-—official weather records,

Q. Made by you?

A. Yes, sir.
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Mr, Alford: Plaintiffs offer in evidence
Plaintiffs’ Ixhibit C.

Plaintiffs’ Exhibit C is received in evidence 7683
without objection, of which following is a copy:
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Mr. Alford (Reading):

Q. Aond referring to Exhibit D, state what
that is?

A. The same statement as the other; made
by myself and is the official record of our office
for that day, covering weather conditions at that
time.

Q. Made by you?

A. Yes, sir, that is, the record was made by
me—the record there.

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs offer in evidence
Plaintiffs’ Exhibit D.

Plaintiffs’ Exhibit D is received in evidence
without objection, of which following is a copy:
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Mr. Alford (Reading):

Q. Referring to Exhibit C, the figures above
the third line from the top and in the second space,
counting from the left hand margin, are the times
ol day?

A, Yes.

(). Referring to the same Exhibit C, on the
sume column and above the tenth line, counting
[rom the top, do the figures represent the distance
in mileg?

A. The actual number of miles recorded each
hour,

. Is that true as to each succeeding
column? ’

A. Yes, sir

Q. Did vou get any warning on the twenty-
seventh as to the approaching storm?

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
(ion on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial
unless it is shown that it was brought to the atten-
tion of the Captain.

Objection vver-ruled, to which ruling defend-
ant duly excepts.

Mr. Alford (Reading):

A, Yes, sir,

(). Ntate vhat you did? :

A. The warnings were ordered-—storm north-
cast warnings were ordered at ten o’clock in the
worning and were displayed at all points at the
licad of the lakes; in the afternoon we issued a
speeinl warning for the vessels to remain in port
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as the storm would be of a very dangerous char-
acter.

Q. What time was that?

A. I don’t exactly remember; about the mid-
dle of the afternoon if I remember right; probably
about three o'clock.

Q. Was that warning published in the even-
ing paper?

A, Yes, sir

Cross-examination (Read by Mr. Spencer as
‘ollows) :

Q. Was there anything unusual in the
manifestations of that storm when it arrived?

A, Yeg, sir.

Q. Were there any unusual results attendant
upon that storm?

A, Yes,

Q. Goon and state some of them?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
ou the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial and
also as not proper cross-examination.

Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer (Reading) :

Q. Was so severe a storm ever known in the
vicinity of Duluth since the establishment of the
weather bureau here?

Plaintiffs make same objection as last above.

Objection over-ruled.
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A. The most severe we have any record of,
(specially as regards continuity.

ALEXANDER McDOUGAL, being duly sworn
as a witness on behalf of plaintiffs in rebuttal,
testifies as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Alford:
Q. Your name is Alexander McDougal?
A. Yes, €ir.
Q. Where do you live, Captain?
A. At present on First Street, Tenth Avenue

(). That is in Duluth?

A. Duluth, yes, sir

Q. How long have you lived in Duluth?

A. 37 vears, yes, sir.

(). Tn the course of your lifetime have you
heen a seaman?

A. Yes, sir, about 21 years.

Q. Will vou state in what capacities you
have served as a seaman?

A, Well, from deckhand to the Captain of
the hest boats coming teo this port.

(). Tow long did you act as captain?

A. 12 vears running to the port here.

Q. Was that experience on the Great Lakes?

A.  Right here, yes, sir, on the Great Lakes.

(). Wholly so; altogether in the lake country.
Passenger; T erossed the Atlantic in the meantime.
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Q. In that time, Captain, did you also have
experience as Captain in handling large steam
vessels in and about Duluth Harbor?

A, Yes, gir.
Q. And also in times of violent storm?
A, Yes, sir.

Q. Are you familiar with what is known as
the City Dock here in Duluth?

A, Yes, sir,

Q. And also its surrounding waters?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know the Steamer 8. (. Reynolds?

A. Yes, I know her pretty well.

Q. Captain, have vou also had experience in

stevedoring?
A, Yes, sir.
Q. Where?

A.  In Duluth here,

Q. Did that work include the handling of
large vessels in unloading them?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. For the benefit of the jury will yon state
in what stevedoring consists?

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.
It is wholly irreievant to the issues in this case.

The Court: It is not rebuttal.
Mr. Spencer: And is not rebuttal,

Mr. Alford: I am qualifying the witness ag
Al expert.

Objection over-ruled.
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A. Loading and unloading of cargo from the
veszel on to the dock or from the dock on to the
vessel,

Mr. Alford:

Q. Captain McDougal, according to the evid-
ence here tile 8. C. Reynolds is a steam steel built
vessel ahout 268 feet over-all, has a 40 foot beam,
1604 net tonnage; a water bottom holding about
200 tons of water; on the afternoon of November
27th, 1903, about 5 o’clock she tied up at the outer
end of the City Dock for the purpose of unloading
freight; she finished unloading the cargo she had
for that dock about 10:30 P. M. of that day; she
still had ahout 200 tons of cargo left on board;
slie then tried to get a tug to aid her in shifting
to some other place but was not able to get one;
she was lving along side the face of the dock
Leaded toward the lake; from 10 o’clock until 11

P. M.—she got through at 10:30—from 10 o’clock

to eleven P. M. the wind blew 53 miles; it blew
53 miles during the hour; its highest velocity dur-
ing the hour was at 10:13 when it was blowing at
the rate of 51 miles per hour; from 11 to 12 it
blew 57 miles; attaining a rate of 62 miles per
hour at 11:58: the wind was from the northeast
accompanied with snow; water hottoms were full;
the night was dark; and in the course of the night
members of the erew passed from the boat to the
dock and returned off and onj; in that situation,
(aptain, will you state whether in your opinion as
a seamnan it would have been possible after she had
unloaded to warp the Reynolds around inte the
slip just west of the dock? -
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Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion for the reason the question as propounded
does not contain all the mafterial elements as shown
by the evidence to have existed at that time. It
simply says that snow was falling; does not show
how muech the atmosphere was obscured; does not
show the presence of a sea sufficiently high to be
rolling over the ends of the dock; and does not
take into consideration the fact that the vessel
was placed there at the dock by the dock people
themselves; snow falling so thick objects could not
be seen at a distance of 400 feet anyway or less
than that,

The Court: To the windward,

Mr. Spencer: To the windward, yes. And
the evidence is that the snow was pelting down
s6 hard that you could not face it at all.

The Court: The snow was falling. The
wind would determine that, wouldn’t you? Snow
was falling so it was difficult to see to the wind-
ward fartier than a hundred feet.

Mr. Spencer: About a hundred feet or even
as far as that.

The Court: And the sea was rolling over the
dock. You may add those to your question,

Mr, Alford: I am perfeetly willing to add
those,

A. I would rather answer that question that
the vessel nad no right to lay there—
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Mr. Spencer: Defendant moves to strike ouf
{he answer of the witness. He is volunteering
something that he has not been asked to testify.
Il is mot 1n response to the question asked. 1
would like to have it stricken ouf.

Motion granted.

Q. (Question repeated by reporter as fol-
lows) ‘Captain McDongal, according to the
cvidence here the 8. €. Reynolds is a steam steel
Luilt vessel about 268 feet over-all, has a 40 feet
heam, 1604 net tonnage; a water bottom holding
Lbout 200 tons of water; on the afternoon of No-
vember 27ih, 1903, about 5 o’clock she tied up at
e outer end of the City Dock for the purpose of
unltoading ireight - she finished unloading the cargo
e had for that dock about 10:30 P. M. of that
(ay s she siill had about 200 toos of cargo left on
Loard; she then tried to get a tug to aid her in
shifting to some other place but was not able to get
one; she was lving along side the face of the dock
headed toward the lake; from 10 o'clock until 11
P. M.—she got through at 10:30—from 10 o’clock
1o eleven . M. the wind blew 53 miles; it blew
52 miles during the hour; its highest velocity dur-
ing the hour was at 10:13 when it was blowing at
{le rate of 34 miles per hour; from 11 to 12 it blew
57 miles; attaining a rate of 62 miles per hour at
11:38; the wind was from the northeast accom-
panied with snow; water bottoms were full; the
night was dark; and in the course of the night
lembers of the crew passed from the boat to the
doek and returned off and on the snow was falling

oy
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so it was difficuli to see to the windward further
than a hundred feet, about a hundred feet, or even
as far as that; the sea was rolling over the dock;
the vessel was placed there at the dock by the dock
Feople themselves: in that situation, Captain, will
You state whether in your opinior as a seaman it
would have been possible after she had unloaded
to warp the Reynolds around info the slip just
west of the dock?
A, Yes, sir.

Mr. Alford:

Q. There is a soft bank on the west side of
that slip, isn’t there, Captain?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. The tugs lay up there and have for a
gcod while?

A, Yes, gir,

Q. Could the crew have warped that boat
around without getting into that bhank?

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion on the ground it is irrelevant and immaterial.
I object to this for the reason that no proper foun-
dation has been laid as to the Captain’s qualifica-
tions to testify to matters which he has not seen
and in regard to that matters of that sort where
ke was not—

The Court:
Q. Do you know the water there, Captain?
A, Yes, sir, very well; as well as you do this
office here.
Q. Tlow?
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A, As well as you do this office here. It 18
all plain before my eyes now.

Mr. Alford:

(). Could the crew have warped that boat
around without getting into that bank?

A, Yes, «ir, easily.

Q. Will vou explain to the jury what is
meant by warping?

A. If they had taken the line out of the after
onnd of the Loat which must have lapped across the
corner of the dock, as follows (illustrating). For
instance, the beat laid on that end, a line put out
on tlis end and a pile here; and that would natur-
ally turn the boat in that position. The wind
would take her and blow her around in there, west.
{f this line should break all that could happen
her, she would go on to the bank.

(). When you refer to this line you refer to

A. Spring line

(). Attached to the after end of the boat?

A, Attached to the after end of the boat from
here to some piling on that side of the dock.

(. Of that slip side?

A, This is the face. This is next to the
corner. Here is the slip. This is the slip side.
And she was laying there when the storm come.
It they had just backed up like that a piece the
how would naturally blow out itself and all they
had to do was check it with the line from there and
e would come right into that slip. The force
of the wind on that part might earry her off there
a piece.  Thae omiy danger would occur would be
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she might opreak that line and go over on to this
bank, which is a soft bank. _

Q. Captain, is that end of the dock much
exposed io northeast wind, seas coming through
the canal?

A. The front of the dock, sir?

Q. Yes?

A. Perfectly in the wake of the storm as it
comes through the canal

Q. Badly exposed place?

A. Yes, sir; most exposed of any dock in
the harbor.

Q. Supposing the Reynolds had gone there
on that soft bank for some reason. Would that
kave placed her in serious danger?

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion. It assumes a condition of facts that never
existed.

Objection over-ruled.

A. No, sir

Mr. Alford :

Q. Captain, according to the evidence here,
on the day the Reynolds tied up, from 12 o'clock
to one in the afternoon the wind blew 25 miles;
from one to two, 26 miles; from two to three, 28
mtles; from three to four, 29 miles; from four to
five, 32 miles: from six to seven, 40 miles; from
teven to eight, 44 miles; from eight to nine, 43
miles; from nine to ten, 48 miles; from ten to
eleven, 53 miles; that was the velocity of the wind
and its rate of increase from honr to hour up to 11
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o'clock that might. Now, having in mind these
facts and also the other facts referred to since tak-
ing your testimony here, was it in your opinion
careful seamanship to keep the Reynolds tied there
fo the outer end of the City Dock until the unload-
ing was completed at half past ten? % M

845

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques- \9/
tion for the reason that that is a question for this
jury to pass upon and not Captain McDougal. I

N
Objetion over-ruled, to which ruling defendant \";-;. \$
duly excepts. R Wy

\*t\sy‘
A. I think it was not good judgment to lay o
there in the imerease of that storm, particularly gpg .y
in a port where the information was easy got to

him and :he view from there to the signal station KQ?//
<0 close; good jundgment would have got him into -
the slip where T think it was possible to unload as ,f
well as on the fact of the dock. /!
o

Mr. Alford:

Q. In your opinion with these signs and
warnings did  careful seamanship require the
master of the hoat to seek a place of shelter with-
out delaying to complete the unloading?

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques- 807
tion for che reasons last above stated.

Objection over-ruled, to which ruling defend-
ant duly excepts.

A, Yeg, sir
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Mr. Alford:

Q. Did good seamanship require him in your
opinion to seek a safer mooring before the storm
attained the violence it did?

A, Yes, sir

Q. It is also in evidence that after unloading
the Reynolds called for a tug to aid her in shifting
and was unable to get one because of the storm.
Assuming that to be true and also the other facts
I have already mentioned, in your opinion would
4 reasonable careful seaman have delayed until
the unloading was done before he called for a tag?

Mr. SBpencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion for the reason that it asks the witness to as-
sume the province of the jury.

Objection over-ruled, to which ruling defend-
ant duly excepts.

A. 1 think it was proper to move the boat be-
fore the tug would come or without the tug, if he
could not get her.

Mr. Alford :

Q. Should he have tried to get a tug, if neces-
sary, before that?

A.  He should have tried if he needed a tug.
I do not see the need of a tug for this movement.

Q. The boat remained at the same place next
day until about half past four and on the 28th,
that is the next day, the wind continued, at times
ite velocity increased to about 70 miles. In view
of all the surrounding facts that have been re-
ferred to in taking your testimony here would it
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in your opinion when daylight came have been
possible to warp that boat around into the slip?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was it careful seamanship not to do so?

Defendant makes same objection as last be-
fore,

Same ruling and exception.

A. If the boat was pounding herself against
the dock it was cruel to leave her there to do so.

Q. And did good seamanship require that she
should be warped around?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Does careful seamanship require the
master of a vessel to look out for the weather
signals and reports of the United States Weather
station when at hand?

Defendant makes same objection at last be-
fore.

The Court: I do not know what you mean
by reports.

Mr. Alford: Witness Richardson testified in
his deposition that he issued a special warning.
Perhaps 1 should say warning instead of report.

Objection over-ruled, to which ruling defend-
ant duly excepts.

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion for the further reason it is not shown what
sort of reports were given, up to the present time,
nor what was done by the weather bureau.
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Objection over-ruled, to which ruling defend-
ant duly excepts,

A. I think it is not compulsory that he should
but it is customary for them to do so for their own
judgment,

Mr. Alford:
Q. Would a reasonably careful seaman al-
ways look out for signs of approaching storm?

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion for the reason that it is assuming the province
of the jury for this witness to answer this question,

Objection over-ruled, to which ruling defend-
ant duly excepts,

A. Yes, sir,

Mr, Alford:

Q. Is that particularly true late in the fall
of the year in this port?

A, Yes, sir,

CROSS-EXAMINATION.,

By Mr. Spencer:

Q. How old are you, Captain?

A. 62; nearly 63.

Q. How many years has it been since you
were actively engaged in sailing on the Great Lakes
as steamboat captain? .

A. I have not been active as Captain for 25

“years or so.

@ And how long had you served as mate
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before that; how long has it been since you were
actively engaged serving as mate on steamboats?

A. 12 years previous to that.

(). That would make 37 years ago you were
sailing as mate. You say you came up all the way
along the various stages of seamanship from, what
was the lowest?

A. Deckhand.

(). Trom deckhand. Well, how long ago
was it that you sailed the Great Lakes as a deck-
hand, Captain?

A. Commenced in 61

Q. That would something like 45 or 50 years

ago; 45 years ago. And since that time your busi-

pess Las been very largely ashore, hasn’t it, Cap-
tain? '

A, Mostly connected with shipping all the
time.

(). Well, answer my question?

A, It is on shore most of the time, yes, sir.

(). Are you acquainted with Captain Her-
rick, the Captain of the Reynolds?

A. I don’t know him.

(). You don’t know him?

A. Xo.

(). Captain, who, in your opinion is better
qualified to judge as to the proper thing to do,
Captain Herrick who was aboard of his ship at the
time and knew the velocity and weather conditions,
or vou at this present moment sitting in an easy
clinir here before the jury; who is hetter able to
indge as fo the proper thing to do, you or the
master of that ship?
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Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross-examination,

Objection over-ruled.

A. Well, it would depend on his experience
and on mine somewhat. I am not enough ac-
quainted with him to form a judgment as—judg-
ment against mine,

Q. It is in evidence that Captain Herrick has
been sailing the Great Lakes all his life for the last
35 years at least,

The Court: 1 think 1 will not allow_that 1o
be pursued.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. If he is a man of experience equal to your
own isn’t it true that the man who was present and
saw the surrounding conditions would be in better
condition to judge than the man who was not
there?

Mr. Alford: Plaintiffs object to the question
on the ground it is not proper cross-examination.

Objection sustained.

Mr. Spencer:

Q. Where were you, Captain, at the time of
this great storm?

A. 1 was not in town that day.

Q. You have no personal knowledge of any
of the situations or conditiong of things at Duluth
at that time?

A. I bave seen storms—
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(). Just answer the question. (Question re-
peated by reporter): “You have mno personal
kuowledge of any of the situations or conditions
of things at Duluth at that time?”’

A. I have had it well represented to me and
explained to me in various ways and by different
prople.

Mr. Bpencer:

Q. Yes. But will you please answer the
question [ asked you. {Question repeated by re-
purter) :  “You have no personal knowledge of any
of the sitnations or conditions of things at Duluth
at that time?”

A. No, siT.

Mr. Spencer:
(. And all the knowledge you have of what
occurred at that time is what has been told you?
A. (No answer).
Q. What was the last ship that you were in
command of, Captain?

A. Steamer Hiawatha.

(). That was a wooden vessel at that time,
wasn't it, Captain? :

A, Yes, sir, the largest on the Lakes.

(). The largest on the Lakes at that time.
VWhat was her length?

A. She was about the size of the Reynolds.
). What was her length?

A.  About 250, T think, something.

Q. She was a wowndlen vessel, was she?

A, Yes, sir.

(). And how long ago was that. You have
already stated? ‘
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A, R2,

Q. 25 years ago. You think it would have
been a very eary matter with the wind blowing as
witnesses who were present there say, from 50 to
60 or 70 miles an hour, to have simply let out your
forward line and let the wind take it around, do
you?

A, Yes, sir,

Q. It would have been a very easy matter
when you got it around into the slip, you would
simply have backed up and made it fast to the
dock, would you?

A. I would have tried to, yes, sir.

R. C. VINCENT, called as a witness on belhalf of
plaintiffs in rebuttal, testifies as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION.

By Mr. Alford:
Q. Mr. Vincent, was any part of your dock
battered down except where the Reynolds lay?
A. It was not,
Q. Were some of the timbers hroken?

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objeets to the ques-
tion for the reason it is not proper rebuttal.

Mr. Alford: If The Court please, the testi-
mony of some of the defendant’s witnesses is to
the purport that the injury to the dock was a result
simply of wave action. Now, if it should be found
that some of the timbers were hroken that would
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tend to corroborate the evidence of the plaintiffs
that it was done by some object pounding.

Objection over-ruled, to which ruling defend-
ant duly excepts.

A, Yes, badly broken.

Mr, Alford:
(). Did the owners have to repair the damage

lone?

Mr. Spencer: Defendant objects to the ques-
tion for the reason that it is mot proper rebuttal.
ITe went into that in his direct examination.

Ohjection sustained.

o eross-examination.

AMr Alford: Plantiffs offer in evidence a part
of the evidence of Captain Herrick taken on de-
position, by way of impeachment.

The Court: Is the foundatiom laid for it?

AMr Alford: Yes. e was asked whether he
il not state, on his direct examination, substanti-
ally, thar it was not impossible to get the boat
away from the dock, physically impossible.

Mr. Alford {Reading):
“(question: ~If I remember your former ex-
amination correctly”’—
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Mr. Alford: This is the question I wish to
offer.

“Question: Captain, if I remember your
former examination correctly you stated that if
your boat had been free from the dock that she
would not have capsized in your judgment?
Answer: No, she would not have capsized,

“Question: Any danger of that? Answer:
No.

“Question: You kept her primarily moored
at the dock to save her from injury? Answer:
To save the boat from sinking. I couldn’t tell
what would happen.

“Question: She might have sunk? Answer:
If she had gome into the spiles or grounded any
way I would have lost my rudder, probably, and
punched a hole in her.

“Question: Something of that kind? Answer:
To do the least damage possible both for myself
and others too.

“Question: Then it is not your meaning that
it was physically impossible to get away from the
dock? Answer: If the lines had been gone she
would have went astern into those apiles,

“Question: If not moored in some way she
would have gone astern? Answer: Yes, sir.”

Plaintiffy rest in rebuttal.
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Mr. Spencer: Defendant moves The Court to
direet a verdiet for the defendant for the reason
that no neglect whatever has been shown on the
part of the master or officers or those in charge of
(e Steamer Reynolds. The evidence shows that
the ship was placed where she was placed by the
lock people; that it was their business to receive
careo from the ship; that they invited it to be
present and to make fast to their premises; and
(hat the eaptain in response to that order made
fast where he did. There is no evidence to show
that the Captain was guilty of any neglect after
Le made fast to the dock. He was not a tres-
pusser.  He was there by right. The ship was not
a trespasser on the premises of the plaintiffs. He
was there at their instance and at their request
where it liad a right to he and the evidence very
clearly discloses the fact that this hurricane was
unprecedented in the navigation of the Great
f.akes. Nothing like it was ever known. That
it was {he act of God. That there was a vis major
as the hooks put in, present on that occasion. That
ihe forces of Nature burst forth with such fury
that no man could forsee it nor guard against it
ufter it had arisen.  Defendant asks that the
Court divect a verdict for the further reason that
ihe weather conditions were just as apparent to
ihe dock peaple hefore the ship went there and
after the ship made fast there as they were to the
(‘aptain himself. The evidence shows that the
attention of the Captain was not called to the fact
hv the dock operators that it was dangerous to
lic there and that it was not dangerous to lie
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there until about the time the cargo was finished
being unloaded ; and he made every effort possible
to withdraw. And there is no evidence to the
contrary except what Captain McDougal said here.
And Defendant asks the Court to direct a verdict
for the reason that there is no evidence of any
neglect on the part of the steamboat people that
would warrant a verdict even if one should be
returned; that the Court would be justified in

setting it aside.
Motion denied, to which ruling defendant duly
excepts.

At this time court is adjourned until 9 ¢’clock
a. m. next day, Thursday, September 17th, A. D.
1908, at which time court met pursuant to ad-
journment when proceedings were resumed as fol-
lows:

PLAINTIFFS’ REQUESTS TO CHARGE.

1. If you find that plaintiffs’ dock was
damaged by the action of defendant’s vessel, the
burden of proof is upon the defendant to prove
that such action causing the damage was the re-
sult of inevitable accident. Given.

2. T imstruct you as a matter of law that an
inevitable accident produced by a cause or causes
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over which human agency can exercise no control.
No human agency actively contributes to the
aceident, It is unavoidable by human agency.
(¥iven in Garchy.

3. If you find that plaintiffs’ dock was
damaged by the action of defendant’s vessel, your
verdict will be for the plaintiffs and you will assess
the amount of damage done to the dock by the
vessel. Not given.

4. If you find that the crew of the Steamer
Reynolds by the use of lines were actively in-
strumental in holding the vessel alongside the
dock, and that while so held the vessel damaged
the dock, you are instructed 'that such damage
was not an inevitable accident. Not given.

5. If you find that the crew of the vessel
were actively instrumental in holding the vessel
alongside the dock and that while so held she
damaged the dock your verdict will be for the
plaintiffs and you will assess the amount of
damage done to the dock. Not given.

DEFENDANT'S REQUESTS TG CHARGE.

1. It is claimed by the defendant that the
damages done plaintiffs’ dock are the result of an
inevitable accident. The Court instructs you that
as applied to cases where vessels are conecerned,
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an inevitable accident is an accident oceurring
where a vessel is pursuing a lawful vocation in
a lawful manner, using the proper precautions
against danger, and accident occurs. In such
case the loss must rest where it falls. Refused.

2. The Court instructs you 'that the Steamer
Reynolds owned by the defendant was lawfully
at plaintiffs’ dock and engaged in a lawful busi-
ness and it was the duty of the persons operating
plaintiffs’ dock to furnish a safe place at its dock
for vessels to lay while said dock was receiving
cargo consigned to 1t and that if plaintiffs’ or
their agents operating said dock permitted said
steamer to remain at said dock until weather con-
ditions remdered it unsate or impossible for the
vessel to be moved no recovery can be had.
Refused.

3. The Court instructs you that if you shall
determine from the evidence that the master and
crew of the Steamer Reynolds endeavored by every
nreans consistnt with due care and caution and a
proper display of nautical skill to move said
steamer from plaintiffs’ dock after delivery of
the goods consigned to the City dock no recovery
can be had. Given,

4. The Court instructs you that if you shall
find from the evidence that the damages to the
plaintiff<’ dock was the result of a storm so un
usual and so severe that human forsight could
not have forseen or anticipated its severity, and
that the master and crew of said vessel made such
cfforts to move said vessel as a reasonably prudent
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mariner could or would do, but was prevented
by ‘the severity of the storm from moving said
vossel no recovery can be had and your verdict
<hould be for the defendant. Refused.

5. The Court instructs you that when safe
uavigation is rendered impossible from causes
which no human forsight can prevent, when the
forces of nature bursts forth in unforseen and
uncontrollable fury. so that man is helpless and
the stoutest ship and the wisest mariner are at
fhe mercy of winds and waves and disaster oe-
curs it is an jnevitable accident and the loss if
any resulting therefrom must rest where it falls.
Refased.

6. 'The Court instructs you that by ipevit-
able aceident it is not meant one which it was
absolutely a physical impossibility to have pre-
vented, the most that is meant is an occurence
which could not have been avoided by that
providence and forsight which eareful men would
oxercise under the circumstances. Refused.

7. The Court instructs you that in making
fast to docks for the discharge of cargo, vessels
are required to provide only against ordinary con-
fingencies such as may reasonably be anticipated.
They are not required to take precautions to re-
xist forces not reasonably to he expected. Refused.

8 The Court instructs you that where in-
evitable aceident is shown the loss must remain
where it falls, on the principle that no one should
he held to be in fault, for results from causes over
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which human agency can exercise no control.
Given.

9. The Court instructs you that if at the time
the Steamer Reynolds was placed at plaintiffs’
dock by plaintiffs, the operator of said dock, the
weather conditiong were such as to render it un-
safe for said vessel to discharge its cargo, such
weather conditions were as apparent to the
operator of said dock as to those in charge of said
steamer, and if plaintiffs’ agents failed to warn
said vessel to move after danger became apparent,
no recovery can be had in such case. Refused,

10. The Court instructs you that in the
operation of merchandise docks at Duluth extend-
ing to navigable waters, to which vessels are in-
vited to discharge cargoes such docks are subject
to the usual wear and tear of vessels moored to
their sides, and recovery camnot be had for
damages inflicted to such docks by vessels invited
to moor by them, resulting from causes over which
said vessels have no control. Refused.

11. The Court instructs you that the defend-
ant’s vessel having been invited to make fast to
plaintiffs’ dock for the purpose of discharging
cargo, and a storm of such severity having arisen
as to make it dangerous to said vessel and to other
property to shift its position, the officers and crew
of said vessel were not required to move it if by
so doing there was great danger of damaging said
vessel, or if there was great danger of doing
damage to other property. Refused.
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12, The Court instruets you that if perform-
ance of a duty imposed by law is prevented by the
act of God no liability attaches for damages im-
mediately resulting therefrom. Given.

13. The Court instructs you that if you shall
find from the evidence that the master of the
Revnolds did all that was reasonably and practic-
ally possible to move his vessel after danger be-
came apparent, consistent with prudent seaman-
sliip and a reasonable regard for the safety of his
own ship and the lives of those ahoard of it, and
employed all known means which a prudent
navigator conld reasonable be required to employ,
and was prevented by the severity of the storm
from moving his ship your verdict should be for
the defendant. Refused.

14, The Court instructs you that the master
of the Revnolds was not required by law to put his
own vessel in jeopardy or expose it to great danger.
liven if by remaining at the dock where he was
placed damage would be done this dock. Refused.

CHARGE
(ientlemen of the Jury:
The plaintiffs claim that they are owners of
the City Dock situated in City of Duluth. That
i« not denied on the trial. That the dock was
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for the receiving of freight and that boats and
vessels came to the dock and delivered freight to
it that was consigned to it. That on the 27th
day of November the defendant by its servants
and employes negligently and carelessly kept a
certain steam vessel tied to said wharf on said
day and thereafter to and including ‘the 29th day
of November,

The evidence is that it was until the 28th day
of Novembher. A mistake has been made on both
sides.

That during the said time said vessel was
so negligently tied and kept tied to said wharf
by said defendant, that said vessel struck violently
and beat upon and hammered against said wharf
and injured and destroyed a large part of said

-wharf, to the damage of these plaintiffs in the

sum of $1200. That sald property of these plain-
tiffs by reason of said negligent acts was damaged
te the extent of $1200.

The defendant in its answer admits that it
was the owner of a vessel running on the (ireat
Lakes and that it came into the harbor of Duluth
and that it had goods consigned to the Gity Dock:
that it went to the City dock on the afternocon of
the 27th day of November, 1905, and while it was
discharging the goods so consigned to the City
dock a violent storm arose and by the time the
goods were discharged that it was nnable to leave
the said dock and was obliged to remain at said
dock during the gale: and that it was wholly
unsafe for it to leave the said dock: and that dur-
ing the night, Novemher 27th, said vessel impinged
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agninst said dock and the officers and crew of
siaid vessel were unable to move it, and defendant
claims it is not liable for any damages done to
the dock because it was the result of inevitable
accident, or the act of God in sending the storm
upon them.  All of which is denied by the
plaintiffs and the question that you have to
answer: Was the defendant negligent in allow-
ing its boat to remain at the City dock from five
o'clock of the 27th day of November until three
or tour o’clock on the 28th; and if the defendant
was negligent, were the plaintiffs damaged by
reason of such negligence: and if so in what
amount?

These are tle questions that you have to de-
termine in this case from the evidence.

The questions that you have to determine
arising on the answer in this case are: Was the
damage done to the dock the result of accident or
as has heen termed by counsel, inevitable accident;
wlich means substantially the same thing. Was
this damnge caunsed by the act of God? These
are the questions that you have to answer by your
verdiet,

The defendant is a corporation. It can act
culy by its servapnts and agents and the captain
of the Steamer Reynolds in command of that
steamer, was acting for and on behalf of the de-
fendant. And if Captain Herrick, the captain of
the Revnolds, was negiigent, then his negligence
was the neglicence of the defendant. And if the
defendant was neeligent and that negligence caused
the plaintiffs damage, then the defendant is liable.
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Negligence is the failure to exercise ordinary
care. It is the doing of something which under
the same circumstances a man of ordinary care
and prudence would not de or, it is the omissicn
to do something which under the same circum-
stances a man of ordinary care and prudence
would do.

You see, it is the ordinary man, not the most
careful man, but the man of ordinary care and
prudence is the test.

This is the usnal definition of negligence but
there is a definition that seems to me more ap-
plicable to a case like this than the definition that
I have given you, and 1 ask you careful attention
to it.

It is the failure to observe for the interest
of another person that degree of care, precaution
and vigilance which the circumstances justly de-
mand, whereby such other person is injured. It
is the failure to observe for the interest of another
person that degree of care, precaution and vigil-
ance which the circumstances justly demand,
whereby such other person is injured.

Just a moment as to the relation of these
parties.

The Steamer Revrolds was a carrier on the
Great Lakes. It carried goods consigned to the
City doek. Tt was the duty of the Steamer
Reynolds as a carrier of goods to deliver those
goods to the consignee. The duty of the consignee
was to receive the goods so properly consigned
to it. When the steamer delivered the goods to
the consignee and the consignee received them,
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the duty of the carrier and consignee in relation
to each other was closed; at an end.

The Steamer Reynolds had a right to go to
that dock to deliver the goods consigned to the
City dock. Tt had a right to remain there until
those goods were delivered. It went there for
that purpose and that purpose only and when
that purpose was accomplished it had no futher
legal right to remain, It was its duty to leave
that dock as soon as it could.

That T apprehend comprehends the legal re-
lation between the City dock and this steamer.
There was a license for it to go there for a certain
purpose. When that purpose was accomplished
the license ceased and it had no longer any legal
right there. The people in charge of the City
dock had no duty to perform towards the steamer,
no duty to perform in relation to the storm, in
relation to the management of the steamer in any
way.

Now, with this introduction we come to the
grave question in this case: was the defendant.
negligent? Did its agents and servants exercise
that care and caution in the management and con-
trol of its ship that a man of ordinary care and
prudence would have exercised under the same
circnmstances.

If it did exercise such care and caution that
was all the law required of it and the plaintiff
cannot recover. But if it was negligent and that
negligence caused damage to the plaintiff, then
the defendant is liable for that damage.

The law imposes upon every person and cor-
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poration in the enjoyment of its own property the
duty so to use it as not to injure the property of
another. That is the duty that is imposed upon
you, upon myself, upon every person, so to use
our own property as not to injure the property
of another,

The storm that was experienced on the 27th
and 28th of November, 1905, has heen shown to
be one of very great severity. The evidence of
the defendant is that if the boat had been cast
loose from that dock that the ship would have been
lost, been wrecked, broken to pieces.

Was the defendant negligent in not warping
said ship into the slip on the west side of that
dock? That is claimed by the plaintiffs. It is
denied by the defendant. You are to look at all
of the evidence and determine whether that was
negligence on the part of the defendant. Could
it have been done? And in determining that, I
ask vour attention to the evidence in relation to
the warping of that ship into that slip. Take
all of the evidence upon that question, all of the
facts and circumstances of the case into considera-
tion; the location of the ship and the dock; the
storm, the direction of the wind, its force; the
waves; their direction and force; where they struck
the boat; and their effect upon the boat in case
this warping should have been tried. Look at
all the facts and determine whether the captain
of the Reynolds was negligent in not endeavoring
to warp his boat into that west slip.

It is claimed on the part of the plaintiffs that
he was negligent in not observing the storm earlier
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than he did and its rapid increase, and taken pre-
cautions to have gotten away from that dock before
the time that he did. TLook at all of the evidence
in relation to the storm and its rise; and you
have hefore you in evidence the increase of the
wind from hour to hour. Was the captain of the
Steamer Reynolds negligent in not observing the
increase in the storm and leaving the dock before N

871

. i
it became so severe? ~
N

It is also claimed to be negligence on the part -
of the defendant that the weather office and the s
weather signals which were ordered and which
were flying to the breeze, were not observed. You
will look at all the facts in relation to that. There
is mo contradiction that signal warnings weref 872 (—IQ
flying from the weather office but_ayghat those
warnings were is not shown.  Was there any
pegligence in not giving heed (you have the time)
when these were ordered? And from what time
they were flying and weather or not they were
vigible from where this boat lay. Take all these
facts into consideration and determine whether in
the particulars named this defendant through its
agents and servants was negligent.

4 The ship remained tied to that dock. The
evidence on the part of the defendant is that if 873
it had left that dock it would have been lost, O

was saved.

The defendant had no right to save its ship C&S\ &\,
at the expense of the plaintiffs and if it was so \J"\)
saved—that is, in saving its ship—if it was so )N

saved and damage was done-to the defendant by

wrecked, destroyed; that it remained there and W
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reason of its laying at the dock and being saved,
and the defendant was negligent, then the de
fendant should be liable for that damage.

Upon the question of the damages yon have
the evidence. Tt is in very small space. Was
that dock injured? Was it injured by the boat
and the waves? 1f it was injured by the waves
alone and the hoat did not add to its injury then
the plaintiffs cannot recover here. But if the
boat caused the injury to the dock and you find
that the defendant was negligent then the plaintiffs
can recover whatever damages were sustained.

I call your attention to the evidence in re
lation to the motion of the boat as it was tied to
the dock. The defendant says that ft impinged
upon the dock. The plaintiffs claim that it
pounded the dock until it broke the timbers. You
have the evidence of the damage if you come to

that question, gentlemen.

I should have called your attention to the
defense here as to inevitable accident.

Inevitable accident, or accident, is described
as an accident produced by cause or causes over
which human agency can exercise mno control.
And no liability attaches where the.injury results
from what is termed pure and inevitable accident.

Negligence can never consistently be pre-
dicated on purely accidental grounds; but merely
calling the act which resulted in an injury, an
accident will not avoid liability for the result of
negligence. The fact that at the very moment
of the accident the injury could not have been
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prevented will not relieve the defendant from
liability if it was brought about by his negligence.

No human agency actively contributes to an
aveidgent. It is unavoidable by human agency.
And I do pot know that I can say anything more
to you in relation to inevitable accident.

An accident within the rule which I have
read to you is that which happened without fault
of anvone, without one’s oversight or instigation.
YWas this inevitable accident or was it injury
without control by human agency?

An injury caused by the act of God or a
superior agency without the fault of defendant
will not impose any liability on the defendant.
An act of God is defined as an inevitable accident
without the intervention of man or his control.

You are to determine from all of the evidence
in the case whether this was inevitable accident
or the act of God alone. Look at all the evidence,
look at the evidence of what was done and what
was omitted to be done on the part of the defend-
ant.  If yvou find that plaintiffs’ dock was damaged
by the action of defendant’s vessel the burden of
proof is upon the defendant to prove that such
action cansing the damage was the result of in-
evitable accident.  And if yvou find that the plain-
tifts’ dock was damaged by the defendant’s vessel
ihrough the negligence of its eaptain or crew your
verdict will e for the plaintiffs and you will
assess the amount of damage done to the dock by
the vessel.

The Court instructs you that if you shall de-
termine from the evidence that the master and
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crew of the Steamer Reynolds endeavored by every
means consistent with due care and caution and
a proper display of nautical skill to move said
steamer from said plaintiffs’ dock at, before or
after the discharge of the goods, there can be had
No recovery.

I have already said to you that if this defend-
ant was not negligent that the plaintiffs cannot
recover. You are to determine from the evidence
whether the defendant was negligent and T ask
your attention to all of the evidence upon that
point.

I am requested on the part of the defendant
to give you the following in charge:

The Court instructs you that where inevitable
acident is shown the loss must remain where it
falls, on the principle that no one should be held
to be in fault from results from causes over which
human agency can exercise no control.

The Court instructs you that if performance
of a duty imposed by law is prevented by the act
of God no liability attaches for damages resulting
immediately therefrom.

I ask your attention to all of the evidence
that has been given to you. What was done?
How was the ship saved? Was it by tying it to
that dock with lines and remaining there with a
determination to remain there? Was it possible
that it should be moved? Was there any neglig-
ence on the part of the master of the vessel? Take
all the facts into consideration.

You are the exclusive judges of the facts in
this case.  The facts are given to you by the
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evidence in the case and upon your recollection
of those facts you must base your verdict.

You are also judges of the credibility of the
witnesses and the weight of their testimony. You
ave to determine which of the witnesses you will
give credit to and which you will not.

If you find a verdict for the plaintiffs your
verdict will he:  We the jury in the above entitled
action find a verdiet in favor of the plaintiffs and
assess their damages at the sum of blank dollars.

If you find a verdiet for the defendant your
verdict will be: We the jury in the above entitled
action find a verdict in favor of the defendant.

Which ever of these blanks expresses your
finding in the case you will use, have it signed by
vour foreman and if court is in session you will
come into court and deliver your verdict in open
court ; if eourt should not be in session when you
Jave agreed upon your verdict you will seal up
vour verdiet, deliver it to your foreman and all
come with your foreman into court at the next
session of the Court:

Mr. Spencer: I desire to note an exception
to the refusal of the Court to charge defendant’s
request namber 1.

1 desire to note an exception to the refusal of
the Court to charge defendant’s request number 2.

1 desire to note an exception to the refusal of
{he Court to charge defendant’s request number 1.

I desire to note an exception to the refusal of
the Court to charge defendant’s request number 5.
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I desire to note an exception to the refusal of
the Court to charge defendant’s request number 6.

I desire to note an exception to the refusal of
the Court to charge defendant's request number 7.

I desire to note an exception to the refusal of
the Court to charge defendant’s request number 9.

I desire to note an exception to the refusal of
the Court to charge defendant’s request number 10.

I desire to note an exception to the refusal of
the Court to charge defendant’s request number 11,

I desire to note an exception to the refusal of
the Court to charge defendant’s request number 13,

T desire to note an exception to the refusal of
the Court to charge defendant’s request number 14.

Defendant algo excepts to the charge of the
Court to the effect that on delivery of the goods
to the City dock all relations of steamer and
dock people ceased,

Defendant also excepts to the charge of the
Court that the steamer had po legal right to remain
at the dock after the dischdrge of the cargo.

Defendant also excepts to the charge of the
Court wherein the Court said, the City dock peo-
ple had no duty to perform toward the steamer.

Defendant excepts to the charge of the Court
wherein the Court said that the defendant had
no right at the expense of the plaintiffs—that if
defendant’s vessel was saved at the expense of in-
jury to the dock the defendant would be liable,
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CERTIFICATE OF SETTLED GASE.

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct
statement of the proceedings had on the trial of
the above entitled cause and of the rulings of the
Court and exceptions of council including all the
evidence taken at the trial, the charge of the Court
and  exceptions taken thereto, the requests to
charge and the rulings of the Court and the ex-
ceptions thereto, and that the foregoing “case” is
Irereby settled and allowed and directed to be filed
as a part of the records of this cause. Errors here-
after found may be corrected on application of
either party. Original exhibits may be certified
upon request of either party.

March 20th, 1909,
J. D. ENSIGN,
Judge.

VERDICT.

Title omitted.

We, the jury, in the above entitled cause, find
a verdiet in favor of the plaintiffs, and assess their
damages at the sum of five hundred dollars and
uo cents.  {($500.00).

{Bigned) E. D. BARKER,
Foreman,

Dated Duluth, Minn., this 17th day of September,
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MOTION FOR JUDGMENT OR NEW TRIAL.

—

Title omitted,

Now comes the said defendant ang upon the
“case” settled by the Court upon the 20th day o.
March, 1909, and upon all the records and fileg
in said cause, moves for judgment to be entered
in favor of the defendant, notwithstanding the
verdict of the jury rendered in said action.

If the Court refuses to grant defendant’s
motion for judgment notwithstanding the verdiet,
then the defendant moves that the verdict rendered
in said action be set aside and vacated and a new -
trial granted for the following causes:

First. That the verdict is not justified by the
evidence and is contrary to law.,

Second. For errors in law occuring at the
trial and excepted to by the defendant.

March 20th, 1909,

H. R. SPENCER,
Attorney for Defendant.
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ORDER DENYING MOTION.

Title omitted.

The Court having heard and considered de-
fendant’s motion for judgment notwithstanding the
verdict in the above entitled action, it is hereby
ordered,

First, That said motion be and the same is
lereby in all things denied.

Second, The Court having duly Leard and con-
sidered defendant's mmotion for a new trial in the
above entitled eause, it is ordered that said motion
be and the same is hereby in all things denied.

By the Court.

May 4th, 1909,

J. D. ENSIGN,
Judge.

NOTICE OF APPEAL.

Title omitted.

To the above named plaintitfs, Alford and Hunt,
their attorneys, and J. P. Johnson, clerk of the
above named Court:

I’lease take notice that the above named de-
fendants appeal to the Supreme Court of the State
of Minnesota from the order. of the above named
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District Court filed in the above entitled action
upon the 5th day of May, 1909, wherein the Court
denied the defendant’s motion for judgment in
sald action, notwithstanding the verdict, and
wherein the Court denied defendant’s motion for

898 & new trial, and from the whole of said order.

May 24th, 1909. '
H. R. SPENCER,
Attorney for Defendant.

Due service of the within notice admitted this
27th day of May, 1909.
ALFORD & HUNT,
Attorneys for Plaintiffs,
J. P. JOHNSON,
Clerk,
899 By V. A. DASH,
Deputy.

STIPULATION.

Title omitted.

It is hereby stipulated by and between counsel

900 ¢4 plaintiffs and counsel for defendant in the
matter of the appeal of the defendant in the ahove
entitled cause, that an appeal bond for costs and

2 supersedeas bond 1s hereby waived, and the
Court may enter its order staying execution therein
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pending an appeal to the Supreme Court of the
State of Minnesota,
ALFORD & HUNT,
Attorneys for Plaintiffs.
H. R. SPENCER,
Attorneys for Defendant.

901

On filing the above stipulation, it is hereby
ordered that execution is the ahove entitled cause
be staved until further order of this Court.
AOMER B. DIBELL,
Judge.
902
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